
 
   

The 4.5% cumulative preferred stock not subject to mandatory redemption has an optional redemption price of $101 per share.  
   
Note 9 — Pension Plan and Employee Benefits  

The authoritative guidance for compensation of retirement benefits requires companies to set their measurement date to correspond with their fiscal year end, eliminating 
the option to use an earlier measurement date.  The measurement date provision is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008.  Cleco’s measurement date 
currently is the same as its fiscal year end; therefore, the measurement date provision had no impact on the Registrants.  
   
Pension Plan and Other Benefits Plan  
Most employees hired before August 1, 2007 are covered by a non-contributory, defined benefit pension plan.  Benefits under the plan reflect an employee’s years of 
service, age at retirement, and highest total average compensation for any consecutive five calendar years during the last 10 years of employment with Cleco 
Corporation.  Cleco Corporation’s policy is to base its contributions to the employee pension plan upon actuarial computations utilizing the projected unit credit method, 
subject to the IRS’s full funding limitation.  During 2009, $18.8 million of discretionary contributions were made to the pension plan for the 2008 plan year.  Cleco Power 
expects to be required to make approximately $70.0 million in additional contributions to the pension plan over the next five years, including $4.8 million in 2010.  The 
required contributions are driven by liability funding target percentages set by law which could cause the required contributions to be uneven among the years.  The 
ultimate amount and timing of the contributions will be affected by changes in the discount rate, changes in the funding regulations, and actual returns on fund 
assets.  Cleco Power is considered the plan sponsor, and Support Group is considered the plan administrator.    

Cleco Corporation’s retirees and their dependents are eligible to receive medical, dental, vision, and life insurance benefits (other benefits).  Cleco Corporation 
recognizes the expected cost of these benefits during the periods in which the benefits are earned.  
 
 

The employee pension plan and other benefits obligation plan assets and funded status at December 31, 2009, and 2008, are presented in the following table.  
 

   
The employee pension plan accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2009, and 2008, is presented in the following table.  

 

   
The authoritative guidelines for compensation of retirement benefits require the disclosure of the net actuarial gains/losses, transition obligations/assets, and prior 

period service costs included in other comprehensive income as a result of being included as a component of net periodic benefit costs.  The following table presents 
those items for the employee pension plan and other benefits plan at December 31, 2009, and 2008.  
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    PENSION BENEFITS     OTHER BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2009     2008   

Change in benefit obligation                          
Benefit obligation at  beginning of year    $ 278,442     $ 248,660     $ 34,054     $ 32,551   
Service cost      7,010       5,879       1,414       1,412   
Interest cost      16,454       15,856       2,140       1,981   
Plan participants’ contributions      -      -      1,157       1,087   
Actuarial loss      6,351       20,333       4,022       77   
Expenses paid      (990 )     (1,029 )     -      -  

Medicare D      -      -      -(1)     252   
Benefits paid      (11,739 )     (11,257 )     (3,578 )     (3,306 ) 
Benefit obligation at end of  year      295,528       278,442       39,209       34,054   

Change in plan assets                                  
Fair value of plan assets at  beginning of year      185,562       251,957       -      -  
Actual return on plan  assets      29,434       (60,109 )     -      -  
Employer contributions      18,800       6,000       -      -  
Expenses paid      (990 )     (1,029 )     -      -  
Benefits paid      (11,739 )     (11,257 )     -      -  
Fair value of plan assets at  end of year      221,067       185,562       -      -  

Unfunded status    $ (74,461 )   $ (92,880 )   $ (39,209 )   $ (34,054 ) 

(1) No Medicare D reimbursement was received in 2009; $213 was received in January 2010.    

    PENSION BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Accumulated benefit obligation    $ 261,817     $ 246,931   

    PENSION BENEFITS     OTHER BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2009     2008   

Net actuarial loss (gain) occurring during year    $ (3,619 )   $ 100,619     $ 4,022     $ 77   
Net actuarial loss amortized during year    $ 1,930     $ -    $ (896 )   $ (926 ) 
Transition obligation occurring during year    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -  
Transition obligation amortized during year    $ -    $ -    $ 20     $ 20   
Prior service credit occurring during year    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ -  
Prior service credit amortized during year    $ 71     $ 71     $ 2,065     $ 2,065   
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The authoritative guidelines also require the disclosure of the net gains/losses, transition obligations/assets, and prior period service costs/credits in accumulated 
other comprehensive income that have not been recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs and the amounts expected to be recognized in 2010.  The 
following table presents those items for the employee pension plan and other benefits plans for December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010.  
 

   
The components of net periodic pension and other benefits cost for 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as follows.  

 

   
Since Cleco Power is the pension plan sponsor and the related trust holds the assets, the prepaid benefit cost of the pension plan is reflected at Cleco Power.  The 

liability of Cleco Corporation’s other subsidiaries is transferred, with a like amount of assets, to Cleco Power monthly.  The expense of the pension plan related to Cleco 
Corporation’s other subsidiaries for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $1.8 million, $1.5 million, and $2.0 million, respectively.    

Cleco Corporation is the plan sponsor for the other benefit plans.  There are no assets set aside in a trust, and the liabilities are reported on the individual 
subsidiaries’ financial statements.  At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the current portion of the other benefits liability for Cleco was $2.8 million and $2.6 million, 
respectively.  At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the current portion of the other benefits liability for Cleco Power was $2.7 million and $2.4 million, respectively.  The 
expense related to other benefits reflected in Cleco Power’s Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $2.4 
million, $2.2 million, and $2.1 million, respectively, net of Medicare Part D subsidy of $0.3 million, $0.3 million, and $0.3 million, respectively.  Cleco Power’s allocated 
amount of the other benefit liability was $30.6 million and $26.4 million at December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively.  

The measurement date used to determine the pension and other postretirement benefits is December 31.  The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation 
and the periodic costs are as follows.  
 

 

   
The expected return on plan assets was determined by examining the risk profile of each target category as compared to the expected return on that risk, within the 

parameters determined by the retirement committee.  The result was also compared to the expected rate of return of other comparable plans.  In assessing the risk as 
compared to return profile, historical returns as compared to risk was considered.  The historical risk compared to returns was adjusted for the expected future long-term 
relationship between risk and return.  The adjustment for the future risk compared to returns was, in part, subjective and not based on any measurable or observable 
events.  

Employee pension plan assets may be invested in publicly traded domestic common stocks, including Cleco Corporation common stock; U.S. Government, federal 
agency and corporate obligations; an international equity fund, commercial real estate funds; a hedge fund-of-funds; and pooled temporary investments.  Investments in 
securities (obligations of U.S. Government and U.S. Government Agencies, corporate debt, common/collective trust funds, mutual funds, common stocks, and preferred 
stock) traded on a national securities exchange  
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          PENSION BENEFITS           OTHER BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2008     2009     2010     2008     2009     2010   

Net actuarial loss    $ 113,057     $ 107,508     $ 3,102     $ 10,106     $ 13,231     $ 1,001 (1) 

Transition obligation    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 114     $ 94     $ 20 (2) 

Prior service credit    $ 844     $ 773     $ 71     $ 4,291     $ 2,227     $ 2,021 (3) 

(1) Net of the estimated Medicare Part D subsidy of $288.  
(2) Net of the estimated Medicare Part D subsidy of $0.  
(3) Net of the estimated Medicare Part D subsidy of $397.    

          PENSION BENEFITS           OTHER BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007     2009     2008     2007   

Components of periodic benefit costs                                      
Service cost    $ 7,010     $ 5,879     $ 7,747     $ 1,414     $ 1,412     $ 1,400   
Interest cost      16,454       15,856       15,525       2,140       1,981       1,832   
Expected return on plan assets      (19,464 )     (20,178 )     (18,980 )     -      -      -  
Transition obligation      -      -      -      20       20       20   
Prior period service credit (cost)      (71 )     (71 )     845       (2,065 )     (2,065 )     (2,065 ) 
Net loss      1,930       -      1,961       897       926       928   
Net periodic benefit cost    $ 5,859     $ 1,486     $ 7,098     $ 2,406     $ 2,274     $ 2,115   

  PENSION BENEFITS   OTHER BENEFITS 

  2009   2008   2009   2008 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation as of 
December 31:                

Discount rate  5.91%   6.01%   5.29%   6.27% 
Rate of compensation increase  4.45%   4.54%   N/A   N/A 

      PENSION BENEFITS       OTHER BENEFITS 

  2009   2008   2007   2009   2008   2007 

Weighted-average assumptions used to 
determine the net benefit cost (income) for the 
year ended December 31:  

                      

Discount rate  6.01%   6.48%   5.90%   6.27%   6.18%   5.90% 
Expected return on plan assets  7.80%   8.40%   8.40%   N/A   N/A   N/A 
Rate of compensation increase  4.45%   4.54%   4.56%   N/A   N/A   N/A 
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are valued at the last reported sales price on the last business day of the year.  

Real estate funds and the pooled separate accounts are stated at estimated market value based on appraisal reports prepared annually by independent real estate 
appraisers (members of the American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers).  The estimated market value of recently acquired properties is assumed to approximate cost.  

The hedge fund-of-funds is stated at fair value based upon financial statements and other financial information reported by the management of the underlying 
funds.  In January 2009, the relationship with the hedge fund-of-funds manager was restructured to redemption status only.    

The authoritative guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures requires entities to classify assets and liabilities measured at their fair value according to 
three different levels, depending on the inputs used in determining fair value.  
   

   
The table below discloses the pension plan’s fair value of financial assets measured on a recurring basis and within the scope of the authoritative guidance for fair 

value measurements and disclosures.  
 

   

   
Level 3 valuations are derived from other valuation methodologies including pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques.  Level 3 valuations 

incorporate subjective judgments and consider assumptions including capitalization rates, discounts rates, cash flows and other factors that are not observable in the 
market.    

The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the pension plan’s preferred stock, common/collective trust fund, real estate funds, and 
hedge fund-of-funds measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the year ended December 31, 2009.  
 

   
The market-related value of plan assets differs from the fair value of plan assets by the amount of deferred asset gains or losses.  Actual asset returns that differ from 

the expected return on plan assets are deferred and recognized in the market-related value of assets on a straight-line basis over a five-year period.  For 2009, the return 
on plan assets was 16.0% compared to an expected long-term return of 7.8%.  The 2008 return on pension plan assets was (26.9)% compared to an expected long-term 
return of 8.4%.    

As of December 31, 2009, the pension plan held no shares of Cleco Corporation common stock.  None of the plan participants’ future annual benefits is covered by 
insurance contracts.  As a result of the significant 2008 market declines, the pension plan portfolio experienced significant losses during 2008 that resulted in a significant 
decrease in the funded status of the plan for 2008.  These losses, in conjunction with funding requirements, may lead to increased or earlier contributions than previously 
anticipated.  In December 2008, Cleco became aware that, through its hedge fund-of-funds manager, a portion of its pension plan assets were invested in the Madoff 
feeder fund investment, Ascot Fund Limited.  The total losses associated with this fund were approximately $0.7  
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�   Level 1 – unadjusted quoted prices in active, liquid markets for the identical asset or liability;  
�   Level 2 – quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or other inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, including inputs that can be 

corroborated by observable market data, observable interest rate yield curves and volatilities;  
�   Level 3 – unobservable inputs based upon the entities own assumptions.  

(THOUSANDS)    
AT 

DECEMBER 31, 2009     

QUOTED PRICES 
IN ACTIVE 

MARKETS FOR 
IDENTICAL ASSETS 

(LEVEL 1)     

SIGNIFICANT 
OTHER 

OBSERVABLE 
INPUTS 

(LEVEL 2)     

SIGNIFICANT 
UNOBSERVABLE 

INPUTS 
(LEVEL 3)   

Asset Description                          
Cash and cash equivalents    $ 9,679     $ -    $ 9,679     $ -  
Common stock      27,096       -      27,096       -  
Preferred stock      10,234       -      1,124       9,110   
Obligations of U.S. Government and U.S. Government Agencies      24,763       -      24,763       -  
Mutual funds      70,612       70,555       57       -  
Common/collective trust fund      36,727       283       36,271       173   
Real estate funds      4,517       -      -      4,517   
Hedge fund-of-funds      6,529       -      -      6,529   
Corporate debt      33,737       -      33,737       -  

Total    $ 223,894     $ 70,838     $ 132,727     $ 20,329   

    
Net liability for  

  pending 
transactions  

 
$              (3,238)   

    Interest accrual                       411    
    Total net assets  $                 221,067    

(THOUSANDS)    
PREFERRED 

STOCK     

COMMON/ 
COLLECTIVE 

TRUST     
REAL ESTATE 

FUNDS     
HEDGE FUND 

OF FUNDS     TOTAL   

December 31, 2008    $ 12,992     $ 149     $ 5,741     $ 12,223     $ 31,105   
Realized (loss) gain      -      -      -      (27 )     (27 ) 
Unrealized (loss)  gain      (4,333 )     30       (1,224 )     499       (5,028 ) 
Purchases, issuances, and settlements, net      451       (6 )     -      (6,166 )     (5,721 ) 

December 31, 2009    $ 9,110     $ 173     $ 4,517     $ 6,529     $ 20,329   
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million.  In January 2009, Cleco Power elected to liquidate the holdings of the hedge fund-of-funds manager.  Proceeds from the hedge fund-of-funds manager will be 
reallocated to the plan’s other equity managers.  

Cleco Corporation’s retirement committee has established investment performance objectives of the pension plan assets.  Over a three- to five-year period, the 
objectives are for the pension plan’s annualized total return to:  
   

   
In order to meet the objectives and to control risk, the retirement committee has established guidelines that the investment managers must follow.  

   
Domestic Equity Portfolios  

   
International Equity Portfolios  

   
Debt Portfolios  

   
Real Estate Portfolios  

 
   
Hedge Fund-of-Funds  

   
Fund managers were allowed limited use of derivatives, subject to policies and guidelines established by the committee and to the following restrictions:  

   

   
Due to the nature of the hedge fund-of-funds, its manager was exempt from the above derivative policy.  
The Retirement Committee has established the following investment asset allocation target percentages for the pension plan assets.  

 

   
The estimated impact of future Medicare subsidies reduced the January 1, 2009, and 2008, accumulated postretirement benefit obligation by $6.2 million and $5.8 

million, respectively, and reduced the other benefit costs for the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, as follows.  
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�   Exceed the assumed rate of return on plan assets;  
�   Exceed the annualized total return of a customized index consisting of a mixture of Standard & Poor’s 500 Index; Russell Mid Cap Value Index; Morgan Stanley 

Capital International Europe, Australia, Far East Index; Lehman Brothers U.S. Universal Index; and the median real estate manager performance in the Hewitt 
Investment Group open end real estate universe; and  

�   Rank in the upper 50 percent of a universe of composite pension funds.  

�   Equity holdings of a single company must not exceed 10% of the manager’s portfolio.  
�   A minimum of 25 stocks should be owned.  
�   Equity holdings in a single sector should not exceed the lesser of three times the sector’s weighting in the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index or 35% of the portfolio.  

�   Equity holdings of a single company should not exceed 5% of the manager’s portfolio.  
�   A minimum of 30 stocks should be owned.  
�   Equity holdings in a single sector should not exceed 35%.  
�   Currency hedging decisions are at the discretion of the investment manager.  

�   At least 85% of the debt securities should be investment grade securities (BBB- by Standard & Poor’s or Baa3 by Moody’s) or higher.  
�   Bond purchases should be limited to readily marketable securities.  

�   Real estate funds should be invested primarily in direct equity positions, with debt and other investments representing less than 25% of the fund.  
�   Leverage should be less than 70% of the market value of the fund.  
�   Investments should be focused on existing income-producing properties, with land and development properties representing less than 40% of the fund.  

�   The fund should be invested in a minimum of 20 individual partnerships.  
�   No individual partnership should exceed 10% of the fund-of-funds.  
�   The fund should be diversified across several different “styles” of partnerships, including event-driven strategies, fixed income arbitrage and trading, and other 

arbitrage strategies.  The fund generally should not be invested in emerging markets, short-term only, traditional Commodity Trading Advisor’s or derivative-only 
strategies.  

�   Derivatives may be used only if the vehicle is deemed by the manager to be more attractive than a similar investment in the underlying cash market; or if the 
vehicle is being used to manage risk of the portfolio.  

�   The derivatives may not be used in a speculative manner or to leverage the portfolio.  
�   The derivatives may not be used as short-term trading vehicles.  
�   Investment managers shall alert the Retirement Committee, in writing, before engaging in strategies which use derivatives.  The written communication shall 

include the nature and purpose of the strategy, a quantification of the magnitude of the program in absolute dollar terms, an outline of the methods to be used to 
monitor the program, and an outline of the process to be followed in reporting on commitments relative to established guidelines and on the success of the 
proposed strategy.  

  PERCENT OF TOTAL PLAN ASSETS* 

  MINIMUM   TARGET   MAXIMUM 

Equity            
Domestic  39%   47%   55% 
International  13%   18%   23% 

Total equity  60%   65%   70% 
Debt securities  18%   23%   28% 
Real estate  4%   7%   10% 
Hedge fund-of-funds  2%   5%   8% 
Cash equivalents  0%   0%   5% 
* Minimums and maximums within subcategories not intended to equal total for category.  
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The assumed health care cost trend rates used to measure the expected cost of other benefits was $9.0% in 2010, 2009, and 2008.  The rate declines to 5.0% by 

2028 and remains at 5.0% thereafter.  Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amount reported for the health care plans.  A one-percentage 
point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on other benefits.  
 

   
The projected benefit payments and projected receipts pursuant to Medicare Part D subsidy, the employee pension plan, and other benefits obligation plan for each 

year through 2014 and the next five years thereafter are listed below.  
 

   
SERP  
Certain Cleco executive officers are covered by the SERP.  The SERP is a non-qualified, non-contributory, defined benefit pension plan.  Benefits under the plan reflect 
an employee’s years of service, age at retirement, and the sum of the highest base salary paid out of the last five calendar years and the average of the three highest 
bonuses paid during the 60 months prior to retirement, reduced by benefits received from any other defined benefit pension plan, SERP Plan or Cleco contributions under 
the enhanced 401(k) Plan to the extent such contributions exceed the limits of the 401(k) Plan.  Cleco Corporation does not fund the SERP liability, but instead pays for 
current benefits out of the general funds available.  Cleco Power has formed a Rabbi Trust designated as the beneficiary for life insurance policies issued on the SERP 
participants.  Proceeds from the life insurance policies are expected to be used to pay the SERP participants’ life insurance benefits, as well as future SERP benefit 
payments.  However, since SERP is a non-qualified plan, the assets of the trust could be used to satisfy general creditors of Cleco Power in the event of insolvency.  All 
SERP benefits are paid out of the general cash available of the respective companies from which the officer retired.  No contributions to the SERP were made during the 
three-year period ended December 31, 2009.  Cleco Power is considered the plan sponsor, and Support Group is considered the plan administrator.  

The SERP’s funded status at December 31, 2009, and 2008, is presented in the following table.  
 

   
The SERP’s accumulated benefit obligation at December 31, 2009, and 2008, is presented in the following table.  

 

   
The authoritative guidelines on compensation for retirement benefits require the disclosure of the net actuarial gains/losses, transition obligations/assets, and prior 

period service costs included in other comprehensive income as a result of being amortized as a component of net periodic benefit costs.  The following table presents 
those items for the SERP at December 31, 2009, and 2008.  
 

   
The authoritative guidelines on compensation for retirement benefits also require the disclosure of the net gains/losses, transition obligations/assets, and prior period 

service costs/credit in accumulated other comprehensive income that have not been recognized as components of net periodic benefit costs and the amounts expected to 
be recognized in 2010.  The following table presents those items for SERP for December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008.  
 

   
The components of the net SERP cost for 2009, 2008, and 2007 are as follows.  

 

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

    AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Components of other benefit costs:              
Reduction in service cost    $ 149     $ 139   
Reduction in interest cost      335       299   
Reduction in net loss amortization      303       304   
Reduction in prior period service cost amortization      (397 )     (397 ) 
Reduction in net other benefit cost    $ 390     $ 345   

    ONE-PERCENTAGE POINT   
(THOUSANDS)    INCREASE     DECREASE   

Effect on total of service and interest cost components    $ 32     $ 104   
Effect on postretirement benefit obligation    $ 340     $ 1,401   

(THOUSANDS)    2010     2011     2012     2013     2014     
NEXT FIVE 

YEARS   

Pension plan    $ 12,206     $ 12,657     $ 13,221     $ 13,910     $ 14,687     $ 89,622   
Other benefits obligation plan, gross    $ 3,228     $ 3,455     $ 3,646     $ 3,841     $ 4,112     $ 23,261   
Medicare Part D subsidy receipts    $ 312     $ 353     $ 403     $ 457     $ 501     $ 3,154   

    SERP BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Change in benefit obligation              
Benefit obligation at beginning of year    $ 33,223     $ 29,757   
Service cost      1,608       1,395   
Interest cost      2,015       1,898   
Actuarial loss      1,935       1,744   
Benefits paid      (1,554 )     (1,571 ) 
Benefit obligation at end of year    $ 37,227     $ 33,223   

    SERP BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Accumulated benefit obligation    $ 34,122     $ 30,180   

    SERP BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Net actuarial loss occurring during year    $ 1,935     $ 1,745   
Net actuarial loss amortized during year    $ 777     $ 656   
Prior service cost amortized during year    $ 54     $ 54   

          SERP BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2010     2009     2008   

Net actuarial loss    $ 884     $ 12,015     $ 10,858   
Prior service cost    $ 54     $ 441     $ 494   

          SERP BENEFITS   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Components of periodic benefit costs                    
Service cost    $ 1,608     $ 1,395     $ 1,435   
Interest cost      2,015       1,898       1,778   
Prior period service cost amortization      54       54       54   
Net loss amortization      777       656       1,016   
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Net periodic benefit cost    $ 4,454     $ 4,003     $ 4,283   
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The measurement date used to determine the SERP benefits is December 31.  The assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation and the periodic costs are 

as follows.  
 

 

   
The liabilities of the SERP are reported on the individual subsidiaries’ financial statements.  At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the current portion of the SERP liability 

for Cleco was $1.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively.  At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the current portion of the SERP liability for Cleco Power was $0.6 million.  The 
expense related to the SERP reflected on Cleco Power’s Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 was $1.1 million, 
$1.0 million, and $1.1 million, respectively.  Cleco Power’s allocated amount of the SERP liability was $12.9 million and $12.1 million at December 31, 2009, and 2008, 
respectively.    

The projected benefit payments for the SERP for each year through 2014 and the next five years thereafter are listed below.  
 

   
401(k)/ESOP Plan  
Most employees are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan, which was amended in April 1991 to include a leveraged ESOP.  The ESOP was established with 300,000 
convertible preferred shares which served as Cleco Corporation’s match to employees’ 401(k) Plan contributions and funded dividend payments on allocated shares.  By 
late March 2006, substantially all of the ESOP preferred shares were fully allocated to current and former 401(k) Plan participants. Beginning January 2007, Cleco 
Corporation made matching contributions and funded dividend reinvestments with Cleco Corporation common stock.  In March 2007, the ESOP trustee converted all 
outstanding 190,372 shares of ESOP preferred stock into 1.8 million shares of Cleco Corporation common stock.  Beginning January 2008, Cleco Corporation made 
matching contributions and funded dividend reinvestments with cash.  

The table below contains information about the 401(k) Plan and the ESOP.  
 

   
Cleco Power is the plan sponsor for the 401(k) Plan.  The expense of the 401(k) Plan related to Cleco Corporation’s other subsidiaries was $1.0 million, $1.0 million, 

and $0.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  The expense related to the dividend requirements of the ESOP on convertible 
preferred stock is reflected on Cleco Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Income for the year ended December 31, 2007.  
   
Note 10 — Income Taxes 

Cleco  
For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, income tax expense was less than the amount computed by applying the statutory federal rate to income 
before tax.  The differences are as follows.  
 

   
Information about current and deferred income tax expense is as follows.  
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  SERP 

  2009   2008 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation as of December 31:        
Discount rate  5.78%   6.15% 
Rate of compensation increase  5.00%   5.00% 

      SERP 

  2009   2008   2007 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine the net benefit cost (income) for the year ended December 31:            
Discount rate  6.15%   6.48%   5.90% 
Rate of compensation increase  5.00%   5.00%   5.00% 

(THOUSANDS)    2010     2011     2012     2013     2014     
NEXT FIVE 

YEARS   

SERP    $ 1,787     $ 2,028     $ 2,147     $ 2,389     $ 2,424     $ 14,301   

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

401(k) Plan expense    $ 3,751     $ 3,427     $ 2,774   
Dividend requirements to ESOP on convertible preferred stock    $ -    $ -    $ 412   

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR %)    2009     2008     2007   

Income before tax    $ 115,886     $ 120,598     $ 222,561   
Statutory rate      35.0 %     35.0 %     35.0 % 
Tax at federal statutory rate    $ 40,560     $ 42,209     $ 77,897   
Increase (decrease):                          

Plant differences, including AFUDC  flowthrough    $ (30,212 )   $ (27,208 )   $ (14,498 ) 
Amortization of investment tax credits    $ (1,332 )   $ (1,380 )   $ (1,435 ) 
State tax expense    $ 4,763     $ 7,506     $ 12,549   
Other    $ (4,200 )   $ (2,670 )   $ (3,741 ) 

Total taxes    $ 9,579     $ 18,457     $ 70,772   

Effective Rate      8.3 %     15.3 %     31.8 % 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Current federal income tax expense    $ 16,080     $ 9,931     $ 58,227   
Deferred federal income tax (benefit) expense      (9,880 )     (1,850 )     3,617   
Amortization of accumulated deferred investment tax credits      (1,332 )     (1,380 )     (1,435 ) 
Total federal income tax expense      4,868       6,701       60,409   
Current state income tax expense      814       4,751       7,799   
Deferred state income tax expense      3,897       7,005       2,564   
Total state income tax expense      4,711       11,756       10,363   
Total federal and state income tax expense      9,579       18,457       70,772   

Items charged or credited directly to stockholders’ equity                          
Federal deferred      (1,200 )     (751 )     (500 ) 
State deferred      (194 )     (121 )     (81 ) 

Total tax benefit from items charged directly to stockholders’ equity      (1,394 )     (872 )     (581 ) 
Total federal and state income tax expense    $ 8,185     $ 17,585     $ 70,191   
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The balance of accumulated deferred federal and state income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009, and 2008, was comprised of the tax effect of the 

following.  
 

   
A portion of the deferred tax assets are the result of capital loss carryforwards which, if utilized, will result in tax benefits of $7.4 million.  If the capital loss 

carryforwards are not utilized, $4.1 million will expire in 2011, $1.5 million will expire in 2013, and $1.8 million will expire in 2014.  In addition, Cleco has a deferred tax 
asset resulting from new market tax credit carryforwards of $26.8 million that, if not utilized, will expire in 2029.  

Management considers it more likely than not that all deferred tax assets will be realized.  Consequently, deferred tax assets have not been reduced by a valuation 
allowance.  
   
Cleco Power  
Income tax expense is less than the amount computed by applying the statutory rate to income before tax, as follows.  
 

   
Information about current and deferred income tax expense is as follows.  

 

   
The balance of accumulated deferred federal and state income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2009, and 2008, was comprised of the tax effect of the 

following.  
 

   
A portion of the deferred tax assets are the result of capital loss carryforwards which, if utilized, will result in tax benefits of $7.4 million.  If the capital loss 

carryforwards are not utilized, $4.1 million will expire in 2011, $1.5 million will expire in 2013, and $1.8 million will expire in 2014.  
Management considers it more likely than not that all deferred tax assets will be realized.  Consequently, deferred tax assets have not been reduced by a valuation 

allowance.  
   
Uncertain Tax Positions  
Effective January 1, 2007, Cleco adopted the provisions of the authoritative guidance on accounting for uncertain tax positions.  With this adoption, Cleco classified all 
interest related to uncertain tax positions as a component of interest payable and interest expense.  The total amount of interest associated with tax positions at 
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, recognized on Cleco Corporation’s Consolidated Balance Sheets was $40.5 million, $26.3 million, and $18.3 million, 
respectively.  The total amount of interest associated with tax positions at December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, recognized on Cleco Power’s Balance Sheets was $22.2 
million, $15.9 million, and $10.3 million, respectively.  The total amount of interest expense related to uncertain tax positions for the years ended December 31, 2009, 
2008, and 2007, recognized on  
   

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

          AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Depreciation and property basis differences    $ (463,833 )   $ (405,967 ) 
Fuel costs      (13,215 )     (24,102 ) 
Mark-to-market      3,068       21,961   
Deferred carrying charges      55,033       32,104   
SERP – other comprehensive income      8,840       7,446   
Regulated operations regulatory asset (liability)      (75,363 )     (68,587 ) 
Postretirement benefits other than pension      9,068       25,233   
Other      22,307       (26,751 ) 

Accumulated deferred federal and state income taxes    $ (454,095 )   $ (438,663 ) 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS, EXCEPT FOR %)    2009     2008     2007   

Income before tax    $ 126,463     $ 141,788     $ 114,286   
Statutory rate      35.0 %     35.0 %     35.0 % 
Tax at federal statutory rate    $ 44,262     $ 49,625     $ 40,000   
Increase (decrease):                          

Plant differences, including AFUDC  flowthrough    $ (30,212 )   $ (27,208 )   $ (14,498 ) 
Amortization of investment tax credits    $ (1,332 )   $ (1,380 )   $ (1,435 ) 
State tax expense    $ 5,131     $ 8,243     $ 8,784   
Other    $ (2,552 )   $ (1,324 )   $ (3,238 ) 

Total tax expense    $ 15,297     $ 27,956     $ 29,613   

Effective Rate      12.1 %     19.7 %     25.9 % 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Current federal income tax expense    $ 11,920     $ 10,274     $ 42,099   
Deferred federal income tax expense (benefit)      912       5,920       (15,762 ) 
Amortization of accumulated deferred investment tax credits      (1,332 )     (1,380 )     (1,435 ) 
Total federal income tax expense      11,500       14,814       24,902   
Current state income tax expense      1,480       4,580       5,076   
Deferred state income tax  expense (benefit)      2,317       8,562       (365 ) 
Total state income tax expense      3,797       13,142       4,711   
Total federal and state income taxes    $ 15,297     $ 27,956     $ 29,613   

Items charged or credited directly to stockholders’ equity                          
Federal deferred      (620 )     (416 )     (159 ) 
State deferred      (100 )     (67 )     (26 ) 

Total tax benefit from items charged directly to  stockholders’ equity      (720 )     (483 )     (185 ) 
Total federal and state income tax expense    $ 14,577     $ 27,473     $ 29,428   

          AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Depreciation and property basis differences    $ (427,524 )   $ (360,932 ) 
Fuel costs      (13,228 )     (24,102 ) 
Mark-to-market      2,851       21,744   
Deferred carrying charges      55,044       32,104   
SERP - other comprehensive income      4,960       4,239   
Regulated operations regulatory asset (liability)      (75,363 )     (68,587 ) 
Postretirement benefits other than pension      (2,832 )     11,860   
Other      8,055       (20,707 ) 

Accumulated deferred federal and state income taxes    $ (448,037 )   $ (404,381 ) 

106 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 2639 of 9808



WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 2640 of 9808



   
the income statements of Cleco Corporation was $8.2 million, $3.2 million, and $4.1 million, respectively.  The total amount of interest expense related to uncertain tax 
positions for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, recognized on the income statements of Cleco Power was $3.3 million, $0.8 million, and $0.1 million, 
respectively.  The total liability for unrecognized tax benefits for Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power at December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 is shown in the following 
table:  
   
Cleco  

   
Cleco Power  

   
In the first quarter of 2008, Cleco and the IRS agreed to apply industry-wide guidelines as the basis for settling a potential dispute regarding the amount of indirect 

overhead costs required to be capitalized for tax purposes.  Based on acceptance of the settlement guidelines, Cleco recorded, in the first quarter of 2008, an estimated 
interest benefit of approximately $2.1 million.  

The federal income tax years that remain subject to examination by the IRS are 2001 through 2008.  The Louisiana state income tax years that remain subject to 
examination by the Louisiana Department of Revenue are 2000 through 2008.  

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2009, there were no decreases in unrecognized tax benefits relating to settlements or a lapse of the applicable 
statute of limitation.  Cleco is currently under audit by the IRS which has proposed adjustments to tax for issues such as depreciable tax lives, deductible storm costs, and 
deductible indirect overhead costs.  Cleco estimates that it is reasonably possible that the balance of unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2009 could decrease 
by a maximum of $55.0 million in the next twelve months as a result of reaching a settlement with the IRS.  The settlement could involve the payment of additional taxes, 
the adjustment of deferred taxes, and/or the recognition of tax benefits.  Cleco does not expect that any of these changes will have a material impact on its annual 
effective tax rate.  
   
Note 11 — Disclosures about Segments 

Cleco  
Cleco’s reportable segments are based on its method of internal reporting, which disaggregates business units by first-tier subsidiary.  Cleco’s reportable segments are 
Cleco Power and Midstream.  The reconciling items in the following tables consist of the holding company, a shared services subsidiary, two transmission interconnection 
facilities, and an investment subsidiary.    

Each reportable segment engages in business activities from which it earns revenue and incurs expenses.  Segment managers report periodically to Cleco’s Chief 
Executive Officer (the chief operating decision-maker) with discrete financial information and, at least quarterly, present discrete financial information to Cleco 
Corporation’s Board of Directors.  Each reportable segment prepared budgets for 2009 that were presented to and approved by Cleco Corporation’s Board of Directors.    

The financial results of Cleco’s segments are presented on an accrual basis.  Management evaluates the performance of its segments and allocates resources to 
them based on segment profit and the requirements to implement new strategic initiatives and projects to meet current business objectives.  Material intercompany 
transactions occur on a regular basis.  These intercompany transactions relate primarily to joint and common administrative support services provided by Support 
Group.  For information on these services, see Note 17 — “Affiliate Transactions.”  
 

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

(THOUSANDS)    

LIABILITY FOR 
UNRECOGNIZED 

TAX BENEFITS   

Balance at January 1, 2007    $ 62,319   
Reduction for tax positions of current period      (3,176 ) 
Additions for tax positions of prior years      32,074   
Reduction for tax positions of prior years      (14,965 ) 
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations      -  
Balance at December 31, 2007    $ 76,252   

Reduction for tax positions of current period      (4,367 ) 
Additions for tax positions of prior years      13,033   
Reduction for tax positions of prior years      -  
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations      -  
Balance at December 31, 2008    $ 84,918   

Reduction for tax positions of current period      (15,126 ) 
Additions for tax positions of prior years      59,443   
Reduction for tax positions of prior years      -  
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations      -  
Balance at December 31, 2009    $ 129,235   

(THOUSANDS)    

LIABILITY FOR 
UNRECOGNIZED 

TAX BENEFITS   

Balance at January 1, 2007    $ 30,857   
Reduction for tax positions of current period      (3,276 ) 
Additions for tax positions of prior years      32,074   
Reduction for tax positions of prior years      (9,563 ) 
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations      -  
Balance at December 31, 2007    $ 50,092   

Reduction for tax positions of current period      (2,589 ) 
Additions for tax positions of prior years      13,033   
Reduction for tax positions of prior years      -  
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations      -  
Balance at December 31, 2008    $ 60,536   

Reduction for tax positions of current period      (11,499 ) 
Additions for tax positions of prior years      35,323   
Reduction for tax positions of prior years      -  
Reduction for lapse of statute of limitations      -  
Balance at December 31, 2009    $ 84,360   
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CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

2009 (THOUSANDS)    CLECO POWER     MIDSTREAM     
RECONCILING 

ITEMS     ELIMINATIONS     CONSOLIDATED   

Revenue                                
Electric operations    $ 808,646     $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 808,646   
Other operations      33,558       1       102       (10 )     33,651   

Affiliate revenue      23       8,748       2,690       -      11,461   
Intercompany revenue      1,372       -      43,618       (44,990 )     -  
Operating revenue, net    $ 843,599     $ 8,749     $ 46,410     $ (45,000 )   $ 853,758   

Depreciation expense    $ 77,064     $ 177     $ 963     $ -    $ 78,204   
Interest charges    $ 58,562     $ 7,408     $ (9,717 )   $ (5,198 )   $ 51,055   
Interest income    $ 1,449     $ -    $ 5,261     $ (5,198 )   $ 1,512   
Equity (loss) income from investees    $ -    $ (19,339 )   $ 1,916     $ -    $ (17,423 ) 
Federal and state income tax expense (benefit)    $ 15,297     $ (11,027 )   $ 5,309     $ -    $ 9,579   

Segment profit (loss) (1)    $ 111,166     $ (17,730 )   $ 12,871     $ -    $ 106,307   

Additions to long-lived assets    $ 235,385     $ 55     $ 980     $ -    $ 236,420   
Equity investment in investees    $ 12,873     $ 223,652     $ 15,093     $ (1 )   $ 251,617   
Total segment assets    $ 3,363,962     $ 270,713     $ 383,058     $ (322,886 )   $ 3,694,847   

(1)   Reconciliation of segment profit to consolidated profit:    Segment profit                      $ 106,307           
    Unallocated items:                            
    Preferred dividends requirements                46           
    Net income applicable to common stock      $ 106,261           

2008 (THOUSANDS)    CLECO POWER     MIDSTREAM     
RECONCILING 

ITEMS     ELIMINATIONS     CONSOLIDATED   

Revenue                                
Electric operations    $ 1,032,970     $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 1,032,970   
Other operations      36,675       1       104       (12 )     36,768   

Affiliate revenue      29       7,920       2,511       -      10,460   
Intercompany revenue      2,008       -      41,615       (43,623 )     -  
Operating revenue, net    $ 1,071,682     $ 7,921     $ 44,230       (43,635 )   $ 1,080,198   

Depreciation expense    $ 76,420     $ 307     $ 1,149     $ -    $ 77,876   
Interest charges    $ 47,283     $ 6,978     $ 5,130     $ (6,991 )   $ 52,400   
Interest income    $ 3,943     $ -    $ 8,463     $ (6,989 )   $ 5,417   
Equity (loss) income from investees    $ -    $ (7,037 )   $ 1,495     $ -    $ (5,542 ) 
Federal and state income tax expense    $ 27,956     $ (7,182 )   $ (2,317 )   $ -    $ 18,457   

Segment profit (loss) (1)    $ 113,832     $ (10,017 )   $ (1,674 )   $ -    $ 102,141   

Additions to long-lived assets    $ 321,407     $ 64     $ 1,041     $ -    $ 322,512   
Equity investment in investees    $ -    $ 234,273     $ 14,871     $ -    $ 249,144   
Total segment assets    $ 3,041,597     $ 250,882     $ 324,232     $ (275,507 )   $ 3,341,204   

(1)   Reconciliation of segment profit to consolidated profit:    Segment profit                      $ 102,141           
    Unallocated items:                            
    Preferred dividends requirements                46           
    Net income applicable to common stock      $ 102,095           

108 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 2642 of 9808



 
   

 
Cleco Power  
Cleco Power is a vertically integrated, regulated electric utility operating within Louisiana and is viewed as one unit by management.  Discrete financial reports are 
prepared only at the company level.  This approach is consistent with the standards applicable to segment reporting as defined by the authoritative guidance on segment 
reporting.  
   
Note 12 — Electric Customer Credits 

Beginning in 1996, the amount of Cleco Power’s yearly retail earnings has been subject to the terms of a RSP established by Cleco Power and the LPSC in a 1996 
earnings review settlement. The 1996 RSP establishes a target return on common equity and requires all or a portion of regulated earnings for each yearly review period 
above the targeted regulatory rate of return on equity to be credited to Cleco Power’s customers.  

The terms of the 1996 RSP were approved by the LPSC in July 2006, and became effective October 1, 2006, in accordance with Cleco Power’s request to extend the 
RSP to the commercial operation date of Rodemacher Unit 3, which was February 12, 2010.  The 2006 RSP allowed Cleco Power the opportunity to earn a maximum 
regulated return on equity of 11.65%.  This maximum return was based on a return on equity of 11.25%, with any regulated earnings between 11.25% and 12.25% shared 
between shareholders and customers in a 40/60 ratio.  All regulated earnings over 12.25% will be returned to customers.  The amount of credits due customers, if any, is 
determined by Cleco Power and the LPSC annually, based on results for each 12-month period ended September 30.  The current RSP terms require the credits to be 
included on customers’ bills the following summer.     

The terms of the original 1996 LPSC RSP settlement, effective through September 30, 2006, allowed Cleco Power to retain all regulated earnings up to a 12.25% 
return on equity, and to share equally with customers, as credits on their bills, all regulated earnings between 12.25% and 13% return on equity.  All regulated earnings 
above a 13% return on equity were credited to customers.  This effectively allowed Cleco Power the opportunity to realize a regulatory rate of return up to 12.625%.    

Cleco’s reported earnings for the 12-month period ended December 31, 2006, increased due to reversals of previously accrued credits of $4.7 million.  
The $4.7 million reversal of previously accrued credits mentioned above was the result of two events. The first event was the April 2006 settlement of issues raised in 

the LPSC’s review of Cleco Power’s RSP filings for the 12-month periods ended September 30, 2002, 2003, and 2004. Based on the terms of the settlement, Cleco 
Power reversed previously accrued customer credits of $3.2 million in the first quarter of 2006, and refunded $1.3 million as credits on customers’ September 2006 utility 
bills. In this proceeding, the LPSC also reserved the right to further review Cleco Power’s calculation of working capital included in the filings. Cleco Power reached an 
agreement of the working capital issue with the LPSC, reversed previously accrued customer credits of $0.3 million in December 2006, and refunded an additional $3.2 
million of previously accrued credits to customers in March 2007.  

The second event was the April 2006 filing by Cleco Power of its required RSP monitoring report for the 12-month period ended September 30, 2005. Based on the 
reassessment of amounts filed in this monitoring report, the results of the Staff’s review as discussed above, and projections for the year 2006, Cleco Power reversed in 
the first quarter of 2006, an additional $1.2 million of customer credits previously accrued for the 12-months ended September 30, 2005, and 2006.  

The Staff completed the review of Cleco Power’s RSP monitoring reports for the 12-month periods ended September 30, 2005 and 2006, during 2007. The Staff’s 
reports indicated that no customer refunds were due for these periods based on the filings. In January 2008, Cleco Power filed its monitoring report for the 12-month 
period ended September 30, 2007.    

In November 2009, the Staff completed their review of the September 30, 2007 monitoring report.  The Staff’s reports  
   

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

2007 (THOUSANDS)    CLECO POWER     MIDSTREAM     
RECONCILING 

ITEMS     ELIMINATIONS     CONSOLIDATED   

Revenue                                
Electric operations    $ 988,193     $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 988,193   
Other operations      35,176       16       108       (15 )     35,285   

Affiliate revenue      42       5,050       2,046       -      7,138   
Intercompany revenue      2,008       -      43,063       (45,071 )     -  
Operating revenue, net    $ 1,025,419     $ 5,066     $ 45,217     $ (45,086 )   $ 1,030,616   

Depreciation expense    $ 78,522     $ 306     $ 1,076     $ -    $ 79,904   
Interest charges    $ 29,565     $ 19,053     $ 8,265     $ (18,917 )   $ 37,966   
Interest income    $ 5,422     $ 1,047     $ 24,197     $ (18,912 )   $ 11,754   
Equity income from investees    $ -    $ 91,581     $ 1,567     $ -    $ 93,148   
Federal and state income tax expense    $ 29,613     $ 36,585     $ 4,712     $ (138 )   $ 70,772   

Segment profit (1)    $ 84,673     $ 59,317     $ 7,799     $ -    $ 151,789   

Additions to long-lived assets    $ 492,445     $ 10     $ 984     $ -    $ 493,439   
Equity investment in investees    $ -    $ 249,758     $ 8,342     $ 1     $ 258,101   
Total segment assets    $ 2,306,482     $ 265,918     $ 459,139     $ (324,916 )   $ 2,706,623   

(1)   Reconciliation of segment profit to consolidated profit:    Segment profit                      $ 151,789           
    Unallocated items:                            
    Preferred dividends  requirements                458           
    Net income applicable to common stock      $ 151,331           
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indicated that no customer refunds were due for this period based on the filings.  
In June 2009, Cleco Power filed its monitoring report for the 12-month period ended September 30, 2008.  In January 2010, the Staff completed its review and 

indicated no customer refunds were due for this period.  In January 2010, Cleco Power also filed its monitoring report for the 12-month period ended September 30, 2009, 
and Cleco Power anticipates the LPSC will complete its review in the first quarter of 2010.  

Cleco Power’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009, and 2008 reflect the following accruals for estimated electric customer credits.  
 

   
The amounts reported under the line item other deferred credits relate to potential fuel audit issues and currently are not due.  All customer credits relating to Cleco 

Power’s RSP were recorded as a reduction in revenue due to the nature of the credits.  The accruals were based upon the original 1996 settlement, the modified terms of 
the RSP extension, the 2004 resolution of the 2001 through 2002 fuel audit, annual issues as agreed to between Cleco and the LPSC, and Cleco’s assessment of issues 
that remain outstanding.  

In February 2006, the LPSC approved Cleco Power’s request to recover storm restoration costs incurred for Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.  As part of this approval, the 
LPSC required that effective during the interim recovery period (Phase I), which began with the May 2006 billing cycle, Cleco Power’s portion of the shared regulated 
earnings between the 12.25% and 13.00% allowed return on equity (between 11.25% and 12.25% effective October 1, 2006) be credited against outstanding Hurricanes 
Katrina and Rita storm restoration costs, rather than being shared between shareholders and customers.  In September 2007, as a result of Phase II of the LPSC Staff’s 
review of storm restoration costs, the LPSC approved a settlement agreement between Cleco Power and the LPSC Staff allowing recovery of essentially all of Cleco 
Power’s Hurricanes Katrina and Rita storm costs. As part of the agreement, Cleco Power will continue to forgo its share of any excess earnings calculated according to 
the term of the current RSP (unless modified in a subsequent base rate proceeding).  As of December 31, 2009, Cleco Power had not credited any earnings against storm 
restoration costs.  For information concerning this agreement, see Note 3 — “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities.”    
   
Note 13 — Equity Investment in Investees 

Cleco reports its investment in Acadia, Evangeline, and certain other subsidiaries on the equity method of accounting.  Under the equity method, the assets and liabilities 
of these entities are reported as equity investment in investees on Cleco Corporation’s Consolidated Balance Sheets.  The revenue and expenses (excluding income 
taxes) of these entities are netted and reported as equity income or loss from investees on Cleco Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Income.  

Equity investment in investees at December 31, 2009, represents primarily Midstream’s $178.4 million investment in Acadia, owned 50% by APH and 50% by Cajun, 
and its $45.3 million investment in Evangeline, owned 100% by Midstream.  Equity investment in investees also represents a $12.9 million investment in Oxbow, owned 
50% by Cleco Power and 50% by SWEPCO, along with a $7.4 million investment in Attala and a $7.7 million investment in Perryville, both owned 100% by Cleco 
Corporation.  Equity investments which are less than 100% owned by Cleco Innovations LLC represent less than $0.1 million of the total balance.  

The following table presents the equity (loss) income from each investment accounted for using the equity method.  
 

   
For the year ended December 31, 2007, APH’s equity income included net proceeds of $78.2 million from the settlement of the Calpine bankruptcy claims.  It also 

included $60.0 million of priority distributions received at the closing of the sale of CAH’s 50% equity ownership interest in Acadia, partially offset by a $45.8 million other-
than-temporary impairment of the carrying value of the investment in Acadia at the APH level.  For more information on these claims, see Note 20 — “Calpine Bankruptcy 
Settlement.”  

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on consolidations, Cleco reported its investments in Evangeline, Perryville, and Attala on the equity method of 
accounting and reflected net operating results in the equity income (loss) from investees’ line during 2009 and prior years presented.  Effective January 1, 2010, the 
requirements for consolidation changed.  On and after January 1, 2010, the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and cash flows of these entities will be presented in 
the appropriate line items of the consolidated financial statements.    
   
Acadia  
At December 31, 2009, since Acadia was owned 50% by APH and 50% by Cajun, APH was not the primary beneficiary, and Acadia was accounted for as an equity 
method investment.  Cleco’s assessment of its maximum exposure to loss related to Acadia at December 31, 2009, consisted of its equity investment of $178.4 
million.  The table below presents the components of Midstream’s equity investment in Acadia.  
 

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

    AT DECEMBER 31,    
(THOUSANDS)    2009      2008    

Provision for rate refund    $ 2     $ 2   
Other deferred credits      -      1,933   

Total customer credits    $ 2     $ 1,935   

          FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Acadia    $ (17,243 )   $ (11,217 )   $ 80,344   
Evangeline      (2,096 )     4,180       11,237   
Other subsidiaries 100% owned by Cleco Corporation      1,908       1,496       1,546   
Subsidiaries less than 100% owned by Cleco Corporation      8       (1 )     21   

Total equity (loss) income    $ (17,423 )   $ (5,542 )   $ 93,148   
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The $78.2 million non-cash distribution is the distribution of the CES claim from Acadia to APH.  The cash distributions of $136.5 million were used to pay interest and 

repay principal on a loan from Cleco Corporation relating to this investment.  Midstream’s equity, as reported on the balance sheet of Acadia at December 31, 2009, was 
$204.5 million.  The difference between the $204.5 million and the equity investment in investee of $178.4 million as shown in the previous table is $26.1 million, and 
consists of the $45.8 million other-than-temporary impairment of APH’s investment in Acadia, partially offset by $19.7 million of interest capitalized on funds contributed by 
Acadia.    

The table below contains summarized financial information for Acadia.  
 

 

   
Other expense at December 31, 2009, includes $10.8 million of property, plant and equipment retirements and removals.  
Income taxes recorded on APH’s financial statements related to Midstream’s 50% ownership interest in Acadia were benefits of $9.7 million and $7.4 million for the 

years ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively, and $34.3 million expense for the year ended December 31, 2007.  The 2007 income tax expense at APH was 
primarily due to the settlement of Acadia’s pre-petition unsecured claims against CES and Calpine.  

In 2009, Cleco Power announced Acadia was selected as the winning bidder in Cleco Power’s 2007 long-term request for capacity beginning in 2010.  Cleco Power 
will own and operate one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units and will also operate the other unit on behalf of Acadia or a future owner.  At December 31, 2009, the carrying 
value of the unit and the related materials and supplies inventory were considered assets held for sale.  No gain or loss had been recorded, as the fair value less the costs 
to sell were greater than the carrying value, and the transaction had not yet been completed.  

Cleco Power and the parties executed the definitive agreements in 2009, and received LPSC and FERC approvals for the transaction in January 2010 and February 
2010, respectively.  Beginning in January 2010, Acadia operated the plant and served Cleco Power under a tolling agreement covering 50% of the Acadia Power 
Station.  The tolling agreement was approved by the LPSC in October 2009 and by FERC in December 2009.  The tolling agreement was terminated when the transaction 
closed in February 2010.  For more information regarding the Cleco Power transaction, see Note 23 — “Subsequent Events — Acadia Transaction.”  

In October 2009, Acadia and Entergy Louisiana announced that definitive agreements had been executed whereby Entergy Louisiana would acquire 50% of Acadia 
or one of its two 580-MW units.  The carrying value of this unit and the related material and supplies inventory are also considered assets held for sale.  No gain or loss 
has been recorded, as the fair value less the costs to sell are greater than the carrying value, and the transaction has not yet been completed.  The transaction is 
anticipated to be completed in late 2010 or early 2011.    

The agreements provide that, beginning in May 2010, Acadia will serve Entergy Louisiana under a tolling agreement covering 50% of Acadia until the transaction is 
completed.  Until May 2010, this portion of Acadia’s output is being sold through an energy management services agreement with a third party marketer.  Both the asset 
sale and interim tolling agreement require regulatory approval.  Cleco Power will continue to operate both units at Acadia after the Entergy Louisiana transaction is 
completed.  

In connection with these transactions and in exchange for reasonable consideration, APH has agreed to indemnify, upon the closing of the transactions, Cajun and its 
affiliates against 100% of Acadia’s liabilities and other obligations related to both the Cleco Power and Entergy Louisiana transactions.  
   
Evangeline  
Since its inception, Cleco has had 100% ownership and voting interest of Evangeline.  Through an analysis of variable interests, such as Cleco’s investment, the long-
term debt, the tolling counterparty, and the potential to absorb expected losses and gains, Cleco has determined that it is not the primary beneficiary.  At December 31, 
2009, the determination was driven by several factors such as:  
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INCEPTION TO DATE (THOUSANDS)    
AT DECEMBER 31, 

2009   

Contributed assets (cash and land)    $ 275,956   
Net income      143,200   
Impairment of investment      (45,847 ) 
Capitalized interest and other      19,722   

Less:  non-cash distribution      78,200   
Less:  cash distributions      136,464   

Total equity investment in investee    $ 178,367   

    AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Current assets    $ 10,800     $ 5,413   
Property, plant and equipment, net      403,622       405,565   

Total assets    $ 414,422     $ 410,978   

Current liabilities    $ 5,437     $ 1,380   
Partners’ capital      408,985       409,598   

Total liabilities and partners’ capital    $ 414,422     $ 410,978   

          FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Operating revenue    $ 50,546     $ 74,002     $ 63,549   
Gain on settlement      -      -      170,200   
Operating expenses      74,207       96,681       87,266   
Other (expense) income      (10,825 )     (71 )     63   

(Loss) income before taxes    $ (34,486 )   $ (22,750 )   $ 146,546   

�   The tolling counterparty was at risk to absorb market losses and gains, which are primarily determined by the relative price of electricity and natural gas.  
�   The debt was non-recourse to Cleco; therefore, the debt-holders main security is the underlying assets of Evangeline.  
�   Cleco’s risk of loss was limited to its investment plus the $15.0 million letter of credit issued on behalf of the tolling counterparty.  
�   The size of Evangeline’s debt compared to the size of Cleco’s investment at risk.    
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Since Cleco was not the primary beneficiary, Evangeline was accounted for as an equity method investment.  
Cleco’s current assessment of its maximum exposure to loss related to Evangeline at December 31, 2009, consists of its equity investment of $45.3 million and $15.0 

million of possible draws on the letter of credit Cleco has posted on Evangeline’s behalf, for a total of $60.3 million.  The following table presents the components of 
Midstream’s equity investment in Evangeline.  
 

   
The following tables contain summarized financial information for Evangeline.  

 

 

   
The difference between the equity investment in investee and member’s deficit shown in the tables above is due to income tax items being reported in the 

corresponding tax accounts on Midstream’s financial statements, rather than the equity investment account.  
Cleco Corporation had posted a $15.0 million letter of credit on behalf of the Evangeline Tolling Agreement counterparty.  The letter of credit could be drawn in the 

event Evangeline defaulted on the tolling agreement.  
Evangeline’s restricted cash at December 31, 2009, and 2008, was $30.1 million and $25.0 million, respectively.  This cash is restricted under Evangeline’s Senior 

Secured bond indenture.  
Interest charges at December 31, 2009, include a $12.1 million adjustment for items related to uncertain tax positions.  
Income taxes recorded on Midstream’s financial statements related to Midstream’s 100% ownership interest in Evangeline were a benefit of $0.7 million for the year 

ended December 31, 2009, and expense of $1.0 million and $4.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  
Prior to November 9, 2007, all of the capacity and output of the power plant had been tolled to Williams, which paid Evangeline certain fixed and variable amounts.  In 

November 2007, The Williams Companies, Inc. assigned all of its rights and interests in its tolling agreement with Evangeline to Bear Energy.  In May 2008, JPMorgan 
Chase & Co. completed the acquisition of The Bear Stearns Companies Inc., the parent company of Bear Energy.  In September 2008, Bear Energy was merged into 
JPMVEC.  On February 22, 2010, Evangeline and JPMVEC terminated the Evangeline Tolling Agreement and executed the Evangeline 2010 Tolling Agreement.  As a 
result, Cleco Corporation’s obligation under the standby letter of credit issued to JPMVEC was terminated.  For more information regarding the Evangeline Tolling 
Agreement, see Note 15 — “Litigation, Other Commitments and Contingencies, and Disclosures about Guarantees — Risks and Uncertainties” and Note 23 — 
“Subsequent Events — Evangeline Transactions.”  
   
Oxbow  
In December 2009, Cleco Power purchased 50% of Oxbow from NAC for $12.9 million.  Oxbow will provide lignite reserves to fuel the Dolet Hills Power Station.  DHLC 
will operate the mine.  

Since Oxbow is owned 50% by Cleco Power and 50% by SWEPCO, Cleco Power is not the primary beneficiary, and Oxbow is accounted for as an equity method 
investment.  Cleco’s current assessment of its maximum exposure to loss related to Oxbow at December 31, 2009, consists of its equity investment of $12.9 million.  The 
table below presents the components of Cleco Power’s equity investment in Oxbow.  
 

   
   

   
There was no 2009 income statement activity for Oxbow.  

   
Other Subsidiaries 100% owned by Cleco Corporation  
The information about these entities is aggregated because their method of operation, size, and risk are materially similar.  Both entities own transmission assets, provide 
transmission services to one customer under a long-term contract at a FERC-approved cost of service rate, and are capitalized with 100% equity.  

Through an analysis of variable interests, such as Cleco’s investment and the single counterparty that has a long-term lease of the facilities, Cleco has determined 
that it is not the  
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INCEPTION TO DATE (THOUSANDS)    
AT DECEMBER 31, 

2009   

Contributed assets (cash)    $ 49,961   
Net income      149,503   

Less:  non-cash distributions      25,125   
Less:  cash distributions      129,054   

Total equity investment in investee    $ 45,285   

    AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Current assets    $ 20,727     $ 25,836   
Accounts receivable - affiliate      12       1   
Property, plant and equipment, net      183,208       180,051   
Other assets      47,915       42,528   

Total assets    $ 251,862     $ 248,416   

Current liabilities      26,960     $ 19,984   
Accounts payable - affiliate      819       1,242   
Long-term debt, net      153,564       161,762   
Other liabilities      80,957       74,461   
Member’s deficit      (10,438 )     (9,033 ) 

Total liabilities and member’s deficit    $ 251,862     $ 248,416   

          FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Operating revenue    $ 59,852     $ 59,978     $ 59,307   
Operating expenses      25,943       31,921       22,792   
Depreciation      5,535       5,371       5,232   
(Loss) gain on disposal of assets      (2 )     1       (1,293 ) 
Interest charges      28,675       17,918       20,077   
Other (expense) income      (1,793 )     (589 )     1,324   
(Loss) income before taxes    $ (2,096 )   $ 4,180     $ 11,237   

INCEPTION TO DATE (THOUSANDS)    
AT DECEMBER 31, 

2009   

Purchase price    $ 12,873   
Total equity investment in investee    $ 12,873   

(THOUSANDS)    
AT DECEMBER 

31,2009   

Current assets    $ 976   
Property, plant and equipment, net      24,770   

Total assets    $ 25,746   

Partners’ capital    $ 25,746   
Total liabilities and partners’ capital    $ 25,746   
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primary beneficiary of either entity.  The determination is driven by several factors such as:  
   

   
Since Cleco is not the primary beneficiary, the investments in Perryville and Attala are accounted for as equity method investments.  
Cleco’s current assessment of its maximum exposure to loss with respect to Perryville and Attala at December 31, 2009, consists of its equity investment of $15.1 

million.  The following table presents the components of Cleco Corporation’s equity investment in Perryville and Attala.  
 

   
The following tables contain summarized financial information for Perryville and Attala.  

 

 

   
The difference between the equity investment in investee and member’s equity shown in the tables above is due to income tax items being reported in the 

corresponding tax accounts on Cleco Corporation’s financial statements, rather than the equity investment account.  
The transmission assets utilized by Perryville and Attala are accounted for as direct financing leases and are included in other assets in the summarized financial 

information above.  
Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2009, includes $0.5 million of interest related to amended tax returns.  
Income tax expense recorded on Cleco’s financial statements related to Cleco Corporation’s 100% interest in Perryville and Attala was $0.7 million, $0.6 million, and 

$0.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  
   
Note 14 — Operating Leases 

The following is a schedule of operating leases that Cleco maintains in the ordinary course of business activities.  The majority of Cleco’s operating leases are for line 
construction and operating vehicles and for railcars for coal deliveries, both utilized by Cleco Power.  The remaining leases provide for office and operating facilities and 
office equipment.  These leases have various terms and expiration dates.  The following table is a summary of expected operating lease payments for Cleco Corporation 
and Cleco Power for the years indicated.  
 

   
Cleco’s operating leases for line construction and maintenance vehicles have a term of seven years with an additional one-year renewal.  The lease payment is 

determined by taking the equipment’s original cost multiplied by the adjusted rental factor.  Contingent rents are based on the change in the LIBOR rate at May 15, 2001, 
compared to December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, lease expenses of $1.4 million, $1.5 million, and $1.6 
million, respectively, were recognized.  Contingent rents were less than $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  

The railcar leases are divided into two groups.  The first group has 120 railcars, and the lease expires on March 31, 2021.  The second group of railcars has 121 cars, 
and the lease expires on March 31, 2017.  Cleco Power pays a monthly rental fee per car.  For each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, an 
operating lease expense of $1.1 million was recognized.  The railcar leases do not contain contingent rent payments.  

Cleco’s operating leases for vehicles, office and operating facilities, and office equipment have lease terms from three to ten years.  The monthly lease payment is 
determined by summing the monthly equipment amortization with the lowest monthly interest rate multiplied by the amortized value.  Contingent rents are calculated by 
comparing the difference between the lowest rate at December 1984 to the lowest rate at December 2009, 2008, and 2007.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 
2008, and 2007, lease expenses of $6.5  
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�   Each entity has only one customer under the long-term agreements accounted for as direct financing leases.  
�   Both entities can only charge FERC-approved tariffs.  
�   Both entities have the ability to change the tariff if actual expenses are materially different than expected expenses.  
�   The lease counterparty is required to make lease payments regardless of the use of the assets.  
�   Cleco’s risk of loss is limited to its investment.  

INCEPTION TO DATE (THOUSANDS)    
AT DECEMBER 31, 

2009   

Contributed assets (cash)    $ 132,960   
Net income      56,073   

Less:  non-cash distributions      20,963   
Less:  cash distributions      152,988   

Total equity investment in investee    $ 15,082   

          AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Current assets    $ 5,361     $ 4,905   
Other assets      13,815       14,166   

Total assets    $ 19,176     $ 19,071   

Current liabilities    $ 132     $ 9   
Accounts payable - affiliate      79       2   
Other liabilities      822       484   
Member’s equity      18,143       18,576   

Total liabilities and member’s equity    $ 19,176     $ 19,071   

          FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Operating revenue    $ 1,959     $ 1,976     $ 1,833   
Operating expenses      586       479       279   
Other income (expense)      34       -      (3 ) 
Interest income (expense)      501       (1 )     (5 ) 
Income before taxes    $ 1,908     $ 1,496     $ 1,546   

          YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,   

    CLECO     CLECO         
(THOUSANDS)    CORPORATION     POWER     TOTAL   

2010    $ 158     $ 9,354     $ 9,512   
2011      158       8,759       8,917   
2012      73       7,514       7,587   
2013      5       6,978       6,983   
2014      5       1,333       1,338   
Thereafter      4       6,829       6,833   

Total operating lease payments    $ 403     $ 40,767     $ 41,170   
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million, $1.8 million, and $1.3 million, respectively, were recognized.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, contingent rents were $0.5 million, $0.2 
million, and less than $0.1 million, respectively.  

On November 14, 2008, Cleco Power was notified by GE Capital Commercial, Inc. that it was electing to terminate the lease agreement pertaining to company 
vehicles and other equipment.  Pursuant to the terms of the lease agreement, the termination date was effective January 13, 2009, sixty days from the date of 
notice.  Cleco Power had one year from the termination date to enter into a new operating lease with a third party and/or negotiate the sale of such equipment.  The 
purchase of vehicles and equipment under the lease agreement was finalized in November 2009.  For more information regarding operating leases, see Note 15 — 
“Litigation, Other Commitments and Contingencies, and Disclosures about Guarantees — Other Contingencies — CBL Capital Corporation.”  
   
Note 15 — Litigation, Other Commitments and Conting encies, and Disclosures about Guarantees 

Litigation  
On June 22, 2005, the City of Alexandria, Louisiana (the City), a current wholesale municipal customer of Cleco Power, filed a lawsuit in Ninth Judicial District Court 
against Cleco Corporation, Cleco Power, and certain other subsidiaries.  The lawsuit alleged unspecified damages as a result of certain sales made to the City, revenue 
derived by Cleco using the City’s power generating facilities under contracts with the City, and other alleged improper conduct, including, without limitation, allegations 
that Cleco fraudulently mishandled the management of the City’s power requirements under the contracts.  The lawsuit was removed to the U.S. District Court for the 
Western District of Louisiana.  On February 23, 2010, the Alexandria City Council approved a settlement of the case which included a $3.0 million litigation expense 
reimbursement to the City and a new five-year, energy-only power supply agreement.  The supply agreement may be extended, at Cleco Power’s option, for two 
additional one-year terms.  If the City performs its obligations under the new power supply agreement, then Cleco will pay a one-time $6.5 million performance bonus at 
the end of the five-year term to the City.  The court dismissed the case with prejudice on February 24, 2010.  

In October 2007, Cleco received a Special Notice for Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study from the EPA.  The special notice requested that Cleco 
Corporation and Cleco Power, along with many other listed potentially responsible parties, enter into negotiations with the EPA for the performance of a Remedial 
Investigation and Feasibility Study at an area known as the Devil’s Swamp Lake just northwest of Baton Rouge, Louisiana.  The EPA has identified Cleco as one of many 
companies sending PCB wastes for disposal to the site.  The Devil’s Swamp Lake site has been proposed to be added to the National Priorities List (NPL) based on the 
release of PCBs to fisheries and wetlands located on the site.  The EPA has yet to make a final determination on whether to add Devil’s Swamp Lake to the NPL.  The 
EPA and a number of PRPs met in January 2008, for an organizational meeting to discuss the background of the site.  The PRPs began discussing a potential proposal to 
the EPA in February 2008.  Negotiations among the PRPs and the EPA are ongoing in regard to the remedial investigation and feasibility study at the Devil’s Swamp site, 
with little progress having been made since the January 2008 meeting.  The PRPs alleged to have disposed PCBs at the site have proposed a tentative cost sharing 
formula with the facility owner to fund the remedial investigation.  The response to the proposal has been pending for months.  Since this investigation is in the preliminary 
stages, management is unable to determine whether the costs associated with possible remediation of the facility site will have a material adverse effect on the 
Registrants’ results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.  

On December 11, 2009, a complaint was filed in the U.S. District Court for the Western District of Louisiana on behalf of eight current employees and four former 
employees alleging that Cleco discriminated against each of them on the basis of race.  Each is seeking various remedies provided under applicable statutes prohibiting 
racial discrimination in the workplace, and together, the plaintiffs seek monetary compensation exceeding $35.0 million.  Management believes this lawsuit will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Registrants’ financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  

Cleco is involved in regulatory, environmental, and legal proceedings before various courts, regulatory commissions, and governmental agencies regarding matters 
arising in the ordinary course of business.  Some of these proceedings, such as fuel review and environmental issues, could involve substantial amounts.  Management 
regularly analyzes current information and, as necessary, provides accruals for probable liabilities on the eventual disposition of these matters.  Management believes the 
disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Registrants’ financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.  
   
Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and Disclosures about  Guarantees  
Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power have entered into various off-balance sheet commitments, in the form of guarantees and standby letters of credit, in order to facilitate 
their activities and the activities of Cleco Corporation’s subsidiaries and equity investees (affiliates).  Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power also have agreed to contractual 
terms that require them to pay third parties if certain triggering events occur.  These contractual terms generally are defined as guarantees in the authoritative guidance.    

Cleco Corporation entered into these off-balance sheet commitments in order to entice desired counterparties to contract with its affiliates by providing some measure 
of credit assurance to the counterparty in the event Cleco’s affiliates do not fulfill certain contractual obligations.  If Cleco Corporation had not provided the off-balance 
sheet commitments, the desired counterparties may not have contracted with Cleco’s  
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affiliates, or may have contracted with them at terms less favorable to its affiliates.  

The off-balance sheet commitments are not recognized on Cleco’s Consolidated Balance Sheets, because it has been determined that Cleco’s affiliates are able to 
perform these obligations under their contracts and that it is not probable that payments by Cleco will be required.  Some of these commitments reduce borrowings 
available to Cleco Corporation under its credit facility pursuant to the terms of the credit facility.  Cleco’s off-balance sheet commitments as of December 31, 2009, are 
summarized in the following table, and a discussion of the off-balance sheet commitments follows the table.  The discussion should be read in conjunction with the table 
to understand the impact of the off-balance sheet commitments on Cleco’s financial condition.  
 

   
Cleco Corporation provided a limited guarantee and an indemnification to Entergy Louisiana and Entergy Gulf States for Perryville’s performance, indemnity, 

representation, and warranty obligations under the Sale Agreement, the Power Purchase Agreement, and other ancillary agreements related to the sale of the Perryville 
facility.  As of December 31, 2009, the aggregate guarantee of $177.4 million is limited to $42.4 million due to the performance of some of the underlying obligations that 
were guaranteed.  Management believes it is unlikely that Cleco Corporation will have any other liabilities which would give rise to indemnity claims.  The discounted 
probability-weighted liability under the guarantees and indemnifications as of December 31, 2009, was $0.3 million.  

Prior to February 22, 2010, if Evangeline failed to perform certain obligations under its tolling agreement, Cleco Corporation would have been required to make 
payments to the Evangeline Tolling Agreement counterparty.  Cleco Corporation’s obligation under the Evangeline commitment was in the form of a standby letter of 
credit from investment grade banks and was limited to $15.0 million.  Ratings triggers did not exist in the Evangeline Tolling Agreement.  Evangeline met its obligations 
under the tolling agreement and Cleco Corporation was not required to make payments to the counterparty.  The letter of credit was issued under Cleco Corporation’s 
credit facility and therefore reduced the amount that could be borrowed under the credit facility.  On February 22, 2010, Evangeline entered into the Evangeline 2010 
Tolling Agreement and as a result this letter of credit was terminated.  For additional information, see Note 23 — “Subsequent Events — Evangeline Transactions.”  

In January 2006, Cleco Corporation provided a $0.5 million guarantee to Entergy Mississippi for Attala’s obligations under the Interconnection Agreement.  This 
guarantee will be effective through the life of the agreement.  

The State of Louisiana allows employers of certain financial net worth to self-insure their workers’ compensation benefits.  Cleco Power has a certificate of self-
insurance from the Louisiana Office of Workers’ Compensation and is required to post a $3.5 million letter of credit, an amount equal to 110% of the average losses over 
the previous three years, as surety.  

As part of the Lignite Mining Agreement amended in 2009, Cleco Power and SWEPCO, joint owners of Dolet Hills, have agreed to pay the lignite miner’s loan and 
lease principal obligations when due, if the lignite miner does not have sufficient funds or credit to pay.  Any amounts paid on behalf of the miner would be credited by the 
lignite miner against the next invoice for lignite delivered.  At December 31, 2009, Cleco Power recorded a liability of $3.8 million related to the amended agreement.  The 
lignite mining contract is in place until 2026 and does not affect the amount Cleco Corporation can borrow under its credit facility.    

The following table summarizes the expected termination date of the guarantees and standby letters of credit discussed above.  
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AT DECEMBER 31, 

2009   

                      
REDUCTIONS TO 

THE   

                      
AMOUNT 

AVAILABLE   

                      TO BE DRAWN ON   

    FACE           NET     
CLECO 

CORPORATION’S   
(THOUSANDS)    AMOUNT     REDUCTIONS     AMOUNT     CREDIT FACILITY   

Cleco Corporation                          
Guarantee issued to Entergy companies for performance obligations of Perryville    $ 177,400     $ 135,000     $ 42,400     $ -  
Obligations under standby letter of credit issued to the Evangeline Tolling Agreement 
counterparty      15,000       -      15,000       15,000   
Guarantee issued to Entergy Mississippi on behalf of Attala      500       -      500       -  

Cleco Power                                  
Obligations under standby letter of credit issued to the Louisiana Department of Labor      3,525       -      3,525       -  

Total    $ 196,425     $ 135,000     $ 61,425     $ 15,000   

                      AT DECEMBER 31, 2009   

          AMOUNT OF COMMITMENT EXPIRATION PER PERIOD   

    NET                       MORE   

    AMOUNT     LESS THAN                 THAN   
(THOUSANDS)    COMMITTED     ONE YEAR     1-3 YEARS     3-5 YEARS     5 YEARS   

Guarantees    $ 42,900     $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 42,900   
Standby letters of credit      18,525       3,525       -      -      15,000   

Total commercial commitments    $ 61,425     $ 3,525     $ -    $ -    $ 57,900   
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In its bylaws, Cleco Corporation has agreed to indemnify directors, officers, agents and employees who are made a party to a pending or completed suit, arbitration, 
investigation, or other proceeding whether civil, criminal, investigative or administrative, if the basis of inclusion arises as the result of acts conducted in the discharge of 
their official capacity.  Cleco Corporation has purchased various insurance policies to reduce the risks associated with the indemnification.  In its Operating Agreement, 
Cleco Power provides for the same indemnification as described above with respect to its managers, officers, agents, and employees.  

Generally, neither Cleco Corporation nor Cleco Power has recourse that would enable them to recover amounts paid under their guarantee or indemnification 
obligations.  The one exception is the insurance contracts associated with the indemnification of directors, managers, officers, agents, and employees.  There are no 
assets held as collateral for third parties that either Cleco Corporation or Cleco Power could obtain and liquidate to recover amounts paid pursuant to the guarantees.  
 
Long-Term Purchase Obligations  
Cleco Corporation had no unconditional long-term purchase obligations at December 31, 2009.  Cleco Power has several unconditional long-term purchase obligations 
related to the purchase of coal, petroleum coke, limestone, energy capacity, and energy delivery facilities.  The aggregate amount of payments required under such 
obligations at December 31, 2009, is as follows.  
 

   
Payments under these agreements for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $43.5 million, $31.6 million, and $27.8 million, respectively.  

 
Other Contingencies  
   
General Electric Services Corporation  
Cleco Power has entered into an operating lease agreement with General Electric Equipment Services Corporation for leasing railcars in order to transport coal to 
Rodemacher Unit 2.  The lease contains a provision for early termination, along with an associated termination fee.  The termination provision can only be exercised in 
December 2010.  If exercised by Cleco Power, the termination fee would be approximately $1.3 million.  At this time, Cleco Power has no plans to early terminate this 
lease, which expires in March 2017.  
   
CBL Capital Corporation  
Cleco Power entered into an operating lease agreement with CBL Capital Corporation, which was acquired by GE Capital Commercial, Inc. (GE Capital).  This was a 
master leasing agreement for company vehicles and other equipment.  On November 14, 2008, Cleco Power was notified by GE Capital that it was electing to terminate 
the lease.  Pursuant to the terms of the lease agreement, the termination date was effective January 13, 2009.  Cleco Power had one year from the termination date to 
enter into a new operating lease with a third party and/or negotiate the purchase of such equipment for the unamortized balance.  The purchase of vehicles and 
equipment under the lease agreement was finalized in November 2009 for approximately $5.7 million.  
   
New Market Tax Credits  
In August 2008, Cleco Corporation acquired a 99.9% membership interest in U.S. Bank New Market Tax Credit Fund 2008-1 LLC (the Fund).  The Fund was formed by 
U.S. Bancorp Community Development Corporation (USBCDC).  The purpose of the Fund is to invest in projects located in qualified active low-income communities that 
are underserved by typical debt capital markets.  These investments will generate new market tax credits and historical rehabilitation tax credits.  

In December 2009, the operating agreement was amended to allow the Fund to invest in projects entitled to receive energy credits of approximately $80.0 million.  In 
connection with the 2009 amendment, USBCDC, through its parent U.S. Bank, will guarantee an internal rate of return target based on a stipulated utilization of credits by 
the Fund.  

The tax credits serve to reduce the federal income tax obligations of Cleco Corporation.  Cleco Corporation will make $298.7 million of equity contributions to the 
Fund and receive approximately $304.7 million of net tax benefits from the Fund over the life of the investment.  The following table shows future equity contributions.  
 

   
Of the $270.7 million, $35.9 million is due to be paid within the next twelve months.  The investment and associated debt are presented on the balance sheet, net in 

other deferred credits due to the right of offset.  
The equity contribution does not contain a stated rate of interest.  Cleco has recorded the liability and investment at its calculated fair value within the framework of 

the authoritative guidance.  In order to calculate the fair value, management used an imputed rate of interest assuming that Cleco obtained financing of a similar nature 
from a third party.  The imputed rate was used in a net present value model in order to calculate the fair value of the remaining portion of the delayed equity 
contributions.  The table below contains the disclosures required by the authoritative guidelines for equity investments with an imputed interest.  
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YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31,    (THOUSANDS)   

2010    $ 57,923   
2011      58,842   
2012      47,992   
2013      44,077   
2014      16,660   

Total long-term purchase obligations    $ 225,494   

(THOUSANDS)    CONTRIBUTION   

2010    $ 35,871   
2011      39,469   
2012      34,916   
2013      32,640   
2014      11,295   
Thereafter      116,558   
     Total    $ 270,749   
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The gross investment amortization expense is recognized over a ten-year period using the cost method in accordance with the authoritative guidance for 

investments.  
   
Fuel Transportation Agreement  
Cleco Power has entered into an agreement that meets the accounting definition of a capital lease for barges in order to transport petroleum coke and limestone to 
Rodemacher Unit 3.  The 42 dedicated barges were delivered in January and February 2009.    

The lease rate contains a fixed fee of $225 per day per barge and a variable component of $75 adjusted by Producer Price Index (PPI) annually for executory 
costs.  If the barges are idle, the lessor is required to attempt to sublease the barges to third parties, with the revenue reducing Cleco Power’s lease payment.  During the 
year ended December 31, 2009, Cleco Power paid approximately $4.3 million in lease payments and did not receive any revenue from subleases.  

The initial term of this agreement is five years and unless renewed, the agreement will terminate on December 31, 2013.  Cleco Power has an option to renew this 
agreement for a second five-year term in full or in part and, at its option, purchase any or all of the dedicated barges.  If Cleco Power does not renew this agreement for 
the renewal term, then the lessor has the option to require Cleco Power to purchase any or all of the barges.  If Cleco Power purchases the barges on December 31, 
2013, the purchase price of all 42 barges will be $21.7 million.  

This agreement contains a provision for early termination upon the occurrence of any one of four cancellation events.  
The following is an analysis of the leased property under capital leases by major classes:  

 

   
The amount listed as Other in the chart above includes a capital lease agreement for miscellaneous equipment by Cleco Power.  This lease terminates on December 

31, 2010.  
The following is a schedule by years of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as 

of December 31, 2009.  
   

   
During the year ended December 31, 2009, Cleco Power incurred immaterial amounts of contingent rent related to the increase in the PPI.  

   
Oxbow Lignite Mine Acquisition  
In April 2009, Cleco Power entered into an agreement with SWEPCO to purchase Oxbow from NAC.  In September 2009, the LPSC approved the joint application 
authorizing the acquisition of Oxbow.  On December 29, 2009, Cleco Power and SWEPCO completed the transaction.  Cleco Power’s 50% portion of the purchase price 
for the lignite reserves was $12.9 million.  SWEPCO likewise paid $12.9 million for its 50% interest in the lignite reserves.  SWEPCO’s subsidiary, DHLC, acquired the 
mining equipment and related assets and permits for $15.6 million and will operate the new mine along with its current operations at the Dolet Hills Lignite Mine on similar 
terms.  The recoverable lignite reserves of approximately 100 million tons contained within the Oxbow Mine permit area, together with the reserves from the Dolet Hills 
Lignite Mine, are expected to be sufficient to fuel the Dolet Hills Power Station until at least 2026.  The existing Red River Lignite Supply and Transportation Agreement 
with NAC terminated upon the closing of this transaction.    
   
Rodemacher Unit 3  
In August 2005, Cleco Power entered into an EPC contract with Shaw to construct Rodemacher Unit 3.  Cleco Power began construction of Rodemacher Unit 3 in May 
2006.  In May 2006, Cleco Power and Shaw entered into an Amended EPC Contract, which provided for substantial completion of construction of Rodemacher Unit 3 by 
September 30, 2009.    

Pursuant to various amendments, in October 2009, Cleco Power and Shaw again amended the EPC contract to extend the substantial completion date to September 
28, 2009.  Various claims remain in dispute resolution between Cleco Power and Shaw including the claims for force majeure related costs, which have been agreed upon 
as not to exceed $24.0 million less a settlement credit of $6.0 million, plus various outstanding claims relating to fuel moisture and water and steam quality.  The 
Registrants do not believe the resolution of these claims will have a material adverse effect on the Registrants’ results of operations, financial condition, or cash flows.  
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(THOUSANDS)        
Equity contributions, imputed interest rate 6%        

Principal payment schedule above:    $ 270,749   
Less:  unamortized discount      59,689   

Total    $ 211,060   

          AT DECEMBER 31,   
CLASSES OF PROPERTY (THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Barges    $ 22,050     $ -  
Other      555       555   

Total capital leases      22,605       555   
Less: accumulated amortization      2,537       342   

Net capital leases    $ 20,068     $ 213   

(THOUSANDS)        
Years ending December 31,        
2010    $ 4,748   
2011      4,622   
2012      4,634   
2013      4,622   
2014      4,622   
Thereafter      18,499   
Total minimum lease payments    $ 41,747   

Less:  executory costs      10,558   
Net minimum lease payments    $ 31,189   

Less:  amount representing interest      10,315   
Present value of net minimum lease payments    $ 20,874   

Current liabilities    $ 1,636   
Non-current liabilities    $ 19,238   
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Acadia Transactions  
In February 2009, Cleco Power announced that it had chosen the acquisition of 50% of the Acadia Power Station, or one of its two 580-MW units, as the lowest bid in its 
2007 long-term RFP for capacity beginning in 2010.  Cleco Power will own and operate one unit and operate the other 580-MW unit on behalf of Acadia or a future 
owner.  Cleco Power and the parties executed the definitive agreements in 2009, and received LPSC and FERC approvals for the transaction in January 2010 and 
February 2010, respectively.  Beginning in January 2010, Acadia operated the plant and served Cleco Power under a tolling agreement covering 50% of the Acadia 
Power Station.  The tolling agreement was approved by the LPSC in October 2009 and by FERC in December 2009.  In February 2010, Cleco Corporation obtained a 
consent from its credit facility lenders relating to transactions included in the future sale of 50% of the Acadia Power Station to Cleco Power.  Cleco Corporation paid the 
lenders $0.1 million for the consent, which will be included in interest expense.  In February 2010, the transaction closed and the tolling agreement was terminated.  For 
more information regarding the Cleco Power transaction, see Note 23 — “Subsequent Events — Acadia Transaction.”  

In October 2009, Acadia and Entergy Louisiana announced that definitive agreements had been executed whereby Entergy Louisiana would acquire 50% of the 
Acadia Power Station, or one of its two 580-MW units.  The transaction is anticipated to be completed in late 2010 or early 2011.  The agreements provide that, beginning 
in May 2010, Acadia will serve Entergy Louisiana under a tolling agreement covering 50% of the Acadia Power Station until the transaction is completed.  Both the asset 
transaction and interim tolling agreement require regulatory approval.  Cleco Power will operate both units at Acadia Power Station after the Entergy Louisiana transaction 
is completed.    

In connection with these transactions and in exchange for reasonable consideration, APH has agreed to indemnify, upon the closing of these transactions, Cajun and 
its affiliates against 100% of Acadia’s liabilities and other obligations related to both the Cleco Power and Entergy Louisiana transactions.  
   
Other  
Cleco has accrued for liabilities to third parties, employee medical benefits, and storm damages.  
   
Risks and Uncertainties  
   
Cleco Corporation  
Cleco Corporation could be subject to possible adverse consequences if Cleco’s counterparties fail to perform their obligations or if Cleco Corporation or its affiliates are 
not in compliance with loan agreements or bond indentures.    
   
Evangeline Tolling Agreement  
JPMorgan Chase & Co. guaranteed JPMVEC’s obligations under the Evangeline Tolling Agreement and also is guaranteeing JPMVEC’s obligations under the Evangeline 
2010 Tolling Agreement.    

On February 22, 2010, Evangeline and JPMVEC terminated the Evangeline Tolling Agreement and executed the Evangeline 2010 Tolling Agreement.  As a result, 
Cleco Corporation’s obligation under the standby letter of credit issued to JPMVEC was terminated.  For additional information regarding the new tolling agreement, see 
Note 23 — “Subsequent Events — Evangeline Transactions.”  
   
Other  
Access to capital markets is a significant source of funding for both short- and long-term capital requirements not satisfied by operating cash flows.  Recent market 
conditions have limited the availability and have increased the costs of capital for many companies.  The inability to raise capital on favorable terms could negatively affect 
Cleco Corporation’s and Cleco Power’s ability to maintain and expand their businesses.  After assessing the current operating performance, liquidity, and credit ratings of 
Cleco, management believes that Cleco will have access to the capital markets at prevailing market rates for companies with comparable credit ratings.  At December 31, 
2009, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s outlooks for Cleco Corporation were stable.  If Cleco Corporation’s credit ratings were to be downgraded by Moody’s and Standard 
& Poor’s, Cleco Corporation would be required to pay additional fees and higher interest rates under its bank credit and other debt agreements.  

Changes in the regulatory environment or market forces could cause Cleco to determine its assets have suffered an other-than-temporary decline in value, whereby 
an impairment would be required to be taken and Cleco’s financial condition could be materially adversely affected.  
   
Cleco Power  
Cleco Power supplies a portion of its customers’ electric power requirements from its own generation facilities.  In addition to power obtained from power purchase 
agreements, Cleco Power purchases power from other utilities and marketers to supplement its generation at times of relatively high demand or when the purchase price 
of power is less than its own cost of generation.  Due to its location on the transmission grid, Cleco Power relies on two main suppliers of electric transmission when 
accessing external power markets.  At times, constraints limit the amount of purchased power these transmission providers can deliver into Cleco Power’s service 
territory.  

Access to capital markets is a significant source of funding for both short- and long-term capital requirements not satisfied by operating cash flows.  Recent market 
conditions have limited the availability and have increased the costs of capital for many companies.  The inability to raise capital on favorable terms could negatively affect 
Cleco Power’s ability to maintain and expand its businesses.  After assessing the current operating performance, liquidity, and credit ratings of Cleco Power, management 
believes that Cleco Power will have access to the capital markets at prevailing market rates for  
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companies with comparable credit ratings.  In November 2009, Moody’s downgraded Cleco Power’s credit rating by one level.  This downgrade placed Cleco Power’s 
credit rating at Moody’s at a similar level to Cleco Power’s credit rating at Standard & Poor’s.  Cleco Power pays fees and interest under its bank credit agreements based 
on the highest rating held.  If Cleco Power’s credit ratings were to be downgraded by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, Cleco Power would be required to pay additional 
fees and higher interest rates under its bank credit agreements.  Cleco Power’s collateral for derivatives is based on the lowest rating held.  If Cleco Power’s credit ratings 
were to be downgraded by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, Cleco Power would be required to pay additional collateral for derivatives.  

In August 2005, Cleco Power entered into an EPC contract with Shaw to construct Rodemacher Unit 3.  In May 2006, Cleco Power and Shaw entered into an 
Amended EPC Contract.  Under the terms of the Amended EPC Contract until final acceptance of Rodemacher Unit 3, in the event Cleco Power does not maintain a 
senior unsecured credit rating of either: (i) Baa3 or better from Moody’s or (ii) BBB- or better from Standard & Poor’s, Cleco Power will be required to provide a letter of 
credit to Shaw in the amount of $20.0 million.  In the event of further downgrade to both of its credit ratings to:  (i) Ba2 or below from Moody’s, and (ii) BB or below from 
Standard & Poor’s, Cleco Power will be required to provide an additional $15.0 million letter of credit to Shaw.  
   
Note 16 — FERC Staff Investigations and LPSC Fuel A udit 

FERC Staff Investigations  
In July 2003, FERC issued an order approving a Consent Agreement between the FERC Staff and Cleco that settled the FERC investigation following Cleco’s disclosure 
in November 2002 of certain energy marketing and trading practices.  The terms of the Consent Agreement, effective on August 24, 2003, included, but were not limited 
to: (i) filing revised codes of conduct by Cleco’s public utility subsidiaries that impose more stringent restrictions on affiliate relations; (ii) implementation of a Compliance 
Plan for FERC regulatory compliance; and (iii) payment of certain penalties and remedies, including payment of a $0.8 million civil penalty to FERC.  

In November 2005, after a review of Cleco’s October 2005 quarterly compliance report, the FERC Staff initiated a preliminary, non-public investigation into certain 
representations made by Cleco.  In response to data requests from the FERC Staff, Cleco provided information regarding those representations, as well as compliance 
with the Code of Conduct and Compliance Plan contained in the Consent Agreement. The information primarily concerned the possible sharing of employees and 
information among Cleco’s subsidiaries, as well as the accuracy of information furnished to the FERC Staff in connection with reporting on compliance with the Consent 
Agreement.  In June 2007, FERC issued an order approving a Stipulation and Consent Agreement between Cleco and the FERC’s Office of Enforcement which 
completely resolved these matters.  FERC’s investigation was terminated, and Cleco was released of any further claims arising from such investigation.  Cleco agreed to 
pay a one-time civil penalty of $2.0 million and adhere to the Compliance Plan.  In June 2007, Cleco paid the penalty, the payment of which was not passed through, 
directly or indirectly, to any existing or future customers.  
   
LPSC Fuel Audit  
The LPSC Fuel Adjustment Clause General Order issued November 6, 1997, in Docket No. U-21497 provides that an audit will be performed not less than every other 
year.  Cleco Power currently has fuel adjustment clause filings for 2003 through 2008 subject to audit.  In July 2006, the LPSC informed Cleco Power that it was planning 
to conduct a periodic fuel audit that included fuel adjustment clause filings for January 2003 through December 2004.  In March 2009, the LPSC indicated its intent to 
proceed with the audit for the years 2003 through 2008.  The total amount of fuel expenses included in the audit is approximately $3.2 billion.  The audit is expected to 
proceed in the first quarter of 2010.  Cleco Power could be required to make a substantial refund of previously recorded revenue as a result of these audits, and such 
refund could result in a material adverse effect on the Registrants’ results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows.  
   
Note 17 — Affiliate Transactions 

Cleco  
Cleco has affiliate balances that were not eliminated as of December 31, 2009.  The balances were not eliminated due to the use of the equity method of accounting for 
Evangeline, Perryville, Attala, and Acadia.  For information on these affiliates, see Note 13 — “Equity Investment in Investees.”  

Effective July 1, 1999, Cleco entered into service agreements with affiliates that provide Cleco access to professional services and goods.  Services and goods 
provided by Cleco Power are charged at management’s estimate of fair market value or fully loaded cost, whichever is higher.  Services provided to Cleco Power are 
charged at management’s estimate of fair market value or fully loaded cost, whichever is lower, with the exception of Support Group, which charges only fully loaded cost 
in order to comply with Cleco’s affiliate policy.  

Affiliate goods and services received by Cleco primarily involve services provided by Support Group and Generation Services.  Support Group provides joint and 
common administrative support services in the areas of information technology; finance, cash management, accounting and auditing; human resources; corporate 
communications; project consulting; risk management; strategic and corporate development; legal, ethics and regulatory compliance; facilities management; supply chain 
and inventory management and other administrative services.  Generation Services provides electric power plant operations and maintenance expertise.  Following is a 
summary of charges from each affiliate included in Cleco Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Income.  
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Following is a reconciliation of Cleco affiliate revenue.  

 

   
Cleco had the following affiliate receivable and payable balances associated with the service agreements between Cleco and its affiliates.  
   

   
Cleco Power  
Effective July 1, 1999, Cleco Power entered into service agreements with affiliates that provide Cleco Power access to professional services and goods.  The services 
and goods are charged to Cleco Power at management’s estimate of fair market value or fully loaded cost, whichever is lower, with the exception of Support Group, which 
charges only fully loaded cost in order to comply with Cleco’s affiliate policy.    

Affiliate goods and services received by Cleco Power primarily involve services provided by Support Group.  Support Group provides joint and common 
administrative support services in the areas of information technology; finance, cash management, accounting and auditing; human resources; corporate communications; 
project consulting; risk management; strategic and corporate development; legal, ethics and regulatory compliance; facilities management; supply chain and inventory 
management and other administrative services.  A summary of charges from each affiliate included in Cleco Power’s Consolidated Statements of Income follows.  
   
 

   
Cleco Power also entered into agreements to provide goods and services to affiliated companies.  The goods and services are charged by Cleco Power at fully 

loaded cost or management’s estimate of fair market value, whichever is higher, in order to comply with Cleco’s affiliate policy.  The majority of the services provided by 
Cleco Power to affiliates relates to the lease of office space to Support Group.  Following is a reconciliation of Cleco Power’s affiliate revenue.  
 

   
Cleco Power had the following affiliate receivable and payable balances associated with the service agreements between Cleco Power and its affiliates.  
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    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Support Group                    
Fuel purchased    $ -    $ 4     $ 2   
Other operations    $ 2,417     $ 2,155     $ 1,712   
Maintenance    $ 38     $ 112     $ 184   
Taxes other than income taxes    $ (18 )   $ (10 )   $ 1   
Other expenses    $ 17     $ 17     $ 4   

Cleco Power                          
Other operations    $ 29     $ 34     $ 43   
Maintenance    $ 30     $ 8     $ 46   

Generation Services                          
Other operations    $ 3,365     $ 3,143     $ 1,800   
Maintenance    $ 4,157     $ 3,810     $ 2,310   

CLE Intrastate                          
Fuel purchased    $ 917     $ 913     $ 892   

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Evangeline    $ 5,999     $ 6,057     $ 5,928   
Perryville      81       11       43   
Attala      3       3       2   
Acadia      5,378       4,389       1,165   

Total    $ 11,461     $ 10,460     $ 7,138   

                AT DECEMBER 31,   

          2009           2008   

    ACCOUNTS     ACCOUNTS     ACCOUNTS     ACCOUNTS   
(THOUSANDS)    RECEIVABLE     PAYABLE     RECEIVABLE     PAYABLE   

Evangeline    $ 11,396     $ 2,362     $ 3,029     $ 8,228   
Perryville      102       -      2       -  
Attala      54       -      -      -  
Acadia      577       8       397       1   

Total    $ 12,129     $ 2,370     $ 3,428     $ 8,229   

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Support Group                    
Other operations    $ 36,593     $ 34,316     $ 36,305   
Maintenance    $ 1,916     $ 1,792     $ 2,600   
Taxes other than income taxes    $ (199 )   $ (175 )   $ 121   
Other expenses    $ 1,080     $ 940     $ 749   
Interest charges    $ -    $ 2     $ 5   
Income taxes    $ -    $ -    $ 116   

Diversified Lands                          
Other expenses    $ 4     $ 65     $ 73   

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Support Group    $ 1,352     $ 1,979     $ 1,980   
Midstream      20       28       28   
Evangeline      22       29       42   
Acadia      1       1       -  

Total    $ 1,395     $ 2,037     $ 2,050   

                AT DECEMBER 31,   

          2009           2008   

    ACCOUNTS     ACCOUNTS     ACCOUNTS     ACCOUNTS   
(THOUSANDS)    RECEIVABLE     PAYABLE     RECEIVABLE     PAYABLE   

Cleco Corporation    $ 11     $ 19,191     $ -    $ 856   
Support Group      2,698       6,741       1,973       6,679   
Midstream      9       1       9       -  
Evangeline      45       2       44       1   
Generation Services      30       2       22       -  
Diversified Lands      5       -      10       -  
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During 2009, Cleco Power made $30.0 million of distribution payments to Cleco Corporation.  There were no distributions from Cleco Power to Cleco Corporation 

during 2008 or 2007.  
Cleco Power received no equity contributions from Cleco Corporation in 2009 or 2008.  During 2007, Cleco Power received equity contributions of $85.0 million from 

Cleco Corporation.  
Affiliates that participate in the defined benefit pension plan sponsored by Cleco Power transfer their liability and an equal amount of cash on a periodic basis to 

Cleco Power.  The following table shows the amounts transferred by affiliates during 2009 and 2008.  
 

Acadia      36       3       -      -  
Others      2       -      1       -  

Total    $ 2,836     $ 25,940     $ 2,059     $ 7,536   
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Note 18 — Intangible Asset 

During the first quarter of 2008, Cleco Katrina/Rita acquired a $177.5 million intangible asset which includes $176.0 million for the right to bill and collect storm recovery 
charges from customers of Cleco Power and $1.5 million of financing costs.  This intangible asset is expected to have a life of 12 years, but could have a life of up to 15 
years depending on the time period required to collect the required amount from Cleco Power’s customers.  The intangible asset is being amortized according to the 
estimated collections from Cleco Power’s customers.  At the end of its life, this asset will have no residual value.  During the twelve months ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008, Cleco Katrina/Rita recognized amortization expense of $10.7 million and $9.7 million, respectively.  For additional information on Cleco Katrina/Rita storm costs 
and securitization, see Note 3 — “Regulatory Assets and Liabilities — Deferred Storm Restoration Costs - Katrina/Rita.”  The following tables provide additional 
information about this intangible asset.  
 

 

   
Note 19 — Storm Restoration 

In September 2008, Cleco Power’s distribution and transmission systems sustained substantial damage from two separate hurricanes.  The damage to equipment from 
both storms required replacement, as well as repair of existing assets.    

On September 1, 2008, Hurricane Gustav made landfall in southeastern Louisiana as a Category 2 hurricane, causing power outages to approximately 246,000, or 
90%, of Cleco Power’s electric customers and affecting Cleco Power’s entire service territory.  By September 9, 2008, power was restored to all customers who lost 
service after Hurricane Gustav.  Hurricane Gustav’s restoration costs were approximately $66.1 million, of which 58.6%, or $38.7 million, was capitalized.  

On September 13, 2008, Hurricane Ike made landfall in southeast Texas as a Category 2 hurricane, affecting power service to approximately 80,000 of Cleco 
Power’s electric customers in Cleco Power’s southern service territory.  By September 16, 2008, restoration efforts for all customers whose service could be reconnected 
were complete.  Hurricane Ike’s restoration costs were approximately $12.6 million, of which 63.5%, or $8.0 million, was capitalized.  

With approval from the LPSC, the remaining uncapitalized costs were offset against Cleco Power’s existing storm damage reserves.  
   
Note 20 — Calpine Bankruptcy Settlement 

Bankruptcy Proceedings  
In December 2005, the Calpine Debtors filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code in the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court.  Prior to Cajun’s 
purchase, CAH, a wholly owned subsidiary of Calpine and one of the Calpine Debtors, owned a 50% interest in Acadia, and APH owned the other 50% interest in Acadia.  

In December 2005, the Calpine Debtors filed a motion with the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court seeking to reject the Calpine Tolling Agreements.  In March 2006, 
the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court entered an order permitting Acadia to suspend its obligations to CES under the Calpine Tolling Agreements in view of CES’s non-
performance of the agreements.  
   
Settlement Agreement  
In April 2007, Cleco announced that a settlement agreement had been reached with Calpine, subject to the approval of the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court, which 
resolved issues related to the Acadia Power Station.  The settlement included the fixing of Acadia’s claims against the Calpine Debtors and an agreement by the parties 
to certain bidding procedures (Bidding Procedures) which governed the sale of CAH’s interest in Acadia and certain related assets (collectively, the CAH Assets).  In May 
2007, the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court approved the terms of the settlement and entered orders approving the Claims Settlement Agreement and the Bidding 
Procedures Order.    

The Claims Settlement Agreement addressed Acadia’s outstanding claims against the Calpine Debtors.  Under the Claims Settlement Agreement, Acadia received a 
pre-petition general unsecured claim against each of CES and Calpine (as guarantor of CES’s obligations under the Calpine Tolling Agreements) for $185.0 million.  

In May 2007, APH sold its claims of $85.0 million against CES and Calpine to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. at 92% of face value.  The pre-tax proceeds from this sale 
were $78.2 million which was included in APH’s equity income.  

The Bidding Procedures Order set forth the procedures governing the sale of the CAH Assets.  Under the Bidding Procedures Order, APH agreed to serve as the 
“stalking horse bidder” for the CAH Assets.  APH’s agreement was subject to certain terms and conditions, including payment to APH of a $2.9 million break-up fee in the 
event APH was not the successful purchaser.  APH and CAH entered into a purchase agreement whereby APH agreed to purchase the CAH Assets for $60.0 million plus 
assumed liabilities, subject to any higher or better offers.  
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    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Support Group    $ 1,606     $ 1,320   
Generation Services      199       153   
Midstream      39       15   

Total    $ 1,844     $ 1,488   

(THOUSANDS)    
AT DECEMBER 31, 

2009   

Gross carrying amount    $ 177,537   
Accumulated amortization      20,439   
Intangible asset    $ 157,098   

(THOUSANDS)        
Expected amortization expense        

For the twelve months ending December 31, 2010    $ 11,538   
For the twelve months ending December 31, 2011    $ 12,330   
For the twelve months ending December 31, 2012    $ 13,167   
For the twelve months ending December 31, 2013    $ 14,026   
For the twelve months ending December 31, 2014    $ 14,931   
After 2014    $ 91,106   
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The Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court approved the transfer of the operations, maintenance and project management functions of the Acadia Power Station to 

subsidiaries of Midstream upon the closing of the CAH asset sale.  A subsidiary of Calpine had been performing these functions since the Acadia Power Station became 
operational.  
   
Acadia Auction Results  
In July 2007, CAH conducted an auction for the CAH Assets.  APH participated in the auction.  At the conclusion of the auction, Cajun emerged as the successful bidder, 
with a price of $189.0 million.    

In September 2007, after all regulatory approvals were received, the sale of CAH’s Assets to Cajun was completed.  At the closing of the sale, APH received an 
$85.0 million payment from Cajun for the agreed upon value of the priority and guaranteed distributions, plus a $2.9 million break-up fee and other expense 
reimbursements. This $85.0 million payment is separate from APH’s $85.0 million pre-petition unsecured claim that it sold in May 2007.  APH also acquired, for $1.25 
million (subject, in certain circumstances, to reduction), Calpine’s interest in Acadia’s claim against Cleco Power regarding a potential electric metering error at the Acadia 
Power Station.  APH recognized this as other expense on Cleco’s Consolidated Statements of Income.  

At the completion of the sale, management reviewed the carrying value of APH’s 50% ownership in Acadia.  Using Calpine’s sale as a market indicator of value, APH 
recognized an impairment charge of $45.8 million, which is the difference between the $234.8 million carrying value and the $189.0 million market value.  The impairment 
charge is reflected in equity income from investees on Cleco’s Consolidated Statements of Income.  

As a result of the closing and the subsequent settlement of future priority distribution payments owed to APH, the Acadia LLC Agreement was amended to remove 
APH’s priority distribution rights and give each member (APH and Cajun) a 50% ownership and economic interest in Acadia.    
   
Note 21 — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are summarized below for both Cleco and Cleco Power.  Where applicable, transactions are reported net of 
income taxes.  
 
   
Cleco  

   
Cleco Power  

   
 

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

(THOUSANDS)    

HOLDING GAINS ON 
AVAILABLE 
FOR SALE 

SECURITIES     
LOSSES AND PRIOR 

 SERVICE COST     

NET GAIN (LOSS) 
ARISING 

DURING PERIOD     

NET GAINS ON 
CASH 

FLOW HEDGES     

TOTAL ACCUMULATED 
OTHER 

COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) 
GAIN   

Balance, December 31, 2007    $ 73     $ (9,419 )   $ 955     $ -    $ (8,391 ) 
Current-period change      (73 )     (215 )     (1,154 )     -      (1,442 ) 
Balance, December 31, 2008    $ -    $ (9,634 )   $ (199 )   $ -    $ (9,833 ) 

Current-period change      -      (160 )     (3,403 )     2,105       (1,458 ) 
Balance, December 31, 2009    $ -    $ (9,794 )   $ (3,602 )   $ 2,105     $ (11,291 ) 

(THOUSANDS)    
LOSSES AND PRIOR 

SERVICE COST     

NET GAIN (LOSS) 
ARISING 

DURING PERIOD     

NET GAINS ON 
CASH 

FLOW HEDGES     

TOTAL ACCUMULATED 
OTHER 

COMPREHENSIVE 
(LOSS) GAIN   

Balance, December 31, 2007    $ (4,835 )   $ 423     $ -    $ (4,412 ) 
Current-period change      (431 )     (333 )     -      (764 ) 
Balance, December 31, 2008    $ (5,266 )   $ 90     $ -    $ (5,176 ) 

Current-period change      (433 )     (2,168 )     2,106       (495 ) 
Balance, December 31, 2009    $ (5,699 )   $ (2,078 )   $ 2,106     $ (5,671 ) 
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Note 22 — Miscellaneous Financial Information (Unau dited) 

Cleco  
Quarterly information for Cleco for 2009 and 2008 is shown in the following tables.  
 

 

   
Cleco Corporation’s common stock is listed for trading on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol “CNL.”  Cleco Corporation’s preferred stock is not 

listed on any stock exchange.  On December 31, 2009, Cleco had 6,752 common shareholders and 86 preferred shareholders, as determined from the records of the 
transfer agent.  

On January 29, 2010, Cleco Corporation’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.225 per share payable on February 15, 2010, to common 
shareholders of record at the close of business on February 8, 2009.  Preferred dividends also were declared payable March 1, 2010, to preferred shareholders of record 
at the close of business on February 16, 2010.  

The Board of Directors of Cleco Corporation has approved a dividend policy that will increase its quarterly dividend rate, subject to future dividend declarations, from 
$0.225 per common share to $0.25 per common share beginning with the dividend payable May 15, 2010.  
   
Cleco Power  
Quarterly information for Cleco Power for 2009 and 2008 is shown in the following tables.  
 

 

   
Note 23 — Subsequent Events 

As of February 25, 2010, management has evaluated the potential recognition or disclosure of events or transactions that occurred in the period after the balance sheet 
date of December 31, 2009.  The date February 25, 2010, represents the date that Cleco issued the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009.  
   
Rodemacher Unit 3  
On February 12, 2010, Cleco Power began commercial operations of Rodemacher Unit 3 and began using the new retail rate plan approved by the LPSC in October 
2009.  
   
Cleco Corporation Debt Issuance  
On February 19, 2010, Cleco Corporation entered into a $150.0 million aggregate principal amount one-year bank term loan, which matures in 2011.  The interest rate for 
the bank term loan was one-month LIBOR plus 2.75%.    
   
Evangeline Transactions  
On February 22, 2010, Evangeline and JPMVEC entered into the Evangeline Restructuring Agreement where the parties agreed to terminate the existing Evangeline 
Tolling Agreement and enter into the Evangeline 2010 Tolling Agreement, effective March 1, 2010.  The other significant terms of the Evangeline Restructuring 
Agreement are:  
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                      2009   

    1ST     2ND     3RD     4TH   
(THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)    QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER   

Operating revenue    $ 212,936     $ 207,226     $ 241,500     $ 192,096   
Operating income    $ 17,238     $ 31,867     $ 40,677     $ 17,027   
Net income applicable to common stock    $ 6,638     $ 27,014     $ 59,843     $ 12,766   
Basic net income per average share    $ .11     $ .45     $ .99     $ .21   
Diluted net income per average common share    $ .11     $ .45     $ .99     $ .21   
Dividends paid per common share    $ .225     $ .225     $ .225     $ .225   
Closing market price per share                                  

High    $ 22.65     $ 22.16     $ 25.07     $ 27.99   
Low    $ 18.52     $ 19.72     $ 21.35     $ 24.16   

                      2008   

    1ST     2ND     3RD     4TH   
(THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)    QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER   

Operating revenue    $ 222,551     $ 274,787     $ 343,675     $ 239,185   
Operating income    $ 26,747     $ 33,709     $ 35,564     $ 18,857   
Net income applicable to common stock    $ 22,060     $ 29,377     $ 37,121     $ 13,537   
Basic net income per average share    $ .37     $ .49     $ .62     $ .22   
Diluted net income per average common share    $ .37     $ .49     $ .62     $ .22   
Dividends paid per common share    $ .225     $ .225     $ .225     $ .225   
Closing market price per share                                  

High    $ 27.18     $ 24.73     $ 26.88     $ 25.37   
Low    $ 21.12     $ 21.91     $ 23.08     $ 20.11   

                      2009   

    1ST     2ND     3RD     4TH   
(THOUSANDS)    QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER   

Operating revenue    $ 210,299     $ 204,688     $ 239,135     $ 189,477   
Operating income    $ 16,876     $ 33,073     $ 40,651     $ 20,862   
Net income    $ 15,018     $ 30,206     $ 43,552     $ 22,390   

                      2008   

    1ST     2ND     3RD     4TH   
(THOUSANDS)    QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER     QUARTER   

Operating revenue    $ 220,450     $ 272,889     $ 341,342     $ 237,001   
Operating income    $ 28,182     $ 35,514     $ 36,569     $ 20,701   
Net income    $ 27,608     $ 32,662     $ 30,538     $ 23,024   

�   The tolling agreement is a market-based tolling agreement, for Evangeline’s generating Units 6 and 7, ending December 31, 2011, with an option for JPMVEC to 
extend the term through December 31, 2012.  The agreement also gives Evangeline the right to terminate its Unit 6 obligations prior to the expiration of the term;  

�   $126.6 million of Evangeline’s 8.82% Senior Secured bonds due 2019, owned by JPMVEC, were transferred to Evangeline and subsequently retired; and $5.3 
million of accrued interest associated with the bonds transferred to Evangeline was eliminated;  

�   JPMVEC paid Evangeline $56.7 million; and  
�   JPMVEC returned Cleco Corporation’s $15.0 million letter of credit issued under the Evangeline Tolling Agreement and the letter of credit was terminated.  
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The termination of the Evangeline Tolling Agreement was considered a termination of an operating lease and a triggering event requiring an asset impairment 

analysis.  The $56.7 million cash payment from JPMVEC was partially a settlement of the $26.9 million operating lease asset that represented the straight line recognition 
of a fixed escalation.  Management is currently evaluating the asset impairment analysis on Evangeline’s assets and related CLE Intrastate assets which at January 31, 
2010, had a carrying value of $182.8 million and $0.8 million, respectively.    

The terms of the Evangeline Restructuring Agreement, Evangeline issued an irrevocable redemption notice to call the remaining $35.2 million of 8.82% Senior 
Secured bonds outstanding, and paid the debt holders $1.5 million of accrued interest and a $10.2 million make-whole payment.  As a result of the debt retirement, 
Evangeline will expense $2.2 million in unamortized debt issuance costs associated with the Evangeline bonds.  The Evangeline bonds were non-recourse to Cleco 
Corporation and redemption of the bonds is permitted under Cleco Corporation’s revolving credit facility.  Under the redemption of the bonds, $30.1 million of restricted 
cash will be released to Evangeline.  Management is currently evaluating the result of any gain or loss resulting from these transactions.  

Evangeline is contained within the Midstream segment where the impacts to these transactions will be reflected.  In accordance with the authoritative guidance, 
effective January 1, 2010, the financial results for Evangeline will no longer be presented as equity income, but presented in the appropriate line items in the consolidated 
financials of Midstream.  
   
Acadia Transaction  
On February 23, 2010, the acquisition by Cleco Power of one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units, the related materials and supplies, and half of its common facilities was 
completed.  The significant terms of the transaction are:  
   

   
City of Alexandria Settlement  
On February 23, 2010, the Alexandria City Council approved a settlement of the case which included a $3.0 million litigation expense reimbursement to the City and a 
new five-year, energy-only power supply agreement.  The supply agreement may be extended, at Cleco Power’s option, for two additional one-year terms.  If the City 
performs its obligations under the new power supply agreement, then Cleco will pay a one-time $6.5 million performance bonus at the end of the five-year term to the 
City.  The court dismissed the case with prejudice on February 24, 2010.  
   
   
ITEM 9.     CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None.  
   
   
ITEM 9A.     CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures  
As of December 31, 2009, evaluations were performed under the supervision and with the participation of Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power LLC (individually, 
“Registrant” and collectively, the “Registrants”) management, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO).  The evaluations assessed 
the effectiveness of the Registrants’ disclosure controls and procedures.  Based on the evaluations, the CEO and CFO have concluded that the Registrants’ disclosure 
controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by each Registrant in reports that it files or submits under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms; and 
that the Registrants’ disclosure controls and procedures are also effective in ensuring that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Registrants’ 
management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.  
 
Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporti ng  
Under the supervision and with the participation of the Registrants’ management, including the CEO and CFO, the Registrants evaluated changes in internal control over 
financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2009, and found no change that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially 
affect, internal control over financial reporting.  
   
Management’s Reports on Internal Control Over Finan cial Reporting  
The management of Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is 
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  Cleco Corporation’s and Cleco Power’s internal control over financial 
reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, each of Cleco Corporation’s and Cleco Power’s principal executive and financial officers and effected by 
Cleco Corporation’s and Cleco Power’s board of directors or managers, as the case may be, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance  
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�   Cleco Power acquired one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units, the related materials and supplies, and half of the common facilities for $304.0 million;  
�   Acadia will recognize a gain of approximately $87 million;  
�   APH received $6.7 million from an affiliate of Cajun for indemnification of Cajun and its affiliates against 100% of APH’s liabilities and other obligations related to 

the Cleco Power transaction; and  
�   Cleco Power will own and operate the unit, and operate the other unit on behalf of Acadia or a future owner.  
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regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.  

Management has designed its internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Management’s assessments included 
review and testing of both the design effectiveness and operating effectiveness of controls over relevant assertions related to significant accounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations.  Therefore, even those systems determined to be effective can provide only 
reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation.  

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projections of any evaluation of 
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

The management of Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power, under the supervision of each of the Registrants’ principal executive officer and principal financial officer, 
conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of Cleco Corporation’s and Cleco Power’s respective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009.  In 
making this assessment, management used the criteria in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission.  Based on this assessment, the management of Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power concluded that, as of December 31, 2009, the Registrants’ internal 
control over financial reporting was effective.  

The effectiveness of Cleco Corporation’s and Cleco Power’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2009, has been audited by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports which appear on pages 65 and 66, respectively, of this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K.  
   
Certifications  
The certifications of the Registrants’ Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 are filed as Exhibits 
31.1, 31.2, 31.3, and 31.4 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.  Additionally, as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) Listed 
Company Manual, Cleco’s Chief Executive Officer filed a certification with the NYSE on May 7, 2009, reporting that he was not aware of any violation by Cleco of the 
NYSE’s Corporate Governance listing standards.    
 
ITEM 9B.     OTHER INFORMATION 

Stock Award to Mr. Madison  
On February 22, 2010, the Board of Directors of Cleco Corporation approved a special award in the amount of 15,000 shares of Cleco Corporation common stock to Mr. 
Michael H. Madison, President and Chief Executive Officer of Cleco Corporation.  This award was made pursuant to the 2010 LTICP.  The shares will be restricted until 
May 26, 2013.  During the restricted period, Mr. Madison may not sell, assign, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of the shares.  Dividends will accrue on the shares 
during the restricted period without interest and will be paid to Mr. Madison upon the lapse of the restrictions.  The shares (and any accrued dividends thereon) will be 
forfeited if Mr. Madison is no longer an employee of Cleco Corporation (other than because of death or disability) before the end of the restricted period.  Upon a Change 
of Control (as defined in the 2010 LTICP), the restrictions will lapse and the shares (and any accrued dividends) will be delivered to Mr. Madison.  The Compensation 
Committee or the Board of Directors may amend the terms and conditions of the award.  
   
Acadia Transaction  
On February 23, 2010, the acquisition by Cleco Power of one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units, the related materials and supplies, and half of its common facilities was 
completed.  The significant terms of the transaction are:  
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�   Cleco Power acquired one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units, the related materials and supplies, and half of the common facilities for $304.0 million;  
�   Acadia will recognize a gain of approximately $87 million;  
�   APH received $6.7 million from an affiliate of Cajun for indemnification of Cajun and its affiliates against 100% of APH’s liabilities and other obligations related to 

the Cleco Power transaction; and  
�   Cleco Power will own and operate the unit, and operate the other unit on behalf of Acadia or a future owner.  
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PART III 

ITEM 10.       DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE OF THE REGISTRANTS 

Audit Committee Financial Expert  
Cleco’s board of directors has determined that Mr. W. Larry Westbrook, who serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, fulfills the 
requirements for an independent audit committee financial expert for both Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power.  
   
Financial Manager’s Code of Conduct  
Both Cleco Corporation and Cleco Power have a code of conduct that applies to their principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, and 
treasurer.  This code of conduct is posted on Cleco’s homepage on the Internet’s World Wide Web located at http://www.cleco.com.  This code of conduct also is 
available free of charge by request sent to:  Shareholder Services, Cleco, P.O. Box 5000, Pineville, LA 71361-5000.  
   
CLECO 

The information set forth, (i) under the caption “Proposal Number I — Election of Four Class I Directors,” (ii) under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership 
Reporting Compliance” and (iii) under the caption “Report of the Audit Committee” in the 2010 Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held 
on April 30, 2010, filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (2010 Proxy Statement), is incorporated herein by 
reference.  See also “Part I — Item 4 — Board of Directors of Cleco.”  
   
CLECO POWER 

The information called for by Item 10 with respect to Cleco Power is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K (Omission of Information by Certain 
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries).  
   
 
   
ITEM 11.     EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

CLECO 

The information set forth, (i) under the subcaption “Independence and Organization of the Board of Directors” under the caption “Proposal Number I — Election of Four 
Class I Directors,” (ii) under the caption “Compensation Discussion and Analysis,” (iii) under the caption “Executive Officers Compensation,” (iv) under the caption 
“Director Compensation,” and (v) under the caption “Report of the Compensation Committee” in the 2010 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.  
   
CLECO POWER 

The information called for by Item 11 with respect to Cleco Power is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K (Omission of Information by Certain 
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries).  
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ITEM 12.     SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

CLECO 

Security Ownership  
The information set forth, (i) under the caption “Security Ownership of Directors and Management” and (ii) under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial 
Owners” in the 2010 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.  
   
Equity Compensation Plan Information  
Cleco has compensation plans under which equity securities of Cleco Corporation are authorized for issuance as approved by security holders.  Cleco does not have 
such plans that have not been approved by security holders.  The table below provides information about compensation plans under which equity securities of Cleco 
Corporation were authorized for issuance at December 31, 2009.  
 

   
For additional information on compensation plans using equity securities, see Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to the Financial 

Statements — Note 7 — Common Stock.”  This information should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes thereto.  
   
   
CLECO POWER 

The information called for by Item 12 with respect to Cleco Power is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K (Omission of Information by Certain 
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries).  
 
ITEM 13.     CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

CLECO 

The information set forth under the subcaptions “Independence and Organization of the Board of Directors,” and “Cleco’s Code of Business Conduct & Ethics” under the 
caption “Proposal Number I — Election of Four Class I Directors” in the 2010 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.  
   
CLECO POWER 

The information called for by Item 13 with respect to Cleco Power is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K (Omission of Information by Certain 
Wholly Owned Subsidiaries).  
 
ITEM 14.     PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

CLECO 

The information set forth under “Relationship with Accountants” regarding fees paid to Cleco’s independent auditors in the 2010 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by 
reference.  
 
CLECO POWER 

The information set forth under “Relationship with Accountants” regarding fees paid to Cleco’s independent auditors in the 2010 Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by 
reference.  

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provides professional services for Cleco Power that are directly billed to Cleco Corporation, the cost of which is allocated to Cleco 
Power though not billed directly to them.    
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PLAN CATEGORY  

NUMBER OF 
SECURITIES TO BE 

ISSUED UPON EXERCISE 
OF OUTSTANDING 

OPTIONS, WARRANTS 
OR RIGHTS 

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE 
EXERCISE PRICE OF 

OUTSTANDING 
OPTIONS, 

 WARRANTS 
AND RIGHTS 

NUMBER OF 
SECURITIES REMAINING 
AVAILABLE FOR FUTURE 

ISSUANCE UNDER 
EQUITY COMPENSATION 

PLANS (EXCLUDING 
SECURITIES REFLECTED 

IN COLUMN (a)) 

  (a) (b) (c) 
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders        

Employee Stock Purchase Plan  2,785 (1) $ 25.96 464,703 

Long-term incentive compensation plans (expires January 1, 2010)  286,183 $ 21.20 1,133,703 (2) 

Long-term incentive compensation plans (effective January 1, 2010)  - $         - 2,250,000 
Total  288,968 $ 21.25 3,848,406 

(1) The number of options in column (a) for the Employee Stock Purchase Plan represents the number of options granted at December 31, 2009, based on employee withholdings and the option grant calculation under the plan.  
(2) Stock options and restricted stock may be issued pursuant to the 2000 LTICP.  This plan requires the number of securities available to be issued to be reduced by the number of options and the number of restricted shares previously awarded, net of 

forfeitures.  At December 31, 2009, there were 284,415 shares of restricted stock awarded, net of forfeitures, pursuant to the 2000 LTICP.  New options or restricted stock cannot be issued pursuant to the 2000 LTICP, which expired on December 31, 
2009.  However, stock options issued prior to December 31, 2009 under the 2000 LTICP remain outstanding until they expire.  
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PART IV 

 
ITEM 15.     EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

 
   

   
The Exhibits designated by an asterisk are filed herewith, except for Exhibits 32.1, 32.2, 32.3, and 32.4, which are furnished herewith (and not filed for purposes of 

Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liability of that section).  The Exhibits not so designated previously have been filed with the 
SEC and are incorporated herein by reference.  The Exhibits designated by two asterisks are management contracts and compensatory plans and arrangements required 
to be filed as Exhibits to this Report.  
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FORM 10-K 

ANNUAL 
REPORT 

  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  65 

  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  66 
15(a)(1)  Financial Statements of Cleco Corporation    
  Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  67 

  Consolidated   Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009, and 2008  68 
  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  70 
  Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  72 
  Consolidated Statements of Changes in Common Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  72 
  Financial Statements of Cleco Power    
  Cleco Power Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  73 
  Cleco Power Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009, and 2008  74 
  Cleco Power Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  75 
  Cleco Power Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  76 
  Cleco Power Consolidated Statements of Changes in Member’s Equity for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  76 
  Notes to the Financial Statements  77 
15(a)(2)  Financial Statement Schedules    
  Schedule I — Financial Statements of Cleco Corporation    
  Condensed Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  133 
  Condensed Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009, and 2008  134 
  Condensed Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  135 
  Notes to the Condensed Financial Statements  136 
  Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts    
  Cleco Corporation  138 
  Cleco Power  138 
15(c)(1)  Schedule III — Consolidated Financial Statements of Acadia Power Partners, LLC    
  Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  141 
  Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  142 
  Consolidated   Balance Sheets at December 31, 2009, and 2008  143 
  Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  144 
  Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Capital for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  145 
  Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  146 

  Financial Statement Schedules other than those shown in the above index are omitted because they are either not required or are not applicable or the required 
information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto    

15(a)(3)  List of Exhibits  129 
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EXHIBITS  
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CLECO  

SEC FILE OR  
REGISTRATION  
NUMBER  

REGISTRATION  
STATEMENT OR  
REPORT  

 
EXHIBIT  
NUMBER  

3(a)(1)  Articles of Incorporation of the Company, effective July 1, 1999  333-71643-01  S-4(6/30/99)  A  
3(a)(2)  Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of Cleco setting forth the terms of the $25 Preferred Stock  1-15759  8-K(7/28/00)  1  

3(a)(3)  Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation to increase amount authorized common stock and to effect a 
two-for-one split of the Company’s common stock  

 
1-15759  

2001 Proxy  
Statement 
(3/01)  

 
B-1  

3(b)(1)  Bylaws of Cleco Corporation, Revised effective July 1, 2009  1-15759  10-Q(6/09)  3.1  
3(b)(2)  Amendment to the Bylaws of Cleco Corporation, effective October 30, 2010  1-15759  10-Q(9/09)  3.1  
4(a)(1)  Indenture of Mortgage dated as of July 1, 1950, between Cleco Power (as successor) and First National Bank of New Orleans, as Trustee  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(1)  
4(a)(2)  First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1951, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(2)  
4(a)(3)  Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1952, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(3)  
4(a)(4)  Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(4)  
4(a)(5)  Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1954, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(5)  
4(a)(6)  Tenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1, 1965, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1986)  4(a)(11)  
4(a)(7)  Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1, 1969, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1998)  4(a)(8)  
4(a)(8)  Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1982, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1993)  4(a)(8)  
4(a)(9)  Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1, 1983, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1993)  4(a)(9)  
4(a)(10)  Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 15, 1990, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  8-K(3/90)  4(a)(27)  
4(b)(1)  Indenture between Cleco Power (as successor) and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of October 1, 1988  33-24896  S-3(10/11/88)  4(b)  
4(b)(2)  Agreement Appointing Successor Trustee dated as of April 1, 1996, by and among Central Louisiana Electric Company, Inc., Bankers Trust 

Company, and The Bank of New York  333-02895  S-3(4/29/96)  4(a)(2)  
4(b)(3)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2000, between Cleco Utility Group Inc. and the Bank of New York  333-52540  S-3/A(1/26/01) 4(a)(2)  
4(b)(4)  Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2001, between Cleco Power LLC and The Bank of New York  333-52540  S-3/A(1/26/01) 4(a)(3)  
4(b)(5)  Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 26, 2001, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York  1-5663  8-K(4/26/01)  4(a)  
4(b)(6)  Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2002, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York  1-5663  8-K(2/6/02)  4.1  
4(b)(7)  Sixth Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of $75,000,000 principal amount of 5.375% Notes due May 1, 2013  1-5663  8-K(4/28/03)  4.1  
4(b)(8)  Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 6, 2005, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.  1-5663  8-K(7/6/05)  4.1  
4(b)(9)  Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 30, 2005, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York Trust Company, 

N.A.  1-5663  8-K(11/28/05)  4.1  
4(b)(10)  Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2008, between Cleco Power LLC and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.  1-5663  8-K(6/2/08)  4.1  
4(c)  Agreement Under Regulation S-K Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A)  1-5663  10-Q(9/99)  4(c)  
4(d)(1)  Rights agreement between Cleco and EquiServe Trust Company, as Right Agent  1-15759  8-K(7/28/00)  1  
4(d)(2)  First Amendment to Rights Agreement between Cleco Corporation and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as Rights Agent  1-15759  8-K(3/2/06)  4.1  

**10(a)(1)  
   

2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan  
   

 
333-71643-01  

2000 Proxy  
Statement
(3/00)  

 
A  

**10(a)(2)  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, Amendment Number 1, Effective as of December 12, 2003  1-15759  10-Q(3/05)  10(a)  
**10(a)(3)  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, Amendment Number 2, Effective as of July 23, 2004  1-15759  10-Q(9/04)  10(a)  
**10(a)(4)  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, Amendment Number 3, Dated as of January 28, 2005  1-15759  10-Q(3/05)  10(b)  
**10(a)(5)  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, Amendment Number 4, Dated as of November 4, 2008  1-15759  10-K(2008)  10(a)(6)  
**10(a)(6)  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, Amendment Number 5, Dated as of December 8, 2008  1-15759  8-K(12/9/08)  10.1  
**10(a)(7)  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, Administrative Procedure No. 1  1-15759  10-K(2005)  10(a)(6)  

10(a)(8)  Form of Notice and Acceptance of Directors’ Grant of Nonqualified Stock Options under Cleco’s 2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation 
Plan  1-15759  10-Q(6/00)  10(a)  

10(a)(9)  Form of Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Nonqualified Stock Options, with fixed option price under Cleco’s 2000 Long-Term Incentive 
Compensation Plan  1-15759  10-Q(6/00)  10(c)  

10(a)
(10)  

Form of Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Nonqualified Stock Options, with variable option price under Cleco’s 2000 Long-Term Incentive 
Compensation Plan  1-15759  10-Q(6/00)  10(d)  

**10(a)
(11)  Form of Notice and Acceptance of Director’s Grant of Nonqualified Stock Option  1-5663  10-Q(9/01)  10  

10(a)
(12)  Form of Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Restricted Stock under Cleco’s 2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan  1-15759  10-Q(6/00)  10(b)  

10(a)
(13)  Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Restricted Stock and Allocation of Opportunity Shares  1-15759  10-Q(9/05)  10(c)  

10(a)
(14)  

Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Restricted Stock and Common Stock Equivalent Units and Allocation of Opportunity Shares and 
Opportunity Common Stock Equivalent Units – 2007 Performance Cycle  

 
1-15759  

 
10-K(2006)  

 
10(n)(3)  

10(a)
(15)  

Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Restricted Stock and Common Stock Equivalent Units and Allocation of Opportunity Shares and 
Opportunity Common Stock Equivalent Units – 2008 Performance Cycle  

 
1-15759  

 
10-K(2007)  

 
10(m)(4)  

10(a)
(16)  

Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Restricted Stock and Common Stock Equivalent Units and Allocation of Opportunity Shares and 
Opportunity Common Stock Equivalent Units – 2009 Performance Cycle  

 
1-15759  

 
10-K(2008)  

 
10(m)(4)  
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**10(b)(1)  Annual Incentive Compensation Plan amended and restated as of January 23, 2003  1-15759  10-K(2003)  10(b)  
**10(b)(2)  First Amendment to Annual Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2009  1-15759  10-K(2008)  10(b)(2)  
**10(b)(3)  Participation Agreement, Annual Incentive Compensation Plan  1-5663  10-K(1995)  10(c)  
**10(c)(1)  Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors  1-5663  10-K(1992)  10(n)  
**10(c)(2)  Summary of Director Compensation, Benefits and Policies, revised on July 31, 2009  1-15759  10-Q(9/09)  10.1  
**10(d)(1)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan  1-5663  10-K(1992)  10(o)(1)  
**10(d)(2)  First Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan effective July 1, 1999  1-15759  10-K(2003)  10(e)(1)

(a)  
**10(d)(3)  Second Amendment to Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan dated July 28, 2000  1-15759  10-K(2003)  10(e)(1)

(b)  
**10(d)(4)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Amended and Restated January 1, 2009  1-15759  10-K(2008)  10(f)(4)  
**10(d)(5)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (Amended and Restated January 1, 2009), Amendment No. 1  1-15759  8-K(12/9/08)  10.3  
**10(d)(6)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Trust dated December 13, 2000  1-15759  10-K(2003)  10(e)(1)

(c)  
**10(d)(7)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Participation Agreement between Cleco and Dilek Samil  1-15759  10-K(2002)  10(z)(1)  
**10(d)(8)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan Participation Agreement between Cleco and Michael H. Madison  1-15759  10-K(2004)  10(v)(3)  
**10(e)(1)  Executive Employment Agreement between Cleco Corporation and George W. Bausewine effective as of May 5, 2009  1-15759  10-Q(6/09)  10.1  
**10(e)(2)  Executive Employment Agreement Compliance Addendum – Code Section 409A, effective January 1, 2009  1-15759  8-K(12/9/08)  10.4  
**10(e)(3)  Form of Cleco Corporation Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1)  1-15759  8-K(1/9/09)  10.1  
**10(e)(4)  Executive Employment Agreement between Cleco Corporation and Darren J. Olagues dated July 30, 2007  1-15759  8-K(4/28/09)  10.1  
*10(e)(5)

**  Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1) between Cleco Corporation and Michael H. Madison, effective October 1, 2009        
*10(e)(6)

**  Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1) between Cleco Corporation and Dilek Samil effective, January 1, 2009        
*10(e)(7)

**  Executive Employment Agreement (Level 2) between Cleco Corporation and William G. Fontenot,   effective July 28, 2009        
*10(e)(8)

**  Executive Employment Agreement (Level 2) between Cleco Corporation and R. Russell Davis, effective July 28, 2009        
*10(e)(9)

**  
Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1) and addendum to Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1) between Cleco Corporation and 

Wade A. Hoefling, effective January 29, 2010        
10(f)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan Trust Agreement dated as of August 1, 1997, between UMB Bank, N.A. and Cleco  1-5663  10-K(1997)  10(m)  

**10(g)(1)  
2010 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2010  
   

 
1-15759  

2009 Proxy  
Statement 
(3/12/09)  

 
C  

*10(g)(2)
**  

Notice and Acceptance of Grant of Restricted Stock and Common Stock Equivalent Units and Allocation of Opportunity Shares and 
Opportunity Common Stock Equivalent Units – 2010 Performance Cycle        

10(h)(1)  Cleco Corporation Employee Stock Purchase Plan  333-44364  S-8(8/23/00)  4.3  
10(h)(2)  Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Amendment No. 1, dated January 22, 2004  1-15759  10-K(2003)  10(s)(1)  
10(h)(3)  Employee Stock Purchase Plan, Amendment No. 2, effective as of January 1, 2006  1-15759  10-Q(6/05)  10(a)  

**10(i)(1)  Cleco Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan  333-59696  S-8(4/27/01)  4.3  
**10(i)(2)  First Amendment to Cleco Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan  1-15759  10-K(2008)  10(n)(5)  
**10(i)(3)  Cleco Corporation Deferred Compensation Plan, Corrective Section 409A Amendment  1-15759  8-K(12/9)08)  10.2  

10(i)(4)  Deferred Compensation Trust dated January 2001  1-15759  10-K(2003)  10(u)  

10(j)(1)  
First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 2, 2006 among Cleco Corporation, The Bank of New York, as 

Administrative Agent, and the lenders and other parties thereto  1-15759  10-Q(9/09)  10.2  
10(j)(2)  Amendment No. 1 and Waiver No. 1 dated as of August 18, 2009, to and under the First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated 

as of June 2, 2006, among Cleco Corporation and the Lenders party thereto  
 
1-15759  

 
10-Q(9/09)  

 
10.4  

*10(j)(3)  Loan Agreement dated as of February 19, 2010, among Cleco Corporation, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent, and the 
lenders party thereto        

10(k)(1)  Acadia Power Partners – Second amended and restated limited liability company agreement dated May 9, 2003  1-15759  10-Q(9/09)  10.3  

10(k)(2)  
Acadia Power Partners, LLC – First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement dated August 9, 

2005  1-15759  10-Q(9/05)  10(a)  
*12(a)  Computation of Ratios of Earnings (loss) to Fixed Charges and of Earnings (loss) to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock 

Dividends        

*21  Subsidiaries of the Registrant        
*23(a)  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm        
*23(c)  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm        

*24(a)  Power of Attorney from each Director of Cleco Corporation whose signature is affixed to this Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 
2009        

*31.1  CEO Certification in accordance with section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
*31.2  CFO Certification in accordance with section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
*32.1  CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
*32.2  CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
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NUMBER  

3(a)  Articles of Organization and Initial Report of Cleco Power LLC, dated December 11, 2000  533-52540  S-3/A(1/26/01) 3(a)  
3(b)  Operating Agreement of Cleco Power LLC (revised effective July 1, 2009)  1-5663  10-Q(6/09)  3.2  
4(a)(1)  Indenture of Mortgage dated as of July 1, 1950, between the Company and First National Bank of New Orleans, as Trustee  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(1)  
4(a)(2)  First Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1951, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(2)  
4(a)(3)  Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1, 1952, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(3)  
4(a)(4)  Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1, 1954, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(4)  
4(a)(5)  Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1954, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1997)  4(a)(5)  
4(a)(6)  Tenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 1, 1965, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1986)  4(a)(11)  
4(a)(7)  Eleventh Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 1, 1969, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1998)  4(a)(8)  
4(a)(8)  Eighteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 1, 1982, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1993)  4(a)(8)  
4(a)(9)  Nineteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1, 1983, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  10-K(1993)  4(a)(9)  
4(a)(10)  Twenty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as of March 15, 1990, to Exhibit 4(a)(1)  1-5663  8-K(3/90)  4(a)(27)  
4(b)(1)  Indenture between the Company and Bankers Trust Company, as Trustee, dated as of October 1, 1988  33-24896  S-3(10/11/88)  4(b)  
4(b)(2)  Agreement Appointing Successor Trustee dated as of April 1, 1996, by and among Central Louisiana Electric Company, Inc., Bankers Trust 

Company, and The Bank of New York  333-02895  S-3(4/26/96)  4(a)(2)  
4(b)(3)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 1, 2000, between Cleco Utility Group Inc. and the Bank of New York  333-52540  S-3/A(1/26/01) 4(a)(2)  
4(b)(4)  Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 1, 2001, between Cleco Power LLC and The Bank of New York  333-52540  S-3/A(1/26/01) 4(a)(3)  
4(b)(5)  Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 26, 2001, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York  1-5663  8-K(4/26/01)  4(a)  
4(b)(6)  Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2002, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York  1-5663  8-K(2/6/02)  4.1  
4(b)(7)  Sixth Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of $75,000,000 principal amount of 5.375% Notes due May 1, 2013  1-5663  8-K(4/28/03)  4.1  
4(b)(8)  Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 6, 2005, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.  1-5663  8-K(7/6/05)  4.1  
4(b)(9)  Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 30, 2005, between Cleco Power LLC and the Bank of New York Trust Company, 

N.A.  1-5663  8-K(11/28/05)  4.1  
4(b)(10)  Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 3, 2008, between Cleco Power LLC and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A.  1-5663  8-K(6/2/08)  4.1  
4(b)(11)  Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 13, 2009, between Cleco Power LLC and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 

Company, N.A. (as successor trustee)  1-5663  8-K(11/12/09)  4.1  
4(c)  Agreement Under Regulation S-K Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A)  333-71643-01  10-Q(9/99)  4(c)  
4(d)  Loan Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2006, between Cleco Power LLC and the Rapides Finance Authority  1-5663  8-K(11/27/06)  4.1  
4(e)  Loan Agreement, dated as of November 1, 2007, between Cleco Power LLC and the Rapides Finance Authority  1-5663  8-K(11/20/07)  4.1  
4(f)  Loan Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2008, between Cleco Power LLC and the Rapides Finance Authority        
4(g)  Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2008, between Cleco Power LLC and the Louisiana Public Facilities Authority        

**10(a)(1)  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan  1-5663  10-K(1992)  10(o)(1)  
**10(a)(2)  Form of Cleco Corporation Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1)  1-15759  8-K(1/9/09)  10.1  

10(b)(1)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan Trust Agreement dated as of August 1, 1997, between UMB Bank, N.A. and the Company  1-5663  10-K(1997)  10(m)  
10(b)(2)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan as amended and restated effective January 1, 2004  1-5663  10-Q(3/04)  10(a)  

*10(b)(3)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Stock Trust Agreement, Amendment Number 1, Effective January 1, 1999        
10(b)(4)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Stock Trust Agreement, Amendment Number 2, Effective January 1, 2004  1-5663  10-Q(6/04)  10(b)  
10(b)(5)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Stock Trust Agreement, Amendment Number 3, Effective October 1, 2005  1-5663  10-Q(9/05)  10(e)  
10(b)(6)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Stock Trust Agreement, Amendment Number 4 (designated as Amendment Number 3 in exhibit 10(b), 

Effective January 1, 2007  1-5663  10-Q(3/07)  10(b)  
10(b)(7)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, First Amendment, effective as of June 1, 2005  1-5663  10-Q(6/05)  10(b)  
10(b)(8)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Amended and Restated, effective October 1, 2005  333-127496  S-8(8/12/05)  10.8  
10(b)(9)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Amended and Restated, Amendment No. 1, Effective January 1, 2006  1-5663  10-K(2006)  10(h)(8)  
10(b)

(10)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Amendment No. 2  1-5663  10-Q(6/07)  10.4  
10(b)

(11)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Amendment No. 3, Effective August 1, 2007  1-5663  10-Q(9/07)  10.2  
10(b)

(12)  401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Amendment No. 4, Effective January 1, 2008  1-5663  10-K(2008)  10(g)(12) 
10(b)

(13)  
401(k) Savings and Investment Plan, Amendment No. 5 and Plan of Merger with the Cleco Energy LLC 401(k) Savings Investment Plan, 

effective March 1, 2009  1-5663  10-Q(3/09)  10.3  
10(c)(1)  First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 2, 2006 among Cleco Power LLC, The Bank of New York, as 

Administrative Agent, and the lenders and other parties thereto  1-5663  10-Q(6/06)  10.2  
10(c)(2)  Amendment No. 1 and Waiver No. 1, dated as of August 18, 2009, to and under the First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated 

as of June 2, 2006, among Cleco Corporation and the Lenders party thereto  1-5663  10-Q(9/09)  10.5  
10(d)(1)  Storm Recovery Property Sale Agreement between Cleco Katrina/Rita Hurricane Recovery Funding LLC and Cleco Power LLC, dated 

March 6, 2008  1-5663  8-K(3/6/08)  10.1  
10(d)(2)  Storm Recovery Property Servicing Agreement between Cleco Katrina/Rita Hurricane Recovery Funding LLC and Cleco Power LLC, dated 

March 6, 2008  1-5663  8-K(3/6/08)  10.2  
10(d)(3)  Administration Agreement between Cleco Katrina/Rita Hurricane Recovery Funding LLC and Cleco Power LLC, dated March 6, 2008  1-5663  8-K(3/6/08)  10.3  
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*12(b)  Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges        
*23(b)  Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm        
*24(b)  Power of Attorney from each Manager of Cleco Power whose signature is affixed to this Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009        
*31.3  CEO Certification in accordance with section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
*31.4  CFO Certification in accordance with section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
*32.3  CEO Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
*32.4  CFO Certification pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002        
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  CLECO CORPORATION (Parent Company Only) SCHEDULE I 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Operating expenses                    
Administrative and general    $ 4,045     $ 1,064     $ 988   
Other operating (income) expense      (1,363 )     1,938       3,028   

Total operating expenses    $ 2,682     $ 3,002     $ 4,016   

Operating loss      (2,682 )     (3,002 )     (4,016 ) 
Equity income of subsidiaries, net of tax      94,566       104,648       144,886   
Interest, net      14,974       3,342       15,814   
Other income      4,157       -      -  
Other expense      (110 )     (5,685 )     (877 ) 
Income before income taxes      110,905       99,303       155,807   
Income tax (expense) benefit      (4,598 )     2,838       (4,018 ) 
Net income      106,307       102,141       151,789   
Preferred dividends requirements, net      46       46       458   
Income applicable to common stock    $ 106,261     $ 102,095     $ 151,331   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed financial statements.                          
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CLECO CORPORATION (Parent Company Only) SCHEDULE I 

    AT DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008   

Assets              
Current assets              

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 7,080     $ 5,941   
Accounts receivable - affiliate      153,150       95,039   
Other accounts receivable      1,298       21   
Taxes receivable      14,476       8,317   
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies      24,424       17,371   

Total currents assets      200,428       126,689   
Equity investment in investees      1,048,321       989,012   
Deferred charges      27,929       12,202   

Total assets    $ 1,276,678     $ 1,127,903   

Liabilities and shareholders ’ equity                  
Liabilities                  

Current liabilities                  
Accounts payable - affiliate    $ 18,061     $ 3,327   
Other current liabilities      11,362       8,767   

Total current liabilities      29,423       12,094   
Long-term debt, net      95,000       30,000   
Deferred credits      36,183       24,944   

Total liabilities      160,606       67,038   

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 6)                  
Shareholders ’ equity                  

Preferred stock                  
Not subject to mandatory redemption, $100 par value, authorized 1,491,900 shares, issued 10,288 at December 31, 2009,  and 2008, 

respectively      1,029       1,029   
Common shareholders’ equity                  

Common stock, $1 par value, authorized 100,000,000 shares, issued 60,277,462 and 60,066,345 shares and outstanding 60,259,368  
and 60,042,514 shares at December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively      60,277       60,066   

Premium on common stock      399,148       394,517   
Retained earnings      667,220       615,514   
Treasury stock, at cost 18,094 and 23,831 shares at December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively      (311 )     (428 ) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss      (11,291 )     (9,833 ) 

Total common shareholders’ equity      1,115,043       1,059,836   
Total shareholders’ equity      1,116,072       1,060,865   

Total liabilities and shareholders ’ equity    $ 1,276,678     $ 1,127,903   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed financial statements.                  
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows  
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CLECO CORPORATION (Parent Company Only) SCHEDULE I 

    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   
(THOUSANDS)    2009     2008     2007   

Operating activities                    
Net cash provided by operating activities    $ 6,007     $ 18,536     $ 164,437   

Investing activities                          
Equity investment in investees      (16,254 )     (6,274 )     (93,427 ) 
Return of equity investment in investees      850       -      96   
Other investing      (2,328 )     (299 )     (1,763 ) 

Net cash used in investing activities      (17,732 )     (6,573 )     (95,094 ) 

Financing activities                          
Retirement of long-term obligations      -      (100,000 )     -  
Issuance of long-term obligations      65,000       30,000       -  
Dividends paid on preferred stock      (46 )     (46 )     (458 ) 
Dividends paid on common stock      (54,221 )     (54,036 )     (53,282 ) 
Other financing      2,131       991       10,873   

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities      12,864       (123,091 )     (42,867 ) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s      1,139       (111,128 )     26,476   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period      5,941       117,069       90,593   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $ 7,080     $ 5,941     $ 117,069   

Supplementary cash flow information                          
Interest paid    $ 3,119     $ 5,078     $ 7,000   
Income tax (refunded) paid, net    $ (34,792 )   $ 38,113     $ 15,165   

Supplementary noncash investing and financing activ ity                          
Return on equity investment in investee    $ -    $ -    $ 78,200   
Issuance of treasury stock – LTICP    $ 117     $ 103     $ 86   
Issuance of common stock - LTICP/ESPP    $ -    $ 163     $ 22,151   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed financial statements.                          
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

The condensed financial statements represent the financial information required by SEC Regulation S-X 5-04 for Cleco Corporation, which requires the inclusion of parent 
company only financial statements if the restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiaries exceed 25% of total consolidated net assets as of the last day of its most recent 
fiscal year.  As of December 31, 2009, Cleco Corporation’s restricted net assets of consolidated subsidiaries were $637.0 million and exceeded 25% of its total 
consolidated net assets.  

Cleco Corporation’s major, first-tier subsidiaries consist of Cleco Power and Midstream.    
Cleco Power contains the LPSC-jurisdictional generation, transmission, and distribution electric utility operations serving Cleco’s traditional retail and wholesale 

customers.  Midstream owns and operates merchant generation stations and invests in joint ventures that own and operate merchant generation stations.  
In January 2007, FERC approved the transfer of the ownership interests of Attala and Perryville to Cleco Corporation whereby Attala and Perryville would become 

first-tier subsidiaries of Cleco Corporation.  The transfer was effective February 1, 2007.  
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared to present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of Cleco Corporation on a stand-

alone basis as a holding company.  Investments in subsidiaries and other investees are stated at cost plus equity in undistributed earnings from the date of 
acquisition.  These financial statements should be read in conjunction with Cleco’s consolidated financial statements.  
   
Note 2 — Debt 

Cleco Corporation had no short-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2009, or 2008.  At December 31, 2009, Cleco Corporation’s long-term debt outstanding was $95.0 
million, of which none was due within one year, compared to $30.0 million of long-term debt at December 31, 2008, of which none was due within one year.    

Cleco Corporation’s $150.0 million five-year credit facility matures on June 2, 2011.  At December 31, 2009, $95.0 million was outstanding under this credit 
facility.  This facility provides for working capital and other needs.  Cleco Corporation’s borrowing costs under the facility are equal to LIBOR plus 0.65%, including facility 
fees.  

At December 31, 2009, Cleco Corporation was in violation of a covenant under its credit facility, relating to a covenant included in the $50.0 million Cleco Power bank 
term loan entered into in August 2009.  In February 2010, Cleco Corporation obtained a waiver from its lenders for such non-compliance.  Cleco Corporation paid the 
lenders no fees related to this waiver.  

In August 2009, Cleco Corporation entered into an amendment to its credit facility that increased thresholds in a representation relating to pension plan obligations 
above the amount of the current plan assets.  Cleco Corporation incurred $0.1 million in expenses obtaining bank waivers related to the amendments.  If Cleco 
Corporation were to default under the covenants in its various credit facilities, it would be unable to borrow additional funds under the facilities.  Further, if Cleco Power 
were to default under its credit facility, Cleco Corporation would be considered in default under its credit facility.    

At December 31, 2009, off-balance sheet commitments and outstanding credit facility borrowings reduced available borrowings by $15.0 million and $95.0 million, 
respectively, leaving available capacity of $40.0 million.  An uncommitted line of credit with a bank in an amount up to $10.0 million also is available to support Cleco’s 
working capital needs.  
   
Note 3 — Dividends and Equity Contributions 

Some provisions in Cleco Power’s debt instruments restrict the amount of equity available for distribution to Cleco Corporation by Cleco Power under specified 
circumstances.  The most restrictive covenant requires Cleco Power’s total indebtedness to be less than or equal to 65% of total capitalization.  At December 31, 2009, 
approximately $349.6 million of member’s equity were unrestricted.  Cleco Corporation received $30.0 million in distributions from Cleco Power in 2009.  No distributions 
were received from Cleco Power for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2007.  Cleco Corporation made no equity contributions to Cleco Power in 2009 or 
2008.  During 2007, Cleco Corporation made equity contributions to Cleco Power of $85.0 million.   

Cleco Corporation received no distributions from Midstream during the years ended December 31, 2009 or 2007.  Cleco Corporation received $9.6 million in 
distributions from Midstream during the year ended December 31, 2008.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, Cleco Corporation made no equity 
contributions to Midstream.    
   
Note 4 — Income Taxes 

Cleco Corporation (Parent Company Only) Condensed Statements of Income reflect income tax expense of $4.6 million, income tax benefit of $2.8 million, and income 
tax expense of $4.0 million for the years ended 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  In addition to these amounts, income tax expense of $5.0 million, $21.3 million, and 
$66.8 million is reflected in equity income of subsidiaries, net of tax for the years ended 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  
   
Note 5 — Commitments and Contingencies 

For information regarding commitments and contingencies related to Cleco Corporation, see Part II, Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data — Notes to 
the Financial Statements — Note 15 — Litigation, Other Commitments and Contingencies, and Disclosures about Guarantees — Off-Balance Sheet Commitments and 
Disclosures about Guarantees.”  
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Note 6 — Subsequent Events 

As of February 25, 2010, management has evaluated the potential recognition or disclosure of events or transactions that occurred in the period after the balance sheet 
date of December 31, 2009.  The date February 25, 2010, represents the date that Cleco Corporation issued the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2009.  
   
Debt Issuance  
On February 19, 2010, Cleco Corporation entered into a $150.0 million aggregate principal amount one-year bank term loan, which matures in 2011.  The interest rate for 
the bank term loan was one-month LIBOR plus 2.75%.    
   
City of Alexandria Settlement  
On February 23, 2010, the Alexandria City Council approved a settlement of the case which included a $3.0 million litigation expense reimbursement to the City and a 
new five-year, energy-only power supply agreement.  The supply agreement may be extended, at Cleco Power’s option, for two additional one-year terms.  If the City 
performs its obligations under the new power supply agreement, then Cleco Corporation will pay a one-time $6.5 million performance bonus at the end of the five-year 
term to the City.  The court dismissed the case with prejudice on February 24, 2010.  
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VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  
Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  

   
   
   

   
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS  
Years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  
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CLECO CORPORATION SCHEDULE II 

  BALANCE AT   ADDITIONS   UNCOLLECTIBLE   BALANCE AT 

  BEGINNING   CHARGED TO COSTS   ACCOUNT WRITE-OFFS   END OF 

Allowance For Uncollectible Accounts (THOUSANDS)  OF PERIOD   AND EXPENSES   LESS RECOVERIES   PERIOD (1) 

Year Ended December 31, 2009  $ 1,632   $ 1,657   $ 2,116   $ 1,173 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008  $   
1,028   $   3,821   $   3,217   $   1,632 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007  $       
789   $              ,859   $   2,620   $   1,028 

(1) Deducted in the consolidated balance sheet                

CLECO POWER LLC SCHEDULE II 

  BALANCE AT   ADDITIONS   UNCOLLECTIBLE   BALANCE AT 

  BEGINNING   CHARGED TO COSTS   ACCOUNT WRITE-OFFS   END OF 

Allowance For Uncollectible Accounts (THOUSANDS)  OF PERIOD   AND EXPENSES   LESS RECOVERIES   PERIOD (1) 

Year Ended December 31, 2009  $ 1,632   $ 1,657   $ 2,116   $ 1,173 

Year Ended December 31, 2008  $   
1,028   $   3,821   $   3,217   $   1,632 

Year Ended December 31, 2007  $       
789   $   2,859   $   2,620   $   1,028 

(1) Deducted in the consolidated balance sheet                
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ACADIA POWER PARTNERS, LLC  
   
Consolidated Financial Statements  
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007  
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

   
To the Members of  
Acadia Power Partners, LLC:  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in members' capital, and cash flows present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Acadia Power Partners, LLC (the “Company”) and its subsidiary at December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ending December 31, 2009 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits.  We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States).  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.  

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 4 to 
the consolidated financial statements, the Company's plans to sell all of the materials and supplies inventory and property, plant, and equipment. The Company's plans to 
sell these assets raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in 
Note 5. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.  

As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has significant transactions with related parties.  
 
 
   
/s/  PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP  
New Orleans, Louisiana  
February 25, 2010  
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Consolidated Statements of Income  
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    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   

    2009     2008     2007   

Operating revenue                    
Third party revenue    $ 33,750,248     $ 74,002,290     $ 63,549,505   
Affiliate revenue      16,795,867       -      -  

Total operating revenue      50,546,115       74,002,290       63,549,505   

Operating expenses                          
Fuel used for electric generation      35,898,268       63,373,553       53,438,518   
Plant operations and maintenance      22,848,731       16,079,924       12,622,699   
Depreciation      9,700,816       14,818,570       15,427,232   
General and administrative      5,759,256       2,409,472       2,252,563   
Loss on disposal of assets      10,846,187       191,398       3,525,254   

Total operating expenses      85,053,258       96,872,917       87,266,266   
Gain on settlement of bankruptcy claim      -      -      170,200,000   

Operating (loss) income      (34,507,143 )     (22,870,627 )     146,483,239   
Other income      21,025       120,595       62,617   

Net (loss) income    $ (34,486,118 )   $ (22,750,032 )   $ 146,545,856   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.                          
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    AT DECEMBER 31,   

    2009     2008   

Assets              
Current assets              

Cash and cash equivalents    $ 6,005,550     $ 1,527,179   
Accounts receivable – trade (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $0 in 2009 and $540,444 in 2008)      40,104       375,640   
Accounts receivable - affiliate      7,722       838   
Materials and supplies inventory      2,231,888       1,991,896   
Prepayments      2,514,179       1,516,857   

Total current assets      10,799,443       5,412,410   
Property, plant and equipment, net      403,622,445       405,565,401   

Total assets    $ 414,421,888     $ 410,977,811   

Liabilities and members ’ capital                  
   Current liabilities                  

Accounts payable - trade    $ 520,542     $ 223,907   
Accounts payable - affiliate      577,233       396,885   
Accrued liabilities      4,338,843       759,245   

Total current liabilities      5,436,618       1,380,037   
     Members’ capital      408,985,270       409,597,774   

Total liabilities and members ’ capital    $ 414,421,888     $ 410,977,811   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.                  
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows  
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    FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,   

    2009     2008     2007   

Cash flow from operating activities                    
Net (loss) income    $ (34,486,118 )   $ (22,750,032 )   $ 146,545,856   
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:                          

Depreciation expense      9,700,816       14,818,570       15,427,232   
Provision for doubtful accounts      -      540,444       -  
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets      6,381,026       (17,404 )     3,415,892   
Gain on settlement of bankruptcy claim, net      -      -      (170,200,000 ) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:                          
Accounts receivable      335,536       (128,501 )     (349 ) 
Accounts receivable, affiliate      (6,884 )     (819 )     (19 ) 
Materials and supplies inventory      (239,992 )     (129,721 )     (86,231 ) 
Prepayments      (997,322 )     582,127       (198,256 ) 
Accounts payable, trade      296,635       74,309       149,599   
Accounts payable, affiliate      180,348       (73,826 )     (211,278 ) 
Accrued liabilities      3,636,934       173,713       (2,059,999 ) 
Net cash used in operating activities    $ (15,199,021 )   $ (6,911,140 )   $ (7,217,553 ) 

Cash flows from investing activities                          
Additions to property, plant and equipment    $ (14,196,222 )   $ (484,413 )   $ (1,444,884 ) 

Net cash used in investing activities    $ (14,196,222 )   $ (484,413 )   $ (1,444,884 ) 

Cash flows from financing activities                          
Contributions from members    $ 33,873,614     $ -    $ 16,814,741   

    Net cash provided by financing activities    $ 33,873,614     $ -    $ 16,814,741   
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent s      4,478,371       (7,395,553 )     8,152,304   
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period      1,527,179       8,922,732       770,428   
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period    $ 6,005,550     $ 1,527,179     $ 8,922,732   

Supplementary noncash investing and financing trans actions:                          
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment in accrued liabilities    $ 68,941     $ 11,606     $ -  
Distributions to members    $ -    $ -    $ 170,200,000   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.                          
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Capital  
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    CAJUN     CAH     APH     

TOTAL 
MEMBERS’

CAPITAL   

BALANCES AT JANUARY 1, 2007    $ -    $ 171,237,642     $ 267,949,567     $ 439,187,209   
Distributions of bankruptcy settlement      -      (92,000,000 )     (78,200,000 )     (170,200,000 ) 
Member contributions      6,207,370       2,200,000       8,407,371       16,814,741   
Net (loss) income      (5,155,079 )     85,328,007       66,372,928       146,545,856   
Interest on distributions      -      (4,130,988 )     4,130,988       -  
Sale of CAH interest to Cajun      162,634,661       (162,634,661 )     -      -  
Payment of priority distributions      52,486,951       -      (52,486,951 )     -  
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2007      216,173,903       -      216,173,903       432,347,806   
Net loss      (11,375,016 )     -      (11,375,016 )     (22,750,032 ) 
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2008    $ 204,798,887     $ -    $ 204,798,887     $ 409,597,774   
Member contributions      16,936,807       -      16,936,807       33,873,614   
Net loss      (17,243,059 )     -      (17,243,059 )     (34,486,118 ) 
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2009    $ 204,492,635     $ -    $ 204,492,635     $ 408,985,270   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.                                  
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ACADIA POWER PARTNERS, LLC Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1 — Description of Business and Organization 

Acadia Power Partners, LLC (Acadia) is a Delaware limited liability company formed on October 13, 1999, for the purpose of designing, developing, constructing, owning, 
and operating a 1,160 MW natural gas-fired electric generation plant (the Facility) located in Acadia Parish, Louisiana.  

Acadia’s members (the Members) are Acadia Power Holdings LLC (APH), a subsidiary of Cleco Midstream Resources LLC (Midstream), and prior to September 13, 
2007, Calpine Acadia Holdings, LLC (CAH), a subsidiary of Calpine Corporation (Calpine).  On September 13, 2007, CAH sold its interest in Acadia along with certain 
related assets to Cajun Gas Energy L.L.C. (Cajun), an affiliate of pooled investment funds managed by King Street Capital Management, L.P.  

In accordance with Acadia’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement (the LLC Agreement) dated May 9, 2003, the Members each own 
a 50% interest in Acadia and share in profits and losses of Acadia in proportion to their ownership interests.  Acadia is governed by an executive committee with two 
representatives from each Member.  
   
Note 2 — Calpine Bankruptcy 

Bankruptcy Proceedings  
In December 2005, Calpine and certain of its subsidiaries, including CAH, Calpine Energy Services, L.P. (CES), and Calpine Central, LP (CCLP), (collectively the Calpine 
Debtors), filed for protection under Chapter 11 (the Bankruptcy Filing) of the United States Bankruptcy Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New 
York (the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court).  The Calpine Debtors continued to operate their business and manage their properties as “debtors-in-possession” under the 
jurisdiction of the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court.  Acadia did not file for bankruptcy and continued to operate in the normal course of business. However, Acadia had 
an operation and maintenance agreement with CCLP, an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Calpine, and tolling agreements with CES. For information on these 
agreements, see Note 8 — “Related Party Transactions.”  CCLP continued to operate under the terms of the operation and maintenance agreement; however CES 
ceased performance under the terms of the tolling agreements in 2006.  

CAH’s Bankruptcy Filing was an event of default under the LLC Agreement.  The LLC Agreement provides for the business of Acadia to continue without dissolution 
in the event of the bankruptcy of a Member.  Any actions accorded to the Members under the default provisions of the LLC Agreement were subject to approval by the 
Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court.  Such actions may include, among others, acquisition of all of the Facility by a single Member, the sale of the defaulting Member’s 
interest, or sale of the Facility to a third party.  However, APH was precluded from exercising any remedies based on the default by virtue of the automatic stay provided 
under the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court proceedings.    

In March 2006, Acadia filed a motion with the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court to compel CES to perform under the then-existing power purchase agreements and 
to pay amounts due and owed under such agreements since the commencement of CES’s Bankruptcy Filing.  On March 15, 2006, Acadia and CES amended each of the 
power purchase agreements, suspending Acadia’s obligations under the power purchase agreements.  The Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court approved these 
amendments on March 22, 2006.  The amendments resolved certain relief requested by Acadia’s motion.  
   
Settlement Agreement  
In April 2007, a settlement agreement was reached with Calpine which resolved issues related to Acadia.  The settlement included the fixing of Acadia’s claims against 
the Calpine Debtors and an agreement by the parties to certain bidding procedures governing the sale of CAH’s interest in Acadia and certain related assets (the CAH 
Assets).  In May 2007, the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court approved the terms included in the Claims Settlement Agreement and Bidding Procedures Order.  

Under the Claims Settlement Agreement, Acadia received a pre-petition general unsecured claim against CES and Calpine relating to obligations under the tolling 
agreements of $185.0 million.  Acadia recorded the amount, net of $14.8 million discount on the sale of the claim, as a gain on settlement of the bankruptcy claim.  In May 
2007, Acadia made a dividend by assignment of the claim to APH and CAH.    

Under the Bidding Procedures Order governing the sale of the CAH Assets, APH agreed to purchase the CAH Assets for $60.0 million plus accrued liabilities, subject 
to any higher or better offers.  However, in July 2007, CAH conducted an auction for the CAH Assets, and Cajun emerged as the successful bidder with a bid price of 
$189.0 million.    

The Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court also approved the transfer of the operations, maintenance and project management functions performed by CCLP to 
subsidiaries of Midstream upon the closing of the CAH asset sale.  
   
Note 3 — Acadia Transactions 

In February 2009, Cleco Power LLC (Cleco Power) announced that it had chosen the acquisition of 50% of the Acadia Power Station, or one of its two 580-MW units, as 
the lowest bid in its 2007 long-term Request for Proposal (RFP).  Cleco Power will own and operate one unit and operate the other 580-MW unit on behalf of Acadia or a 
future owner.    

Cleco Power and the parties executed the definitive agreements in 2009, and received Louisiana Public Service Commission (LPSC) and Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission (FERC) approvals for the transaction in January 2010 and February 2010, respectively.  Beginning in January 2010, Acadia operated the plant and served 
Cleco Power under a  
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tolling agreement covering 50% of the Acadia Power Station.  The tolling agreement was approved by the LPSC in October 2009 and by FERC in December 2009.  The 
tolling agreement was terminated when the transaction closed in February 2010.  For more information regarding the Cleco Power transaction, see Note 12 — 
“Subsequent Events.”  

In October 2009, Acadia and Entergy Louisiana LLC (Entergy Louisiana) announced that definitive agreements had been executed whereby Entergy Louisiana would 
acquire 50% of the Acadia Power Station, or one of its two 580-MW units.  The transaction is anticipated to be completed in late 2010 or early 2011.  The agreements 
provide that, beginning in May 2010, Acadia will serve Entergy Louisiana under a tolling agreement covering 50% of the Acadia Power Station until the transaction is 
completed.  Both the asset transaction and interim tolling agreement require regulatory approval.  Cleco Power will operate both units at Acadia Power Station after the 
Entergy Louisiana transaction is completed.  

In connection with these transactions and in exchange for reasonable consideration, APH has agreed to indemnify, upon the closing of these transactions, Cajun and 
its affiliates against 100% of Acadia’s liabilities and other obligations related to both the Cleco Power and Entergy Louisiana transactions.  

As a result of these transactions, certain assets met the criteria of assets held for sale and Acadia therefore meets the definition of discontinued operations.  For more 
information regarding assets held for sale, see Note 4 — “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Assets Held for Sale.”  
   
Note 4 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

Basis of Presentation  
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
and include the accounts of Acadia and its wholly owned subsidiary, Acadia Partners Pipeline LLC (the Pipeline).  All intercompany balances have been eliminated upon 
consolidation.  
   
Comparability of Financial Statements  
In the income statements for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, depreciation expense was based on the depreciable assets classified as held for use during 
the entire year.  In the income statement for the year ended December 31, 2009, depreciation expense was based on the depreciable assets classified as held for use for 
only part of 2009.  Depreciation expense ceased to be recognized when the assets met the criteria as held for sale.  Depreciation ceased in July and October 2009 for 
units one and two, respectively.  

Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and prepayments are not considered assets held for sale.  
   
Use of Estimates  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
these financial statements.  Actual results could differ from these estimates.  The most significant estimates with regard to these financial statements relate to the useful 
lives and carrying value of the Facility, related depreciation, and impairment of property, plant and equipment.    
   
Statements of Cash Flows  
The statements of cash flows are prepared using the “indirect method.”  This method requires that net income be adjusted to remove the effects of all deferrals and 
accruals of operating cash receipts and payments and the effects of all investing and financing cash flow items.  
   
Fair Value of Financial Instruments  
The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their fair values due to their short–term maturities.  
   
Concentration of Credit Risk  
The financial instruments that potentially expose Acadia to credit risk consist primarily of short-term investments classified as cash equivalents and accounts receivable.  

Acadia had $5.9 million in short-term investments in an institutional money market fund at December 31, 2009.  If the counterparty failed to perform under the terms 
of the investment, Acadia would be exposed to a loss of the invested amounts.  In order to mitigate this potential credit risk, Acadia has adopted investment guidelines for 
investments in money market funds, which specify the size, years in existence, portfolio makeup and rating agency category.  

Acadia is required to classify assets and liabilities measured at their fair value according to three different levels depending on the inputs used in determining fair 
value.  
   

   
At December 31, 2009, Acadia’s short-term investment was a Level 2 investment with a fair value of $5.9 million.  
Acadia has an agreement with Tenaska to market electricity on behalf of Acadia.  The agreement can be terminated upon Acadia’s seven-day notice to 

Tenaska.  Acadia recognizes revenue for sales under the agreement as deliveries are made.  Acadia’s receivables relating to these sales have exposure to trends within 
the energy industry, including declines in the creditworthiness of its customers.  Acadia does not believe there is significant credit risk associated with Tenaska due to its 
payment history.  For information on the marketing  
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�   Level 1 – unadjusted quoted prices in active, liquid markets for the identical asset or liability;  
�   Level 2 – quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets or other inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, including inputs that can be 

corroborated by observable market data, observable interest rate yield curves and volatilities;  
�   Level 3 – unobservable inputs based upon the entities own assumptions.  
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agreement, see Note 9 — “Significant Contractual Obligations — Energy Management Services Agreement.”  
   
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Acadia considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  The carrying amount of these 
instruments approximates fair value due to their short-term maturity.  
   
Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable  
Accounts receivable and payable represent amounts due from customers and owed to vendors, respectively, and are recorded at the invoiced amount.  Outstanding 
accounts receivable are reviewed by management and an allowance for doubtful accounts is established, if necessary.  Acadia had no allowance for doubtful accounts at 
December 31, 2009, compared to its December 31, 2008 balance of $0.5 million.  The $0.5 million allowance at December 31, 2008, was related to over-billings from 
Calpine to Acadia.  In 2009, the associated accounts receivable were written off against the allowance for doubtful accounts.  
   
Materials and Supplies Inventory  
Materials and supplies inventory is comprised of spare parts and is valued at the lower of cost or market.  The value of large spare parts estimated to be used within one 
year are determined using the specific identification method when issued from inventory.  For other spare parts, the value of the part when issued from inventory is 
generally determined using the weighted average cost method.  
   
Prepayments  
Prepayments include prepaid expenses for insurance, prepaid Long Term Program (LTP) payments, and prepaid maintenance expenses related to the outage on unit 
two.  Prepaid expense for insurance was $0.4 million at December 31, 2009, and 2008.  Prepaid LTP payments were $0.6 million and $1.1 million at December 31, 2009, 
and 2008, respectively.  Other prepaid maintenance expenses were $1.5 million and zero at December 31, 2009, and 2008, respectively.  For additional information on 
the LTP, see Note 10 — “Commitments and Contingencies — Long Term Program.”  
   
Assets Held for Sale  
A group of assets that meet the following criteria are considered held for sale:  
   

   
While an asset is held for sale, depreciation expense ceases to be recognized.  At December 31, 2009, Acadia’s materials and supplies and long-lived assets at a 

carrying cost of $2.2 million and $403.6 million, respectively, met the criteria as held for sale.  Concurrent with the classification as held for sale, Acadia performed an 
impairment test by comparing the fair market value less cost to sell to the carrying value of the assets.  Since the fair market value less cost to sell was greater than the 
carrying value of the assets, no impairment was recognized.    
   
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net  
Property, plant and equipment, net is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.  Asset additions, when ready for their intended use, are transferred from construction 
work in progress to property, plant and equipment.  Upon retirement or disposition, the difference between the net book value of the property and any proceeds received 
from the property is recorded as a gain or loss on asset disposition on the income statement.  Any costs incurred to remove the asset are charged to expense.  

The cost of repairs and minor replacements is charged to expense as incurred.  The costs of substantial improvements are capitalized.  Removal costs are expensed 
as incurred.  

Property, plant and equipment, net of estimated salvage value of 10% is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 
generally 35 years for Acadia’s power plant assets, including interconnect pipelines.  For all power plant assets with useful lives of 10 years or less, no salvage value is 
estimated.  Annual depreciation provisions expressed as a percentage of total depreciable property for Acadia were 1.97% for 2009, 2.99% for 2008, and 3.11% for 
2007.    

In July 2009, unit one and half of the common facilities met the criteria as held for sale.  In October 2009, the remaining unit two and common facilities met the criteria 
as held for sale.  Depreciation expense ceased to be recognized on the respective plant in those months.  Assets held for sale are reported at the lower of their fair value 
or net book value.  An impairment test determined that the net book value of property, plant and equipment was lower than the fair market value; therefore, the amounts 
are reported on the depreciated cost basis.  At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the components of property, plant and equipment, net consisted of the following:  

   

   
The decreases in buildings, machinery and equipment, and accumulated depreciation were due to retirements related to a planned outage.  For additional information 

on the outage, see Note 10 — “Commitments and Contingencies — Planned  
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�   A plan to sell has been approved by a level of management with authority;  
�   The asset is substantially available for immediate sale;  
�   An active program to find a buyer has been initiated;  
�   Except for events beyond an entity’s control (such as obtaining regulatory approvals), the sale of the asset within one year is probable;  
�   The sale price is reasonable compared to its current fair market value; and  
�   It is unlikely there will be significant changes to the plan or the plan will be withdrawn.  

          AT DECEMBER 31,   

    2009     2008   

Buildings, machinery and equipment    $ 490,701,548     $ 495,260,548   
Land      2,777,618       2,777,618   
Construction work in progress      1,177,457       266,927   
Less: Accumulated Depreciation      (91,034,177 )     (92,739,692 ) 
Property, plant and equipment, net    $ 403,622,446     $ 405,565,401   
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and Unscheduled Outages.”  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, depreciation expense was $9.7 million, $14.8 million, and $15.4 million, 
respectively.    

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on assets, Acadia evaluates the impairment of long-lived assets based on the projection of undiscounted cash flows 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of such assets may not be recoverable.  In accordance with these guidelines, such cash 
flows do not include interest or tax expense cash outflows.  In the event such cash flows are not expected to be sufficient to recover the recorded value of the assets, the 
assets are written down to their estimated fair values.  
   
Major Maintenance  
During 2009 and 2008, as major maintenance occurred and as parts were replaced on the plant’s steam and combustion turbines, the maintenance costs were either 
expensed or transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the parts’ estimated useful lives, which is generally three to six years, depending on the 
nature of maintenance activity performed under the LTP in place at that time.  

In January 2008, the LTP was amended, which amendment modified the maintenance and payment schedules.  Under the amended LTP, major parts are now 
warrantied.  Acadia makes quarterly payments to Siemens Energy based on a combination of the number of plant starts and/or run hours in that period.  These payments 
are expensed as incurred.  As outages occur, Acadia is billed for labor related to the outage and any parts not covered under the warranty.  The labor is expensed as 
incurred, and accruals are recorded through the normal accounts payable process.  
   
Revenue Recognition  
In April 2006, Acadia entered into an agreement with Tenaska Power Services Company (Tenaska) to market electricity from Acadia.  Acadia recognizes revenue for 
sales under the agreements as deliveries are made.  For information on the marketing agreement, see Note 9 — “Significant Contractual Obligations — Energy 
Management Services Agreement.”  

Acadia had a short-term power purchase agreement with Cleco Power for the months of March 2009 through September 2009.  This agreement was approved by 
both FERC and the LPSC.  Acadia recognized revenue for these sales as deliveries were made.  For more information on the short-term power purchase agreement, see 
Note 8 — “Related Party Transactions — Power Purchase Agreement with Cleco Power.”  
   
Other (Expense) Income  
Other (expense) income is primarily removal costs related to property, plant and equipment, partially offset by interest income.  For the years ended December 31, 2009 
and 2008, removal costs were $10.8 million and $0.2 million, respectively.  There were no removal costs in 2007.  
   
Income Taxes  
Acadia is a limited liability company and, for tax purposes, has elected to be treated as a partnership.  The financial results of Acadia are included in tax returns of the 
individual members.  Accordingly, no recognition has been given to income taxes in these consolidated financial statements.  
   
Note 5 — Future Operations 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that Acadia will continue as a going concern.  
At December 31, 2009, certain Acadia assets were considered assets held for sale due to the pending transactions between Acadia and Cleco Power and Entergy 

Louisiana.  The Cleco Power transaction was completed in February 2010.  If the Entergy Louisiana transaction is also completed, Acadia will no longer own any 
materials and supply inventory, property, plant and equipment, or land.  Ongoing operations will be minimal, related only to the previously established receivables and 
payables and servicing of indemnities.  Acadia will therefore meet the definition of discontinued operations.  For additional information regarding the Cleco Power and 
Entergy Louisiana transactions, see Note 3 — “Acadia Transactions” and Note 12 — “Subsequent Events.”  

If the Entergy Louisiana transaction does not occur, Acadia plans to continue to have a third party market electricity on its behalf.  However, marketing opportunities 
for Acadia are significantly impacted by the price of gas, the current over supply of gas-fired generation in the region, and transmission availability which can in turn limit 
the number of possible customers for Acadia’s output.  Due to these factors, management can not predict whether it or the third party marketer will be successful in its 
marketing efforts.  Management plans to continue to identify potential customers and continue bilateral discussions with counterparties for long-term sales and similar 
agreements to further hedge Acadia’s exposure to market risk.  However, due to these uncertainties and without the addition of non-operating cash flow such as external 
financing and/or additional equity from Acadia’s members, neither of which are assured or readily available, there is substantial doubt about  Acadia’s ability to continue 
as a going concern.  The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of 
assets or the amount and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of these uncertainties.  
   
Note 6 — Business Risks 

Several current issues in the power industry could have an effect on Acadia’s financial performance.  Some of the business risks that could cause future results to differ 
from historical results include:  (1) legislative and regulatory initiatives regarding deregulation, regulation or restructuring of the electric utility industry; (2) the extent and 
timing of the entry of additional competition in the market in which Acadia operates;  
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(3) state, federal and other rate regulations in the areas in which Acadia does business; (4) changes in or application of environmental and other laws and regulations to 
which Acadia is subject; (5) changes in market conditions, including developments in energy and commodity supply, volume and pricing; (6) weather and other natural 
phenomena; (7) the direct or indirect effects on the business resulting from the financial difficulties of competitors of Acadia, including but not limited to, their effects on 
liquidity in the trading and power industry and the views of the capital markets regarding the energy or trading industry; and (8) LPSC and FERC approvals of the plans to 
dispose of Acadia’s assets as planned.  
   
Note 7 — Recent Authoritative Guidance 

Acadia adopted, or will adopt, the recent authoritative guidance listed below on their respective effective dates.  
In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued authoritative guidance on consolidations, which gives guidelines on the presentation 

and disclosure of noncontrolling interests (currently known as minority interests) of consolidated subsidiaries.  This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be 
included in the equity section of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated income statement of the amounts of consolidated net income 
attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling interest, and expands disclosures.  The provisions of this statement are to be applied prospectively to fiscal 
years beginning on or after December 15, 2008.  Early adoption of this statement is prohibited.  The adoption of this statement will only impact the financial condition and 
results of operations of Acadia if it is involved in transactions within the scope of this statement after its effective date.  

In April 2009, FASB amended the authoritative guidance on business combinations to address application issues raised by preparers, auditors, and members of the 
legal profession on initial recognition and measurement, subsequent measurement and accounting, and disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a 
business combination.  This amendment applies to all assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies that would be 
within the scope of the contingencies accounting standard if the contingency is not acquired or assumed in a business combination, except for assets and liabilities arising 
from contingencies that are subject to specific guidance in the business combinations accounting standard.  An acquirer is required to develop a systematic and rational 
basis for subsequently measuring and accounting for assets and liabilities arising from contingencies depending on their nature.  An acquirer is required to disclose 
information that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of a business combination that occurs either during the current 
reporting period or after the reporting period but before the financial statements are issued.  This amendment was effective for assets and liabilities arising from 
contingencies in business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 
2008.  The adoption of this amendment had no impact on the financial condition or results of operations of Acadia.  

In June 2009, FASB amended the authoritative guidance on accounting for events occurring subsequent to the balance sheet date, but before the issuance of 
financial statements.  Certain subsequent events would require an entity to make adjustments to the financial statements and disclosure, whereas other events would only 
require disclosure.  Additionally, all entities are required to disclose the date through which they have evaluated subsequent events and whether the date corresponds 
with the release of their financial statements.  This amendment is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after June 15, 
2009.  Implementation of this amendment did not have an impact on the financial condition or results of operations of Acadia.  

In June 2009, FASB amended the authoritative guidance which identified the sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting them.  The Accounting 
Codification has become the source of authoritative GAAP recognized by FASB to be applied by nongovernmental entities.  This amendment was effective for financial 
statements issued for interim and annual periods after September 15, 2009.  

In September 2009, FASB issued various technical corrections to the Accounting Codification that did not have a material effect on the financial condition or results of 
operations of Acadia.  

In September 2009, FASB amended the authoritative guidance regarding revenue recognition of arrangements with multiple deliverables.  If an arrangement contains 
multiple deliverables, the selling entity must first determine the best estimate of the selling price of each deliverable.  Then the selling entity must allocate the selling price 
of the entire arrangement based upon the relative best estimate of the selling price of each deliverable.  This amendment also contains additional disclosures such as the 
nature of the arrangement, significant deliverables and general timing.  This amendment is effective for arrangements entered into or materially modified in fiscal years 
beginning on or after June 15, 2010.  Management is currently evaluating the impact this amendment will have on the financial condition or results of operations of 
Acadia.  

In September 2009, FASB amended fair value measurements by providing additional guidance related to measuring the fair value of certain alternative investments, 
such as interests in hedge funds, private equity funds, real estate funds, venture capital funds, offshore fund vehicles, and fund-of-funds.  If certain conditions are met, this 
amendment allows reporting entities to use net asset value per share to estimate the fair value of these investments as a practical expedient.  The amendment also 
requires disclosures by major category of investment about the attributes of the investments, such as the nature of any restrictions on the investor’s ability to redeem its 
investments at the measurement date, any unfunded commitments, and the investment strategies of the investees.  This amendment is effective for interim and annual 
periods ending after December 15, 2009, with early application permitted.    
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Implementation of this amendment did not have an impact on the financial condition or results of operations of Acadia.  
   
Note 8 — Related Party Transactions 

Project Management Agreement/Operations and Mainten ance Agreement  
Acadia contracted with CCLP to provide project management services, which included the operation of the Facility and administrative and billing services, and operation 
and maintenance of the generating assets, under two separate agreements.  The project management agreement (PMA) was dated February 29, 2000, and the operating 
and maintenance (O&M) agreement was dated July 27, 2001. Both were set to terminate on February 29, 2050, unless terminated by CCLP with 90 days notice.  Acadia 
reimbursed CCLP for costs and expenses of $7.3 million in Plant operations and maintenance expense for the year ended December 31, 2007.  

Beginning September 14, 2007, upon the closing of the CAH asset sale and with approval of the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court, the project management function 
and the operation and maintenance functions were transferred to APH, who subsequently contracted with Cleco Generation Services LLC (Generation Services) and 
Cleco Support Group LLC (Support Group) to provide project management and O&M services.  Generation Services is a subsidiary of Midstream and Support Group is a 
subsidiary of Cleco Corporation.  The responsibilities and duties to be performed by Generation Services and Support Group under the PMA and the O&M agreements 
are the same as the responsibilities of CCLP under the original PMA and O&M agreements.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, Acadia recorded 
expenses to Generation Services of $4.5 million and $3.5 million, respectively, for O&M services.  For the year ended December 31, 2009, and 2008, Acadia recorded 
expenses to Support Group of $1.1 million and $1.0 million, respectively, for project management services.  At December 31, 2009, Acadia had affiliate payable balances 
of $0.4 million and $0.1 million to Generation Services and Support Group, respectively.  
   
Electric Service Agreement  
Acadia has an agreement for electric service with Cleco Power, a subsidiary of Cleco Corporation, dated December 15, 2001.  The agreement covers electrical purchases 
of the Facility pursuant to Cleco Power’s LPSC Rate Schedule GS and its Rider Schedule for Long-Term Economic Development Services, subject to approval by the 
LPSC.  Based on this agreement, Acadia recognized expenses of $1.9 million, $2.2 million and $2.1 million in Plant operations and maintenance expense for electricity 
received for the years ended December 31 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  
   
Interconnection and Operating Agreement  
Acadia has an Interconnection and Operating Agreement with Cleco Power, dated February 25, 2000, pursuant to which Acadia’s Facility is interconnected to Cleco 
Power’s adjacent transmission facilities.  Acadia is obligated to construct, own, operate and maintain all the interconnection facilities and equipment on its side of the point 
of interconnections, and Cleco Power is obligated to construct, own, operate, and maintain the interconnection facilities and equipment on its side of the point of 
interconnection.  Based on this agreement, Acadia paid Cleco Power for the operation and maintenance of Acadia’s interconnection facilities and recognized expenses of 
less than $0.1 million in Plant operations and maintenance expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007.  
   
Power Purchase Agreement with Cleco Power  
Acadia had a short-term power purchase agreement with Cleco Power to provide 235-MW peaking product to Cleco Power.  The product was for supply that started 
March 1, 2009, and ended October 1, 2009.  Approvals from the LPSC and FERC were obtained for the agreement.  The total affiliate revenue recognized for the Cleco 
Power power purchase agreement for the year ended December 31, 2009, was $16.8 million.  
   
Other  
Cleco Corporation routinely makes purchases on behalf of Acadia or makes payments for Acadia as financial obligations of Acadia arise.  Amounts are reimbursed to 
Cleco Corporation by Acadia throughout the year.  These purchases and/or payments amounted to $0.2 million, $1.3 million, and $0.1 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively.  At December 31, 2009, and 2008, the balance owed to Cleco Corporation for these transactions was less than $0.1 
million.  
   
Note 9 — Significant Contractual Obligations 

Energy Management Services Agreement  
In April 2006, Acadia entered into an agreement with Tenaska to market electricity from Acadia.  The agreement can be terminated upon Acadia’s seven-day notice to 
Tenaska.  For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, Acadia recognized $33.7 million, $74.0 million, and $63.5 million, respectively, in revenues related to 
this agreement.  Acadia recognized $35.6 million, $63.3 million, and $53.3 million in operating expense related to this agreement for the years ended December 31, 2009, 
2008, and 2007, respectively.  
   
Tolling Agreements  
In October 2000, Acadia entered into a tolling agreement with Aquila that was effective for 20 years beginning July 1, 2002.  In May 2003, Acadia terminated this tolling 
agreement with Aquila in return for a cash settlement of $105.5 million.  CAH and APH agreed to distribute the proceeds as follows:  (i) CAH received the $105.5 million 
cash distribution in 2003; (ii) APH was entitled to receive an annual priority cash distribution of $14.0 million starting from July 2003 through June 30, 2022; (iii) all 
distributions in excess of the first $14.0 million were allocated between members in accordance with their respective interest; (iv) the priority distributions included  
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imputed interest based on the rate of approximately 12.1%.  Imputed interest for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, of $4.1 million and $6.0 million, 
respectively, was recorded as an adjustment to the Member capital balances of APH and CAH.  Due to the 2007 payment of the priority distributions, there was no 
imputed interest for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2009.  

The priority distribution for 2006 was not paid or accrued by Acadia due to the fact that there was no distributable cash, the management committee did not declare a 
distribution and there was uncertainty as to whether cash would be available and whether the management committee would declare a distribution in the future.  Under 
the LLC Agreement, priority distributions are cumulative, but only to the extent of available distributable cash and management committee declaration.    

In September 2007, subsequent to the approval of the Calpine Debtors Bankruptcy Court and the sale of the CAH Assets to Cajun, APH received payment from 
Cajun in the amount of $60.0 million for the agreed upon value of the priority distributions.  The $60.0 million distributions, reduced by interest on the distribution 
previously recorded, is reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Members’ Capital for the year 2007.  
   
Pipeline Operating Agreement  
Millennium Midstream Energy, LLC assumed responsibility for pipeline operations and maintenance in 2005 under the Pipeline Operations Agreement.  The agreement 
covers all operations, repair, improvements, alterations, inspections, testing, protection, and other operations and activities that are necessary to maintain pipeline assets 
in accordance with federal safety and maintenance standards and the regulations of the Louisiana Office of Conservation, and to accomplish the business objectives of 
Acadia.  Acadia recognized expense of $0.1 million in Plant operations and maintenance expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 for these services.  Acadia 
terminated this agreement in the first quarter of 2007, and responsibilities were assumed by Cleco Corporation.  

In January 2008, Acadia executed a new pipeline operation and maintenance agreement with GT Operating Company LLC.  Acadia recognized expenses of $0.1 
million in Plant operations and maintenance expense for each of the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.  Management anticipates no significant 
change to the level of payments for pipeline operations and maintenance in the future.  
   
Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies 

Long-Term Program  
Acadia entered into a LTP for spare parts, maintenance and related technical services on May 3, 2002 with Siemens Energy.  The term of the agreement, with respect to 
each of Acadia’s four combustion turbines, began upon the commercial operation date and terminates on an individual combustion turbine basis at the end of the 
scheduled maintenance following the second major inspection of each respective combustion turbine or sixteen years, whichever comes first.  In August 2006, an 
amendment was made to the LTP which established maintenance and payment schedules based on estimates of the number of starts in a given period.  The actual 
timing of maintenance may vary based on actual starts versus estimated starts due to operational and performance considerations.  Prior to this amendment, the 
maintenance and payment schedules were based on the estimated number of run hours.    

In January 2008, Acadia and Siemens Energy executed an amendment to the LTP modifying the maintenance and payment schedules based on the number of plant 
starts and/or run hours.  The purpose of the amendment was to attempt to better stabilize maintenance costs incurred for planned outages.  Management anticipates no 
significant change to the current level of maintenance payments made to Siemens Energy in the future.  
   
Planned and Unscheduled Outages  
In 2007, based on updated 2006 outage information relating to the combustion gas turbine unit CT-25, an additional $0.4 million of net book value for turbine parts was 
charged to expense.  Also in May and June of 2007, combustion gas turbine unit CT-11 had a planned one-month outage to perform work on the hot gas path 
(HGP).  Turbine parts with a net book value of $3.1 million were charged to expense.  

Siemens Energy replaced the Generator Rotor Pole Cross-Over on CT-24 and CT-25 generators during a planned outage in February 2008.  This resulted in removal 
expense of $0.2 million and asset retirements of less than $0.1 million.  

In the first and second quarters of 2009, Siemens Energy completed several projects at Acadia during an extended planned outage.  The Generator Rotor Pole 
Cross-Over on CT-11 and CT-12 generators were replaced resulting in removal expense of $0.2 million and asset retirements of less than $0.1 million.  Several High 
Pressure (HP), Intermediate Pressure (IP), and Low Pressure (LP) stationary and/or rotating blades and seals on Steam Turbine 13 and some of the HP blades on Steam 
Turbine 26 were replaced.  This resulted in removal costs of $1.4 million and asset retirements of $2.0 million.  Siemens Energy also performed Stator Coil Rewinds on 
CT-11 and CT-12.  Generator parts with a net book value of $1.6 million and removal costs of $1.3 million were charged to expense.  

In the fall of 2009, Siemens Energy began replacing several rows of HP, IP, and LP stationary and/or rotating blades on Steam Turbine 26.  As of December 31, 
2009, removal costs were $0.6 million and retirements totaled $1.0 million.  Steam Turbine 26 blade replacements are expected to be completed in the first quarter of 
2010.  National Electric Coil began Stator Coil Rewinds on CT-24 and CT-25 in the fall of 2009.  Stator Coil removal costs were $1.0 million and asset retirements were 
$1.7 million.  The Stator Coil Rewinds on CT-24 and CT-25 are expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2010.  
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Acadia Metering Dispute  
A potential electric metering error issue surfaced as a result of a 2005 review of the metering at the Facility.  The potential error caused Acadia to unknowingly generate 
excess power during the period June 2002 through May 2005, for which it received no compensation.  Acadia’s management decided that a right to assert a claim for 
compensation existed against a company with a transmission interconnection with the Facility.  In April 2007, Acadia assigned to each of its Members the right to assert a 
claim for 50% of the potential compensation owed by this company.  
   
Other Contingencies  
Acadia is involved in various legal and litigation matters arising in the normal course of business.  Management does not expect that the outcome of these proceedings 
will have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of Acadia.  
   
Note 11 — Environmental Matters 

The state of Louisiana regulates air and water emissions from Acadia’s facility under the authority of the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (LDEQ).  In 
addition, the LDEQ has been delegated authority over and implements certain environmental regulatory programs established by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency under the Clean Air Act and the Clean Water Act.  The LDEQ establishes specific standards for performance and requires permits for certain electric 
generating units in Louisiana. Acadia is currently in compliance in all material respects with the LDEQ regulations as well as its air and water permit requirements.  

However, on May 1, 2009, the Acadia Power Station became subject to certain daily maximum and monthly average discharge limitations for total sulfate under the 
terms of LPDES Water Discharge Permit No. LA0112836, issued by the LDEQ in April 2006.  The facility was unable to achieve compliance with these discharge 
limitations and received a compliance order from the LDEQ on July 31, 2009, to address the total sulfate violations.  In that compliance order, the LDEQ also noted 
violations of various daily maximum temperatures and whole effluent toxicity limits.  The LDEQ also found that Acadia had previously corrected and resubmitted discharge 
monitoring reports for four months in 2007, which the LDEQ contends are not timely submittals.  The LDEQ included these violations as well as the total sulfate violations 
in the compliance order.  Acadia believes that the total sulfate limits in the LPDES permit were calculated in error and were erroneously low and as such applied for a 
permit modification to increase the total sulfate limitations in the permit.  Acadia has now received a modified water discharge permit from the LDEQ which contains 
increased total sulfate limitations that can be met by the facility.  Acadia is operating in compliance with and under the terms of the modified LPDES permit and has 
requested that the LDEQ close the compliance order.  However, the LDEQ does have the ability to seek enforcement action on the violations of the water discharge 
permit limits experienced prior to the receipt of the water discharge permit modification.  For each of the violations described above, the LDEQ has the right to seek civil 
penalties.  At this time, Acadia is unable to determine whether the LDEQ will pursue any civil penalties as part of this enforcement action or what the penalty amounts will 
be.  
   
Note 12 — Subsequent Events 

As of February 25, 2010, management has evaluated the potential recognition or disclosure of events or transactions that occurred in the period after the balance sheet 
date of December 31, 2009.  The date December 31, 2009, represents the date that Acadia issued the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009.  

On February 23, 2010, the acquisition by Cleco Power of one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units, the related materials and supplies, and half of common facilities was 
completed.  The significant terms of the transaction are:  
   

 
  

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

�   Cleco Power acquired one of Acadia’s two 580-MW units, the related materials and supplies, and half of the common facilities for $304.0 million;  
�   Acadia will recognize a gain of approximately $87 million;  
�   APH received $6.7 million from an affiliate of Cajun for indemnification of Cajun and its affiliates against 100% of APH’s liabilities and other obligations related to 

the Cleco Power transaction; and  
�   Cleco Power will own and operate the unit at Acadia and operate the remaining unit on behalf of Acadia or a future owner.  
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Signatures 

   
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by 

the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 

   
Date:  February 25, 2010  
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in 
the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
 

 

 

      
 
 
  

CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

    CLECO CORPORATION    
    (Registrant)    
        
  By:   /s/  Michael H. Madison    
    (Michael H. Madison)    
    (President, Chief Executive Officer and Director)    

SIGNATURE  TITLE  DATE  
      

/s/  Michael H. Madison  President, Chief Executive Officer and Director  February 25, 2010  
(Michael H. Madison)  

   
(Principal Executive Officer)  

     

   
/s/ Darren J. Olagues  

   
Senior Vice President & CFO  

 
February 25, 2010  

(Darren J. Olagues)  
   

(Principal Financial Officer)  
     

   
/s/ R. Russell Davis  

   
Vice President – Investor Relations & CAO  

 
February 25, 2010  

(R. Russell Davis)  (Principal Accounting Officer)    

  DIRECTORS*    
  SHERIAN G. CADORIA    
  RICHARD B. CROWELL    
  J. PATRICK GARRETT    
  ELTON R. KING    
  LOGAN W. KRUGER    
  WILLIAM L. MARKS    
  ROBERT T. RATCLIFF, SR.    
  PETER M. SCOTT III    
  WILLIAM H. WALKER, JR.    
  W. LARRY WESTBROOK    

*By:  /s/  Michael H. Madison    February 25, 2010  
  (Michael H. Madison, as Attorney-in-Fact)     
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Signatures 

   
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by 

the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.  
 

 
   
Date:  February 25, 2010  
   

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in 
the capacities and on the dates indicated.  
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CLECO CORPORATION    
CLECO POWER 2009  FORM 10-K  

    CLECO POWER LLC    
    (Registrant)    
        
  By:   /s/  Michael H. Madison    
    (Michael H. Madison)    
    (Chief Executive Officer and Manager)    

SIGNATURE  TITLE  DATE  
      

/s/  Michael H. Madison  Chief Executive Officer and Manager  February 25, 2010  
(Michael H. Madison)  

   
(Principal Executive Officer)  

     

   
/s/  Darren J. Olagues  

   
Senior Vice President & CFO  

 
February 25, 2010  

(Darren J. Olagues)  
   

(Principal Financial Officer)  
     

   
/s/ R. Russell Davis  

   
Vice President – Investor Relations & CAO  

 
February 25, 2010  

(R. Russell Davis)  (Principal Accounting Officer)    

  MANAGERS*    
  SHERIAN G. CADORIA    
  RICHARD B. CROWELL    
  J. PATRICK GARRETT    
  ELTON R. KING    
  LOGAN W. KRUGER    
  WILLIAM L. MARKS    
  ROBERT T. RATCLIFF, SR.    
  PETER M. SCOTT III    
  WILLIAM H. WALKER, JR.    
  W. LARRY WESTBROOK    

*By:  /s/  Michael H. Madison    February 25, 2010  
  (Michael H. Madison, as Attorney-in-Fact)     
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EXHIBIT 10(b)(3) 
 

CLECO CORPORATION  
401(k) SAVINGS AND INVESTMENT PLAN  

STOCK TRUST AGREEMENT  
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  
 

WHEREAS , Cleco Corporation (“Cleco”) maintains the 401(k) Savings and Investment Plan Stock Trust Agreement in connection with the 401(k) Savings 
and Investment Plan, as the same has been amended from time to time (the “Plan”), such trust most recently amended and restated effective as of August 1, 1997 (the 
“Trust Agreement”);  
 

WHEREAS , the Board of Directors of Cleco possesses the authority to amend the Trust Agreement, pursuant to Article Thirteenth thereof;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED , effective as of January 1, 1999, the Trust Agreement shall be amended as follows:  
 

I.  
 

The fifth and sixth paragraphs of Article Second, entitled “Investment Powers,” shall be amended and restated in their entirety as follows:  
 

 
II.  

 
Article Fourth, paragraph (3) of the Trust Agreement shall be amended and restated in its entirety as follows:  

 
(3)    power to vote in person or by proxy at corporate or other meetings and to participate in or consent to any voting trust, reorganization, dissolution, 
merger or other action affecting securities in its possession or the issuers thereof; provided , however , that each Participant in the Plan who has an interest in 
the Company Stock Fund or in Company Stock allocated to his or her ESOP account shall be entitled to  

   
   

   

   Except in the event of a tender or exchange offer as hereinafter provided, or in the case of fractional shares received in any stock dividend, stock split or other 
recapitalization or as is necessary to make any distribution or payment from the Trust Fund, or unless expressly provided by ERISA, the Trustee shall have no 
power or duty to sell, tender, exchange or otherwise dispose of any of the stock held in the Fund (the securities held in such fund to constitute Company Stock 
within the meaning of Section 1.10 of the Plan).  In the event that a tender or exchange offer is made for all or any portion of the stock held in the Company 
Stock Fund, the Trustee shall tender or exchange such shares only upon receipt of and in accordance with the directions of the Administrator.  All property 
received in exchange for such Company Stock so tendered shall be held by the Trustee in the Fund subject to the terms and conditions of this Trust Agreement, 
which agreement shall be deemed amended to permit the holding of such property within such Fund.  
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(4)     direct the Trustee as to the manner in which Company Stock having voting rights which is allocated to such Participant’s Accounts is to be voted.  The 
Trustee, itself or by its nominee, shall be entitled to vote and shall vote said stock with voting rights allocated to the Accounts of said Participants as 
follows:  (i) the Company shall adopt reasonable measures to notify said Participants of the date and purposes of each meeting of stockholders of the Company 
at which holders of shares of stock shall be entitled vote, and to request instructions from such Participants to the Company, its agent or the Trustee as to the 
voting at such meeting of the number of shares of Company Stock (including fractional shares) in the account of each such Participant, whether or not vested, 
(ii) in each case, the Trustee, itself or by proxy, shall vote the shares of said stock (including fractional shares) in the account of each such Participant in 
accordance with the directions of the Participant as communicated directly to the Trustee or to the Trustee by the Company or its agent, and (iii) if prior to the 
time of such meeting of stockholders (or a date prior thereto specified by the Trustee), the Trustee shall not have received timely directions from a Participant 
as to the manner of voting any shares of allocated stock in the Accounts of such Participant, the Trustee shall not vote such shares.  The Trustee shall vote 
shares of stock held in the Stock Suspense Account in accordance with the instructions of the Administrator.  

 
   

THIS AMENDMENT has been executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall has been deemed an original, this 15 th day of February, 1999.  
 

 
REVIEWED AND ACCEPTED by UMB Bank, N.A., a national banking association with its principal place of business at Kansas City, Missouri, appointed 

as the trustee under the Trust Agreement.  
 

 
 
 

2  
 
 

  CLECO CORPORATION  
    
  By:   /s/ Gregory L. Nesbitt                           
    
  Its:   Chairman and Chief Executive Officer  

  UMB BANK, N.A.  
    
  By:   /s/ William A. Hann                              
    
  Its:   Senior Vice President                            
    
  Date:   March 17, 1999                                  
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EXHIBIT 10(e)(5) 
 
 

CLECO CORPORATION  
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

(Level One)  
 

This Executive Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between Michael H. Madison (“Executive”), and Cleco 
Corporation, a Louisiana corporation (the “Company”), and is intended to amend, restate, and replace, in its entirety, that certain Executive Employment Agreement 
(Level 1) by and between the Company and Executive dated October 1, 2003 (the “Prior Agreement”) .  
 
1.           Employment; Term:  
 

1.1             Position.   The Company shall employ and retain Executive as its President and Chief Executive Officer or in such other capacity or capacities as 
shall be mutually agreed upon, from time to time, by Executive and the Company, and Executive agrees to be so employed, subject to the terms and conditions set forth 
herein.  Executive’s duties and responsibilities shall be those assigned to him or her hereunder, from time to time, by the Board of Directors of the Company and shall 
include such duties as are the type and nature normally assigned to similar executive officers of a corporation of the size, type and stature of the Company.  Executive 
shall report to the Company’s Board of Directors.  
 

1.2             Term.   Executive’s employment hereunder shall commence as of October 1, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) and shall continue for two successive 
years; provided that on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and each succeeding anniversary thereafter, this Agreement shall be renewed for an additional one-
year term unless either party provides written notice to the other that this Agreement shall not be further renewed, such notice to be provided not later than 30 days prior 
to the end of the then-current term hereof (the period between the Effective Date and the expiration or termination of this Agreement referred to herein as the 
“Employment Term”).  
 

1.3             Full Time and Attention.   During the Employment Term, Executive shall devote his or her full time and attention to the business of the Company 
and will not, without the prior written consent of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, be engaged (whether or not during normal business hours) in any other 
business or professional activity, whether or not such activities are pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage.  
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall not be prevented from (a) engaging in any civic or charitable activity for which Executive receives no 
compensation or other pecuniary advantage, (b) investing his or her personal assets in businesses which do not compete with the Company, provided that such 
investments will not require any services on the part of Executive in the operation of the affairs of the businesses and that Executive’s participation is solely that of an 
investor, or (c) purchasing securities in any corporation whose securities are regularly traded, provided that such purchases will not result in Executive owning 
beneficially at any time 5% or more of the equity securities of any corporation engaged in a business competitive with that of the Company.  
 
2.           Compensation and Benefits:  
 

2.1             Base Compensation.   The Company shall pay Executive an annual salary equal to his or her annual base salary in effect as of the Effective Date, 
such amount shall be prorated and paid in equal installments in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices and policies (Executive’s “Base 
Compensation”).  Executive’s Base Compensation shall be reviewed not less often than annually and may be increased or reduced by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (the “Board”), in its sole discretion;  
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provided, however, that Executive’s Base Compensation may not be reduced at any time unless such reduction is part of a reduction in pay uniformly applicable to all 
officers of the Company.  
 

2.2             Bonuses, Incentives and Other Benefits.   During the Employment Term, Executive shall be eligible for participation in the Company’s:  
 

 
b.             2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”); and  

 
c.             Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”),  

 
each as may be amended, restated, supplemented or replaced, from time to time, in accordance with its terms.  
 

Executive further shall participate in such plans, policies, and programs as may be maintained, from time to time, by the Company or any affiliate thereof, at 
least 80% of the common stock or other equity interests of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company (an “Affiliate”), for the benefit of senior executives or 
employees of the Company.  Such plans, policies and programs may include, without limitation, profit sharing, life insurance, and group medical and other welfare 
benefit plans.  Any payments or benefits thereunder shall be subject to and determined in accordance with the specific terms and conditions of the documents evidencing 
any such separate plans, policies, and programs.  
 

2.3             Reimbursement of Expenses.   The Company shall reimburse Executive for such reasonable and necessary expenses as are incurred in carrying out 
his or her duties hereunder, consistent with the Company’s standard policies and annual budget.  The Company’s obligation to reimburse Executive hereunder shall be 
contingent upon the presentment by Executive of an itemized accounting of such expenditures.  
 
3.           Termination:  
 

3.1             Termination Payments to Executive.   As otherwise provided in this Section 3, in the event of his or her termination of employment with the 
Company (the date of such termination referred to herein as Executive’s “Termination Date”), Executive may be paid:  
 

 

 

 

   
   

   a.  Annual Incentive Compensation Plan (referred to as the “ Incentive Plan” ; any bonus paid thereunder referred to as an “ Incentive Bonus”);  

   a.  Executive’s Base Compensation in effect as of his or her Termination Date for the remainder of his or her Employment Term, such term determined as 
if the notice of nonrenewal described in Section 1.2 hereof was furnished to Executive as of the Termination Date, but in no event less than his or her 
annualized Base Compensation.  

   b.  Executive’s Incentive Bonus for the year in which his or her Termination Date occurs,  prorated to reflect Executive’s actual period of service during 
such year.  

   c.  The Company shall, at the written request of Executive:  

   i.  Purchase of the principal residence occupied by Executive as of his or her Termination Date (Executive’s “Principal Residence”), provided 
such Principal Residence is located within 60 miles of Executive’s primary work location, for an amount equal to the greater of (x) the fair 
market value of such residence as determined by the Company’s third party relocation service, or (y) the purchase  

2 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 2696 of 9808



   
   

   

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be obligated hereunder, unless Executive actually relocates to a new principal residence that is 
more than 60   miles from his or her Principal Residence and Executive submits his or her written request to the Company for the purchase of such 
residence not later than 12 months after Executive’s Termination Date.  In any event, payment hereunder shall be made not later than December 31st 
of the calendar year following the year in which Executive’s Termination Date occurs.  

 

 

 
Any amount or benefit provided hereunder shall be in lieu of any severance or other cash payment available under any severance pay plan or similar 

arrangement maintained by the Company or an Affiliate.  The amount and benefits described herein shall be in addition to any amount or benefit the Company is 
required by law to provide, including, without limitation, Executive’s accrued but unpaid wages, and any amount or benefit to which Executive may be entitled as of his 
or her Termination Date under any separation benefit or retirement plan maintained by the company or its Affiliates.  
 

3.2             Waiver and Release.   Any amount payable to Executive under this Section 3, other than a payment on account of Executive’s death or Disability, 
shall be contingent upon Executive’s timely execution and delivery to the Company of a waiver and release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company.   If 
Executive fails to execute such a waiver and release at the time and in the manner requested by the Company, no payment, benefit or reimbursement shall be due 
hereunder.  
 

3.3             Death or Disability .  If Executive dies or becomes Disabled during the Employment Term, Executive’s employment hereunder shall immediately 
terminate and the Company’s obligations hereunder shall cease.  In such event, the Company shall pay to Executive (or his or her estate) an amount determined in 
accordance with Section 3.1b hereof in the form of a single-sum at the time Executive would have otherwise received such bonus notwithstanding his or her death or 
Disability.   For purposes of this Section 3.2, Executive shall be deemed “Disabled” or a “Disability” shall be deemed to occur if Executive is actually receiving benefits 
under the Company’s separate long-term disability plan.  
 

3.4             Company’s Termination for Cause.   This Agreement and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company on account of 
Cause.  In such event, no payments or benefits shall be due to Executive from the Company, except as may be required under a separate plan,  

   
   

      price of such residence and the documented cost of any capital improvements made to the such residence made by Executive, but not more 
than 120% of such purchase price; and  

   ii.  Pay or reimburse Executive for the cost of relocating Executive, his or her immediate family and their household goods and other personal 
property, in accordance with the Company’s usual relocation practice, to any location in the continental United States.  

   d.  If Executive timely elects to continue coverage under the Company’s group medical plan within the meaning of Code Section 4980B(f)(2), the 
Company shall pay to the Executive an amount equal to the continuation coverage premium for the same type and level of coverage elected by 
Executive and/or his or her spouse or dependents for a period of 18 months or until the Executive secures other employment where group health 
insurance is provided, whichever period is shorter.  

   e.  Executive’s Incentive Bonus in the target amount, determined with respect to the year in which his or her Termination Date occurs.  
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policy or program evidencing a retirement or other benefit arrangement or as may be required by law to be provided.  
 

For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means that Executive has:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
No act or failure to act on the part of Executive will be deemed “intentional” if it was due primarily to an error in judgment or negligence, but will be deemed 
“intentional” only if done or omitted to be done by Executive not in good faith and without reasonable belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interest of 
the Company or an Affiliate.  
 

3.5             Executive’s Constructive Termination.   Executive may terminate this Agreement and his or her employment on account of a Constructive 
Termination. In such event, the Company shall pay or provide to Executive:  
 

 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, “Constructive Termination” means:  

   

   a.  Committed an intentional act of fraud, embezzlement or theft in the course of employment or otherwise engaged in any intentional misconduct which 
is materially injurious to the financial condition or business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates;  

   b.  Committed intentional damage to the property of the Company and its Affiliates or Executive has committed intentional wrongful disclosure of 
proprietary information or Confidential Information (as defined in Section 5.2 hereof), which is materially injurious to the financial condition or 
business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates;  

   c.  Been convicted with no further possibility of appeal, or entered a guilty or nolo contendere plea, for a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude;  

   d.  Willfully and substantially refused to perform the essential duties of his or her position after written notice from the Company;  

   e.  Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of the Company’s code of conduct or equivalent code of policy that is 
applicable to Executive;  

   f.  Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or any of the rules adopted by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission implementing any such provision; or  

   g.  Failed to fully cooperate to the extent requested by the Company or an Affiliate with investigations by government or independent agencies involving 
the Company or an Affiliate.  

   a.  The amounts determined under Sections 3.1a, 3.1d and 3.1e hereof, which shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 45 days after Executive’s 
Termination Date, provided that Executive has then satisfied all applicable conditions; and  

   b.  The benefit described in Section 3.1c hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
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c.             A material breach of this Agreement by the Company.  

 
No event or condition described in this Section 3.5 shall constitute a Constructive Termination unless (a) Executive provides to the Company written notice of his or her 
objection to such event or condition not later than 60 days after Executive first learns of such event or condition, (b) such event or condition is not corrected by the 
Company promptly after receipt of such notice, but in no event more than 30 days after receipt of notice, and (c) Executive resigns his or her employment with the 
Company and all Affiliates not more than 15 days following the expiration of the 30-day period described in subparagraph (b) hereof.  
 

3.6             Termination by the Company, Without Cause.   The Company may terminate this Agreement and Executive’s employment hereunder, without 
Cause, upon 30 days prior written notice to Executive (or such shorter period as may be agreed upon by Executive and the Chief Executive Officer.  In such event, the 
Company shall pay or provide to Executive the amounts and benefits described in Section 3.5 hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 

3.7             Termination by Executive.   Executive may terminate this Agreement and his or her employment hereunder, other than on account of Constructive 
Termination, upon 30 days prior written notice to the Company or such shorter period as may be agreed upon by the Chief Executive Officer and Executive.  In such 
event, no additional payments or benefits shall be due hereunder, except as may be provided under a separate plan, policy or program evidencing a retirement or other 
benefit plan or as may be required by law to be provided.  
 

3.8             Return of Property.   Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Executive  shall promptly return to the Company all of the property of 
the Company and its Affiliates, including, without limitation, automobiles, equipment, computers, fax machines, portable telephones, printers, software, credit cards, 
manuals, customer lists, financial data, letters, notes, notebooks, reports and copies of any of the above and any Confidential Information that is in the possession or 
under the control of Executive, regardless of the form in which it is held or maintained.  
 

3.9             Expiration of Agreement.   Upon expiration of the term of this Agreement, including any renewal thereof, the obligations of the Company 
hereunder shall cease.  Executive shall then be deemed to be an at-will employee of the Company or an Affiliate, as the case may be, subject to the rights and limitations 
attendant to such status.  He or she shall be and remain bound by the provisions of Section 5 hereof, which shall survive such expiration.  
 
4.           Change in Control:  
 

4.1             Waiver and Release.   Any amount payable to Executive under this Section 4, whether on account of Change in Control or a Business Transaction, 
shall be contingent upon Executive’s timely execution and delivery to the Company of a waiver and release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company.  If 
Executive fails to execute such a waiver and release at the time and in the manner requested by the Company, no payment, benefit or reimbursement shall be due 
hereunder.  
   

   a.  A material reduction (other than a reduction in pay uniformly applicable to all officers of the Company) in the amount of Executive’s Base 
Compensation;  

   b.  A material reduction in Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities from those contemplated in Section 1.1 of this Agreement; or  

5 

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 2699 of 9808



   
4.2             Definitions.   The terms “Change in Control” and “Business Transaction” shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Equity Incentive Plan, as 

the same may be amended from time to time.  The term “Good Reason” shall mean that in connection with a Change in Control:  
 

 

 

 

 
No event or condition described in this Section 4.2 shall constitute Good Reason unless (a) Executive gives the Company written notice of his or her objection to such 
event or condition within 60 days after Executive first learns of it, (b) such event or condition is not promptly corrected by the Company, but in no event later than 30 
days after receipt of such notice, and (c) Executive resigns his or her employment with the Company and its Affiliates not more than 60 days following the expiration of 
the 30-day period described in subparagraph (b) hereof.  
 

4.3             Termination In Connection With a Change in Control.   If Executive’s employment is involuntarily terminated by the Company, without Cause, 
and other than on account of Executive’s death or Disability or Executive terminates his or her employment hereunder for Good Reason, either occurring during the 60-
day period preceding or the 36-month period following a Change in Control, then notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary and in lieu of any 
compensation or benefits otherwise provided or payable hereunder:  
 

 

 

   
   

   a.  Executive’s Base Compensation in effect immediately before such Change in Control is reduced or there is a significant reduction or termination of 
Executive’s rights to any employee benefit in effect immediately prior to the change;  

   b.  Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities are significantly reduced from those contemplated in Section 1.1 hereof or Executive has reasonably 
determined that, as a result of a change in circumstances that significantly affects his or her employment with the Company or an Affiliate, he or she is 
unable to exercise the authority, power, duties and responsibilities contemplated in such section;  

   c.  Executive is required to be away from his or her office in the course of discharging his or her duties and responsibilities under this Agreement 
significantly more than was required prior to the Change in Control; or  

   d.  Executive is required to transfer to an office or business location located more than 60 miles from the primary location to which he or she was 
assigned prior to the Change in Control.  

   a.  The Company shall pay to Executive an amount equal to three times the sum of Executive’s annualized Base Compensation and target bonus, each 
determined immediately before the consummation of the Change in Control, which amount shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 30 days after 
Executive’s Termination Date or the first business day thereafter;  

   b.  The Company shall provide to Executive the benefit described in Section 3.1c hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein;  

   c.  The Company shall pay to Executive the amount described in Section 3.1d hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, but for a period 
of 36 months, which amount shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 30 days after Executive’s Termination Date or the first business day 
thereafter;  
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4.4             Tax Payment. If any payment to Executive pursuant to this Agreement or any other payment or benefit made for the benefit of Executive by the 

Company or an Affiliate in connection with a Change in Control is subject to the excise tax imposed under Code Section 4999 or any similar excise or penalty tax 
payable under any United States federal, state, local or other law, the Company shall pay to Executive an amount such that, after the payment by Executive of all taxes 
due on such amount, there remains a balance sufficient to pay the principal amount of such excise or penalty tax.  Executive shall promptly submit to the Company the 
amount to be paid under this Section 4.4, together with supporting documentation.  If Executive and the Company disagree as to such amount, an independent public 
accounting firm appointed by the Company shall make such determination, and such determination shall be final and binding on the parties hereto.  Any payment due 
hereunder shall be made by the Company in the form of a single-sum promptly, but in no event later than December 31st of the calendar year following the year in 
which Executive remits the amount of such excise or penalty tax to the Internal Revenue Service or other taxing authority.  
 

4.5             Business Transaction Benefit.   If Executive’s employment with the Company and its Affiliates is involuntarily terminated by the Company in 
connection with a Business Transaction, other than on account of Cause, then Executive shall receive the benefits described in Sections 4.3e and 4.3f hereof.  Further, if 
Executive is not rehired by the successor or surviving entity involved in such transaction, the Company shall pay to Executive the amount described in Section 3.6 
hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 
5.           Limitations on Activities:  
 

5.1.             Consideration for Limitation on Activities.   Executive acknowledges that the execution of this Agreement and the payments described herein 
constitute consideration for the limitations on activities set forth in this Section 5, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged.  
   

   d.  The Company shall pay to Executive an amount equal to three times the maximum matching contribution determined under the Cleco Corporation 401
(k) Savings and Investment Plan, as the same may be amended or restated from time to time, determined as if Executive deferred thereunder the 
maximum amount permitted under Code Section 402(g); such amount shall be paid in the form of a single-sum payment 30 days after Executive’s 
Termination Date or the first business day thereafter;  

   e.  Vesting shall be accelerated, any restrictions shall lapse, and all target and opportunity performance objectives shall be deemed satisfied at the 
maximum level as to any then outstanding grant or award made under the Equity Incentive Plan and/or the 1990 Long-Term Incentive Compensation 
Plan; Executive shall further be entitled to such additional benefits or rights as may be provided in the documents evidencing such plans or the terms 
of any agreement evidencing such grant or award; and  

   f.  Executive shall be fully vested for purposes of any service or similar requirement imposed under the SERP, regardless of the actual number of his or 
her years of service; Executive shall be credited with an additional three years of age for purposes of determining his or her benefit percentage under 
the SERP, but in no event shall such benefit percentage be less than 50%; and Executive shall be credited with an additional three years of age for 
purposes of determining any reduction taken with respect to benefits commencing before Executive’s normal retirement date (as defined in such plan). 
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5.2             Confidential Information.   Executive recognizes and acknowledges that during the terms of his or her employment, he or she has and will have 

access to confidential, proprietary, non-public information concerning the Company and its Affiliates, which may include, without limitation, (a) books and records 
relating to operations, finance, accounting, personnel and management, (b) price, rate and volume data, future price and rate plans, and test data, (c) information related 
to product design and development, (d) computer software, customer lists, information obtained on competitors, and sales tactics, and (e) various other non-public trade 
or business information, including business opportunities, marketing or business diversification plans, acquisitions, methods and processes, and financial data and the 
like (collectively, the “Confidential Information”).  Executive agrees that he or she will not at any time, either while employed by the Company or afterwards, make any 
independent use of, or disclose to any other person or organization (except as authorized by the Company or pursuant to court order) any of the Confidential 
Information.  
 

5.3             Non-Solicitation.   Executive agrees that during the one-year period commencing as of the date of voluntary termination by Executive as described 
in Section 3.7 hereof or the involuntary termination of Executive on account of Cause as described in Section 3.4 hereof, he or she shall not, directly or indirectly, for his 
or her own benefit or on behalf of another or to the Company’s or an Affiliate’s detriment:  
 

 

 

 
The provisions of this Section 5.3 shall apply in the locations set forth on Exhibit A hereto, as the same may be amended by the Company from time to time.  Executive 
acknowledges that the Company and its Affiliates are presently doing business in such locations and that during the Employment Term Executive will be required to 
provide services to or for the benefit of the Company or its Affiliates in such locations.  
 

5.4             Business Reputation.   Executive agrees that during the Employment Term and at all times thereafter, he or she shall refrain from performing any 
act, engaging in any conduct or course of action or making or publishing an adverse, untrue or misleading statement which has or may reasonably have the effect of 
demeaning the name or business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates or which adversely affects (or may reasonably adversely affect) the best interests, economic 
or otherwise, of the Company or an Affiliate.  
 

5.5             Restrictions Reasonable.   The parties agree that each of the restrictions set forth in this Section 5 is intended to constitute a separate 
restriction.  Accordingly, should any such prohibition be declared invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition shall be deemed severable from and shall not affect the 
remainder thereof.  The parties further agree that each of the foregoing restrictions is reasonable in both time and geographic scope.  The parties further agree that should 
a court or arbitrator determine that any restriction set forth herein is unenforceable, such court of arbitrator may reform such restriction to the extent necessary to provide 
for its enforcement under applicable law.  
 

5.6             Remedies.   In the event of a breach or threatened breach by Executive of the provisions of Sections 5.2, 5.3 or 5.4 hereof, Executive agrees that (a) 
the Company shall be entitled to a temporary restraining order or a preliminary injunction, without the necessity of posting bond in connection therewith, which may be 
obtained by means of a judicial proceeding notwithstanding the provisions of  

   

   a.  Hire or offer to hire any of the Company’s or Affiliate’s officers, employees or agents;  

   b.  Persuade or attempt to persuade in any manner any officer, employee or agent of the Company or an Affiliate to discontinue any relationship with the 
Company; or  

   c.  Solicit or divert or attempt to divert any customer or supplier of the Company or an Affiliate.  
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Section 6.16 hereof, and (b) any additional payments or benefits due to Executive or his or her spouse or dependents under Sections 3 and 4 hereof shall be canceled and 
forfeited, except any amount tendered to Executive as consideration for his or her waiver and release.  Nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting the Company 
from pursuing any other remedy available to it for such breach or threatened breach, including the recovery of damages from Executive.  
 
6.           General:  
 

6.1             Specified Executive Delay.   In the event the Company determines that Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 
409A as of his or her Termination Date, then, notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall postpone until the first business day 
of the seventh calendar month following Executive’s Termination Date (the “Delayed Payment Date”) any payment or benefit hereunder which is deemed on account of 
Executive’s separation from service and not otherwise permitted to be paid or furnished under Code Section 409A, including any regulation or guidance promulgated 
thereunder.  Any payment made as of Executive’s Delayed Payment Date shall include the principal amount of all payments suspended between Executive’s 
Termination Date and such date, without liability for interest or other loss of investment opportunity.  
 

6.2             Mitigation Not Required.   Except as provided in Section 3.1d hereof, as a condition of any payment hereunder, Executive shall not be required to 
mitigate the amount of such payment by seeking other employment or otherwise, nor will any profits, income, earnings or other benefits from any source whatsoever 
create any mitigation, offset, reduction or any other obligation on the part of Executive under this Agreement.  
 

6.3             Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.   In the event any dispute in connection with this Agreement arises with respect to obligations of Executive or the 
Company that were required prior to the occurrence of a Change in Control, all costs, fees and expenses, including attorney fees, of any arbitration or other legal action 
in connection with such matters in which Executive substantially prevails, shall be borne by the Company.  
 

After a Change in Control has occurred, Executive shall not be required to incur legal fees and the related expenses associated with the interpretation, 
enforcement or defense of Executive’s rights under this Agreement.  Accordingly, if, following a Change in Control, the Company fails to comply with any of its 
obligations under this Agreement or the Company or any other person takes or threatens to take any action to declare this Agreement void or unenforceable, Executive 
shall be entitled to retain counsel of Executive’s choice, at the expense of the Company, to advise and represent Executive in connection with any such interpretation, 
enforcement or defense, except as to any action brought to enforce the provisions of Section 5 hereof.  In such event, the Company shall pay and be solely financially 
responsible for any and all attorneys’ and related fees and expenses incurred by Executive in connection with any of the foregoing, without regard to whether Executive 
prevails, in whole or in part.  
 

In no event shall Executive be required to reimburse the Company for any of the costs and expenses incurred by the Company relating to arbitration, litigation 
or other legal action in connection with this Agreement.  
 

If Executive claims the reimbursement of fees, costs or expenses hereunder, Executive’s claim shall be made not later than the last day of the calendar year 
following the year in which the expense was incurred.  The Company shall pay such amount promptly, but not later than the last day of the calendar year following the 
year in which Executive claims reimbursement hereunder.  
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6.4             No Set-Off.   There shall be no right of set-off or counterclaim in respect of any claim, debt or obligation against any payment to Executive 

provided for in this Agreement.  
 

6.5             Assistance with Litigation.   After Executive’s Termination Date and for a period of one year after the end of the last period with respect to which 
Executive will have received any compensation under this Agreement, Executive will furnish such information and proper assistance as may be reasonably necessary in 
connection with any litigation in which the Company or an Affiliate is then or may become involved.  
 

6.6             Headings.   Section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement.  
 

6.7             Entire Agreement.   This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter 
hereof, and there are no other agreements, understandings, restrictions, representations or warranties among the parties other than those set forth herein.  Executive 
expressly acknowledges that this Agreement extinguishes, in their entirety, the rights and obligations of the parties under Executive’s Prior Agreement.  
 

6.8             Amendments.   This Agreement may be amended or modified at any time in any or all respects, but only by an instrument in writing executed by 
the parties hereto.  
 

6.9             Choice of Law.   The validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms, and the determination of the rights and duties of the parties hereto 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Louisiana applicable to contracts made to be performed wholly within such state.  
 

6.10             Notices.   All notices and other communications under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when (a) 
delivered by hand, (b) sent by telecopier to a telecopier number given below, provided that a copy is sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt 
requested), or (c) when received by the addressee, if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested), in each case as follows:  
 

If to Executive:                      Last address on file with the Company  
 

If to the Company:               Cleco Corporation  
2030 Donahue Ferry Road  
Pineville, LA 71360  
Telecopier: 318- 484-7777  
Attention: Chairman, Board of Directors  

 
or to such other addresses as a party may designate by notice to the other party.  
 

6.11             Assignment.   This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company, its Affiliates, and their successors and assigns, 
including, without limitation, any person, partnership, company, corporation or other entity that may acquire substantially all of the Company’s assets or business or 
with or into which the Company may be liquidated, consolidated, merged or otherwise combined, and will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Executive, his or 
her heirs, estate, legatees and legal representatives.  If payments become payable to Executive’s surviving spouse or other assigns and such person thereafter dies, such 
payment will revert to Executive’s estate.  
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6.12             Severability.   Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable.  In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this 
Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision was not contained herein.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
however, no provision shall be severed if it is clearly apparent under the circumstances that the parties would not have entered into this Agreement without such 
provision.  
 

6.13             Withholding.   As a condition of the receipt of any payment or benefit hereunder, the Company or an Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold any 
federal, state or local taxes required by law to be withheld.  
 

6.14             Survival.   Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent applicable, the rights and obligations of the Company under Sections 3, 
4, and 6 hereof and the rights and obligations of Executive under Sections 5 and 6, shall remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  
 

6.15             Waiver.   The failure of either party to insist in any one or more instances upon performance of any terms or conditions of this Agreement will not 
be construed as a waiver of future performance of any such term, covenant, or condition and the obligations of either party with respect to such term, covenant or 
condition will continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16             Arbitration.   Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by binding arbitration 
administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Employment Arbitration Rules, and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered 
in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  Both the Company and Executive hereby consent to this binding arbitration provision.  
 

The existence of any claim or cause of action by Executive, whether predicated on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the 
enforcement by the Company or any of its Affiliates of any provision hereof.  The Company’s remedies for breach of this Agreement shall be cumulative and the pursuit 
of one remedy shall not be deemed to exclude any other remedies.  
 

This Executive Employment Agreement is executed in multiple counterparts as of the dates set forth below, each of which shall be deemed an original, to be 
effective as of the Effective Date designated above.  
 
Cleco Corporation:                                                                               Executive:  
 
By:    /s/ George W. Bausewine                                                            /s/ Michael H. Madison    
 
Its: Senior Vice President – Corporate Services                                Date:   September 18, 2009    
 
Date:   September 11, 2009                                                         
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CLECO CORPORATION  
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

EXHIBIT A  
 

This Exhibit A is intended to form a part of that certain Executive Employment Agreement by and between Cleco Corporation and Michael H. Madison 
effective as of October 1, 2009.   The parties agree that the proscriptions set forth in Section 5.3 thereof shall apply in the State of Louisiana, Parishes of:  
 

Acadia  
Allen  
Avoyelles  
Beauregard  
Calcasieu  
Catahoula  
DeSoto  
Evangeline  
Grant  
Iberia  
Jefferson Davis  
Lafayette  
Natchitoches  
Rapides  
Red River  
Sabine  
St. Landry  
St. Martin  
St. Mary  
St. Tammany  
Vernon  
Washington  

 
 
Executive and the Company agree that the Company shall amend this Exhibit A, from time to time, to eliminate Parishes in which the Company is no longer doing 
business and to add Parishes in which the Company is currently doing business.  
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EXHIBIT 10(e)(6) 
 
 

CLECO CORPORATION  
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

(Level One)  
 

This Executive Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between Dilek Samil (“Executive”), and Cleco Corporation, a 
Louisiana corporation (the “Company”), and is intended to amend, restate, and replace, in its entirety, that certain Executive Employment Agreement (Level 1) by and 
between the Company and Executive dated January 1, 2009 (the “Prior Agreement”) .  
 
1.           Employment; Term:  
 

1.1             Position.   The Company shall employ and retain Executive as its President and Chief Operating Officer, Cleco Power or in such other capacity 
or capacities as shall be mutually agreed upon, from time to time, by Executive and the Company, and Executive agrees to be so employed, subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein.  Executive’s duties and responsibilities shall be those assigned to him or her hereunder, from time to time, by the Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company and shall include such duties as are the type and nature normally assigned to similar executive officers of a corporation of the size, type and stature of the 
Company.  Executive shall report to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.  
 

1.2             Term.   Executive’s employment hereunder shall commence as of January 1, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) and shall continue for two successive 
years; provided that on the first anniversary of the Effective Date and each succeeding anniversary thereafter, this Agreement shall be renewed for an additional one-
year term unless either party provides written notice to the other that this Agreement shall not be further renewed, such notice to be provided not later than 30 days prior 
to the end of the then-current term hereof (the period between the Effective Date and the expiration or termination of this Agreement referred to herein as the 
“Employment Term”).  
 

1.3             Full Time and Attention.   During the Employment Term, Executive shall devote his or her full time and attention to the business of the Company 
and will not, without the prior written consent of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, be engaged (whether or not during normal business hours) in any other 
business or professional activity, whether or not such activities are pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage.  
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall not be prevented from (a) engaging in any civic or charitable activity for which Executive receives no 
compensation or other pecuniary advantage, (b) investing his or her personal assets in businesses which do not compete with the Company, provided that such 
investments will not require any services on the part of Executive in the operation of the affairs of the businesses and that Executive’s participation is solely that of an 
investor, or (c) purchasing securities in any corporation whose securities are regularly traded, provided that such purchases will not result in Executive owning 
beneficially at any time 5% or more of the equity securities of any corporation engaged in a business competitive with that of the Company.  
 
2.           Compensation and Benefits:  
 

2.1             Base Compensation.   The Company shall pay Executive an annual salary equal to his or her annual base salary in effect as of the Effective Date, 
such amount shall be prorated and paid in equal installments in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices and policies (Executive’s “Base 
Compensation”).  Executive’s Base Compensation shall be reviewed not less often than annually and may  
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be increased or reduced by the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), in its sole discretion; provided, however, that Executive’s Base Compensation may not 
be reduced at any time unless such reduction is part of a reduction in pay uniformly applicable to all officers of the Company.  
 

2.2             Bonuses, Incentives and Other Benefits.   During the Employment Term, Executive shall be eligible for participation in the Company’s:  
 

 
b.           2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”); and  

 
c.           Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”),  

 
each as may be amended, restated, supplemented or replaced, from time to time, in accordance with its terms.  
 

Executive further shall participate in such plans, policies, and programs as may be maintained, from time to time, by the Company or any affiliate thereof, at 
least 80% of the common stock or other equity interests of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company (an “Affiliate”), for the benefit of senior executives or 
employees of the Company.  Such plans, policies and programs may include, without limitation, profit sharing, life insurance, and group medical and other welfare 
benefit plans.  Any payments or benefits thereunder shall be subject to and determined in accordance with the specific terms and conditions of the documents evidencing 
any such separate plans, policies, and programs.  
 

2.3             Reimbursement of Expenses.   The Company shall reimburse Executive for such reasonable and necessary expenses as are incurred in carrying out 
his or her duties hereunder, consistent with the Company’s standard policies and annual budget.  The Company’s obligation to reimburse Executive hereunder shall be 
contingent upon the presentment by Executive of an itemized accounting of such expenditures.  
 
3.           Termination:  
 

3.1             Termination Payments to Executive.   As otherwise provided in this Section 3, in the event of his or her termination of employment with the 
Company (the date of such termination referred to herein as Executive’s “Termination Date”), Executive may be paid:  
 

 

 

 

   
   

   a.  Annual Incentive Compensation Plan (referred to as the “ Incentive Plan” ; any bonus paid thereunder referred to as an “ Incentive Bonus”);  

   a.  Executive’s Base Compensation in effect as of his or her Termination Date for the remainder of his or her Employment Term, such term determined as 
if the notice of nonrenewal described in Section 1.2 hereof was furnished to Executive as of the Termination Date, but in no event less than his or her 
annualized Base Compensation.  

   b.  Executive’s Incentive Bonus for the year in which his or her Termination Date occurs,  prorated to reflect Executive’s actual period of service during 
such year.  

   c.  The Company shall, at the written request of Executive:  

   i.  Purchase of the principal residence occupied by Executive as of his or her Termination Date (Executive’s “Principal Residence”), provided 
such Principal Residence is located within 60 miles of Executive’s primary work location, for an amount equal to the greater of (x) the fair 
market value of such residence as  
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be obligated hereunder, unless Executive actually relocates to a new principal residence that is 
more than 60   miles from his or her Principal Residence and Executive submits his or her written request to the Company for the purchase of such 
residence not later than 12 months after Executive’s Termination Date.  In any event, payment hereunder shall be made not later than December 31st 
of the calendar year following the year in which Executive’s Termination Date occurs.  

 

 

 
Any amount or benefit provided hereunder shall be in lieu of any severance or other cash payment available under any severance pay plan or similar 

arrangement maintained by the Company or an Affiliate.  The amount and benefits described herein shall be in addition to any amount or benefit the Company is 
required by law to provide, including, without limitation, Executive’s accrued but unpaid wages, and any amount or benefit to which Executive may be entitled as of his 
or her Termination Date under any separation benefit or retirement plan maintained by the company or its Affiliates.  
 

3.2             Waiver and Release.   Any amount payable to Executive under this Section 3, other than a payment on account of Executive’s death or Disability, 
shall be contingent upon Executive’s timely execution and delivery to the Company of a waiver and release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company.   If 
Executive fails to execute such a waiver and release at the time and in the manner requested by the Company, no payment, benefit or reimbursement shall be due 
hereunder.  
 

3.3             Death or Disability .  If Executive dies or becomes Disabled during the Employment Term, Executive’s employment hereunder shall immediately 
terminate and the Company’s obligations hereunder shall cease.  In such event, the Company shall pay to Executive (or his or her estate) an amount determined in 
accordance with Section 3.1b hereof in the form of a single-sum at the time Executive would have otherwise received such bonus notwithstanding his or her death or 
Disability.   For purposes of this Section 3.2, Executive shall be deemed “Disabled” or a “Disability” shall be deemed to occur if Executive is actually receiving benefits 
under the Company’s separate long-term disability plan.  
 

3.4             Company’s Termination for Cause.   This Agreement and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company on account of 
Cause.  In such event, no payments or  

   

      determined by the Company’s third party relocation service, or (y) the purchase price of such residence and the documented cost of any 
capital improvements made to the such residence made by Executive, but not more than 120% of such purchase price; and  

   ii.  Pay or reimburse Executive for the cost of relocating Executive, his or her immediate family and their household goods and other personal 
property, in accordance with the Company’s usual relocation practice, to any location in the continental United States.  

   d.  If Executive timely elects to continue coverage under the Company’s group medical plan within the meaning of Code Section 4980B(f)(2), the 
Company shall pay to the Executive an amount equal to the continuation coverage premium for the same type and level of coverage elected by 
Executive and/or his or her spouse or dependents for a period of 18 months or until the Executive secures other employment where group health 
insurance is provided, whichever period is shorter.  

   e.  Executive’s Incentive Bonus in the target amount, determined with respect to the year in which his or her Termination Date occurs.  
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benefits shall be due to Executive from the Company, except as may be required under a separate plan, policy or program evidencing a retirement or other benefit 
arrangement or as may be required by law to be provided.  
 

For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means that Executive has:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
No act or failure to act on the part of Executive will be deemed “intentional” if it was due primarily to an error in judgment or negligence, but will be deemed 
“intentional” only if done or omitted to be done by Executive not in good faith and without reasonable belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interest of 
the Company or an Affiliate.  
 

3.5             Executive’s Constructive Termination.   Executive may terminate this Agreement and his or her employment on account of a Constructive 
Termination. In such event, the Company shall pay or provide to Executive:  
 

 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, “Constructive Termination” means:  
   

   a.  Committed an intentional act of fraud, embezzlement or theft in the course of employment or otherwise engaged in any intentional misconduct which 
is materially injurious to the financial condition or business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates;  

   b.  Committed intentional damage to the property of the Company and its Affiliates or Executive has committed intentional wrongful disclosure of 
proprietary information or Confidential Information (as defined in Section 5.2 hereof), which is materially injurious to the financial condition or 
business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates;  

   c.  Been convicted with no further possibility of appeal, or entered a guilty or nolo contendere plea, for a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude;  

   d.  Willfully and substantially refused to perform the essential duties of his or her position after written notice from the Company;  

   e.  Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of the Company’s code of conduct or equivalent code of policy that is 
applicable to Executive;  

   f.  Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or any of the rules adopted by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission implementing any such provision; or  

   g.  Failed to fully cooperate to the extent requested by the Company or an Affiliate with investigations by government or independent agencies involving 
the Company or an Affiliate.  

   a.  The amounts determined under Sections 3.1a, 3.1d and 3.1e hereof, which shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 45 days after Executive’s 
Termination Date, provided that Executive has then satisfied all applicable conditions; and  

   b.  The benefit described in Section 3.1c hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
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c.             A material breach of this Agreement by the Company.  

 
No event or condition described in this Section 3.5 shall constitute a Constructive Termination unless (a) Executive provides to the Company written notice of his or her 
objection to such event or condition not later than 60 days after Executive first learns of such event or condition, (b) such event or condition is not corrected by the 
Company promptly after receipt of such notice, but in no event more than 30 days after receipt of notice, and (c) Executive resigns his or her employment with the 
Company and all Affiliates not more than 15 days following the expiration of the 30-day period described in subparagraph (b) hereof.  
 

3.6             Termination by the Company, Without Cause.   The Company may terminate this Agreement and Executive’s employment hereunder, without 
Cause, upon 30 days prior written notice to Executive (or such shorter period as may be agreed upon by Executive and the Chief Executive Officer.  In such event, the 
Company shall pay or provide to Executive the amounts and benefits described in Section 3.5 hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 

3.7             Termination by Executive.   Executive may terminate this Agreement and his or her employment hereunder, other than on account of Constructive 
Termination, upon 30 days prior written notice to the Company or such shorter period as may be agreed upon by the Chief Executive Officer and Executive.  In such 
event, no additional payments or benefits shall be due hereunder, except as may be provided under a separate plan, policy or program evidencing a retirement or other 
benefit plan or as may be required by law to be provided.  
 

3.8             Return of Property.   Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Executive  shall promptly return to the Company all of the property of 
the Company and its Affiliates, including, without limitation, automobiles, equipment, computers, fax machines, portable telephones, printers, software, credit cards, 
manuals, customer lists, financial data, letters, notes, notebooks, reports and copies of any of the above and any Confidential Information that is in the possession or 
under the control of Executive, regardless of the form in which it is held or maintained.  
 

3.9             Expiration of Agreement.   Upon expiration of the term of this Agreement, including any renewal thereof, the obligations of the Company 
hereunder shall cease.  Executive shall then be deemed to be an at-will employee of the Company or an Affiliate, as the case may be, subject to the rights and limitations 
attendant to such status.  He or she shall be and remain bound by the provisions of Section 5 hereof, which shall survive such expiration.  
 
4.           Change in Control:  
 

4.1             Waiver and Release.   Any amount payable to Executive under this Section 4, whether on account of Change in Control or a Business Transaction, 
shall be contingent upon Executive’s timely execution and delivery to the Company of a waiver and release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company.  If 
Executive fails to execute such a waiver and release at the time and in the manner requested by the Company, no payment, benefit or reimbursement shall be due 
hereunder.  

   

   a.  A material reduction (other than a reduction in pay uniformly applicable to all officers of the Company) in the amount of Executive’s Base 
Compensation;  

   b.  A material reduction in Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities from those contemplated in Section 1.1 of this Agreement; or  
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4.2             Definitions.   The terms “Change in Control” and “Business Transaction” shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Equity Incentive Plan, as 

the same may be amended from time to time.  The term “Good Reason” shall mean that in connection with a Change in Control:  
 

 

 

 

 
No event or condition described in this Section 4.2 shall constitute Good Reason unless (a) Executive gives the Company written notice of his or her objection to such 
event or condition within 60 days after Executive first learns of it, (b) such event or condition is not promptly corrected by the Company, but in no event later than 30 
days after receipt of such notice, and (c) Executive resigns his or her employment with the Company and its Affiliates not more than 60 days following the expiration of 
the 30-day period described in subparagraph (b) hereof.  
 

4.3             Termination In Connection With a Change in Control.   If Executive’s employment is involuntarily terminated by the Company, without Cause, 
and other than on account of Executive’s death or Disability or Executive terminates his or her employment hereunder for Good Reason, either occurring during the 60-
day period preceding or the 36-month period following a Change in Control, then notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary and in lieu of any 
compensation or benefits otherwise provided or payable hereunder:  
 

 

 

   

   a.  Executive’s Base Compensation in effect immediately before such Change in Control is reduced or there is a significant reduction or termination of 
Executive’s rights to any employee benefit in effect immediately prior to the change;  

   b.  Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities are significantly reduced from those contemplated in Section 1.1 hereof or Executive has reasonably 
determined that, as a result of a change in circumstances that significantly affects his or her employment with the Company or an Affiliate, he or she is 
unable to exercise the authority, power, duties and responsibilities contemplated in such section;  

   c.  Executive is required to be away from his or her office in the course of discharging his or her duties and responsibilities under this Agreement 
significantly more than was required prior to the Change in Control; or  

   d.  Executive is required to transfer to an office or business location located more than 60 miles from the primary location to which he or she was 
assigned prior to the Change in Control.  

   a.  The Company shall pay to Executive an amount equal to three times the sum of Executive’s annualized Base Compensation and target bonus, each 
determined immediately before the consummation of the Change in Control, which amount shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 30 days after 
Executive’s Termination Date or the first business day thereafter;  

   b.  The Company shall provide to Executive the benefit described in Section 3.1c hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein;  

   c.  The Company shall pay to Executive the amount described in Section 3.1d hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, but for a period 
of 36 months, which amount shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 30 days after Executive’s Termination Date or the first business day 
thereafter;  
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4.4             Tax Payment. If any payment to Executive pursuant to this Agreement or any other payment or benefit made for the benefit of Executive by the 

Company or an Affiliate in connection with a Change in Control is subject to the excise tax imposed under Code Section 4999 or any similar excise or penalty tax 
payable under any United States federal, state, local or other law, the Company shall pay to Executive an amount such that, after the payment by Executive of all taxes 
due on such amount, there remains a balance sufficient to pay the principal amount of such excise or penalty tax.  Executive shall promptly submit to the Company the 
amount to be paid under this Section 4.4, together with supporting documentation.  If Executive and the Company disagree as to such amount, an independent public 
accounting firm appointed by the Company shall make such determination, and such determination shall be final and binding on the parties hereto.  Any payment due 
hereunder shall be made by the Company in the form of a single-sum promptly, but in no event later than December 31st of the calendar year following the year in 
which Executive remits the amount of such excise or penalty tax to the Internal Revenue Service or other taxing authority.  
 

4.5             Business Transaction Benefit.   If Executive’s employment with the Company and its Affiliates is involuntarily terminated by the Company in 
connection with a Business Transaction, other than on account of Cause, then Executive shall receive the benefits described in Sections 4.3e and 4.3f hereof.  Further, if 
Executive is not rehired by the successor or surviving entity involved in such transaction, the Company shall pay to Executive the amount described in Section 3.6 
hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 
5.           Limitations on Activities:  
 

5.1.             Consideration for Limitation on Activities.   Executive acknowledges that the execution of this Agreement and the payments described herein 
constitute consideration for the limitations on activities set forth in this Section 5, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged.  
   
   

   d.  The Company shall pay to Executive an amount equal to three times the maximum matching contribution determined under the Cleco Corporation 401
(k) Savings and Investment Plan, as the same may be amended or restated from time to time, determined as if Executive deferred thereunder the 
maximum amount permitted under Code Section 402(g); such amount shall be paid in the form of a single-sum payment 30 days after Executive’s 
Termination Date or the first business day thereafter;  

   e.  Vesting shall be accelerated, any restrictions shall lapse, and all target and opportunity performance objectives shall be deemed satisfied at the 
maximum level as to any then outstanding grant or award made under the Equity Incentive Plan and/or the 1990 Long-Term Incentive Compensation 
Plan; Executive shall further be entitled to such additional benefits or rights as may be provided in the documents evidencing such plans or the terms 
of any agreement evidencing such grant or award; and  

   f.  Executive shall be fully vested for purposes of any service or similar requirement imposed under the SERP, regardless of the actual number of his or 
her years of service; Executive shall be credited with an additional three years of age for purposes of determining his or her benefit percentage under 
the SERP, but in no event shall such benefit percentage be less than 50%; and Executive shall be credited with an additional three years of age for 
purposes of determining any reduction taken with respect to benefits commencing before Executive’s normal retirement date (as defined in such plan). 
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5.2             Confidential Information.   Executive recognizes and acknowledges that during the terms of his or her employment, he or she has and will have 

access to confidential, proprietary, non-public information concerning the Company and its Affiliates, which may include, without limitation, (a) books and records 
relating to operations, finance, accounting, personnel and management, (b) price, rate and volume data, future price and rate plans, and test data, (c) information related 
to product design and development, (d) computer software, customer lists, information obtained on competitors, and sales tactics, and (e) various other non-public trade 
or business information, including business opportunities, marketing or business diversification plans, acquisitions, methods and processes, and financial data and the 
like (collectively, the “Confidential Information”).  Executive agrees that he or she will not at any time, either while employed by the Company or afterwards, make any 
independent use of, or disclose to any other person or organization (except as authorized by the Company or pursuant to court order) any of the Confidential 
Information.  
 

5.3             Non-Solicitation.   Executive agrees that during the one-year period commencing as of the date of voluntary termination by Executive as described 
in Section 3.7 hereof or the involuntary termination of Executive on account of Cause as described in Section 3.4 hereof, he or she shall not, directly or indirectly, for his 
or her own benefit or on behalf of another or to the Company’s or an Affiliate’s detriment:  
 

 

 

 
The provisions of this Section 5.3 shall apply in the locations set forth on Exhibit A hereto, as the same may be amended by the Company from time to time.  Executive 
acknowledges that the Company and its Affiliates are presently doing business in such locations and that during the Employment Term Executive will be required to 
provide services to or for the benefit of the Company or its Affiliates in such locations.  
 

5.4             Business Reputation.   Executive agrees that during the Employment Term and at all times thereafter, he or she shall refrain from performing any 
act, engaging in any conduct or course of action or making or publishing an adverse, untrue or misleading statement which has or may reasonably have the effect of 
demeaning the name or business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates or which adversely affects (or may reasonably adversely affect) the best interests, economic 
or otherwise, of the Company or an Affiliate.  
 

5.5             Restrictions Reasonable.   The parties agree that each of the restrictions set forth in this Section 5 is intended to constitute a separate 
restriction.  Accordingly, should any such prohibition be declared invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition shall be deemed severable from and shall not affect the 
remainder thereof.  The parties further agree that each of the foregoing restrictions is reasonable in both time and geographic scope.  The parties further agree that should 
a court or arbitrator determine that any restriction set forth herein is unenforceable, such court of arbitrator may reform such restriction to the extent necessary to provide 
for its enforcement under applicable law.  
 

5.6             Remedies.   In the event of a breach or threatened breach by Executive of the provisions of Sections 5.2, 5.3 or 5.4 hereof, Executive agrees that (a) 
the Company shall be entitled to a temporary restraining order or a preliminary injunction, without the necessity of posting bond in connection therewith, which may be 
obtained by means of a judicial proceeding notwithstanding the provisions of  

   

   a.  Hire or offer to hire any of the Company’s or Affiliate’s officers, employees or agents;  

   b.  Persuade or attempt to persuade in any manner any officer, employee or agent of the Company or an Affiliate to discontinue any relationship with the 
Company; or  

   c.  Solicit or divert or attempt to divert any customer or supplier of the Company or an Affiliate.  
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Section 6.16 hereof, and (b) any additional payments or benefits due to Executive or his or her spouse or dependents under Sections 3 and 4 hereof shall be canceled and 
forfeited, except any amount tendered to Executive as consideration for his or her waiver and release.  Nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting the Company 
from pursuing any other remedy available to it for such breach or threatened breach, including the recovery of damages from Executive.  
 
6.           General:  
 

6.1             Specified Executive Delay.   In the event the Company determines that Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 
409A as of his or her Termination Date, then, notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall postpone until the first business day 
of the seventh calendar month following Executive’s Termination Date (the “Delayed Payment Date”) any payment or benefit hereunder which is deemed on account of 
Executive’s separation from service and not otherwise permitted to be paid or furnished under Code Section 409A, including any regulation or guidance promulgated 
thereunder.  Any payment made as of Executive’s Delayed Payment Date shall include the principal amount of all payments suspended between Executive’s 
Termination Date and such date, without liability for interest or other loss of investment opportunity.  
 

6.2             Mitigation Not Required.   Except as provided in Section 3.1d hereof, as a condition of any payment hereunder, Executive shall not be required to 
mitigate the amount of such payment by seeking other employment or otherwise, nor will any profits, income, earnings or other benefits from any source whatsoever 
create any mitigation, offset, reduction or any other obligation on the part of Executive under this Agreement.  
 

6.3             Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.   In the event any dispute in connection with this Agreement arises with respect to obligations of Executive or the 
Company that were required prior to the occurrence of a Change in Control, all costs, fees and expenses, including attorney fees, of any arbitration or other legal action 
in connection with such matters in which Executive substantially prevails, shall be borne by the Company.  
 

After a Change in Control has occurred, Executive shall not be required to incur legal fees and the related expenses associated with the interpretation, 
enforcement or defense of Executive’s rights under this Agreement.  Accordingly, if, following a Change in Control, the Company fails to comply with any of its 
obligations under this Agreement or the Company or any other person takes or threatens to take any action to declare this Agreement void or unenforceable, Executive 
shall be entitled to retain counsel of Executive’s choice, at the expense of the Company, to advise and represent Executive in connection with any such interpretation, 
enforcement or defense, except as to any action brought to enforce the provisions of Section 5 hereof.  In such event, the Company shall pay and be solely financially 
responsible for any and all attorneys’ and related fees and expenses incurred by Executive in connection with any of the foregoing, without regard to whether Executive 
prevails, in whole or in part.  
 

In no event shall Executive be required to reimburse the Company for any of the costs and expenses incurred by the Company relating to arbitration, litigation 
or other legal action in connection with this Agreement.  
 

If Executive claims the reimbursement of fees, costs or expenses hereunder, Executive’s claim shall be made not later than the last day of the calendar year 
following the year in which the expense was incurred.  The Company shall pay such amount promptly, but not later than the last day of the calendar year following the 
year in which Executive claims reimbursement hereunder.  
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6.4             No Set-Off.   There shall be no right of set-off or counterclaim in respect of any claim, debt or obligation against any payment to Executive 

provided for in this Agreement.  
 

6.5             Assistance with Litigation.   After Executive’s Termination Date and for a period of one year after the end of the last period with respect to which 
Executive will have received any compensation under this Agreement, Executive will furnish such information and proper assistance as may be reasonably necessary in 
connection with any litigation in which the Company or an Affiliate is then or may become involved.  
 

6.6             Headings.   Section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement.  
 

6.7             Entire Agreement.   This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter 
hereof, and there are no other agreements, understandings, restrictions, representations or warranties among the parties other than those set forth herein.  Executive 
expressly acknowledges that this Agreement extinguishes, in their entirety, the rights and obligations of the parties under Executive’s Prior Agreement.  
 

6.8             Amendments.   This Agreement may be amended or modified at any time in any or all respects, but only by an instrument in writing executed by 
the parties hereto.  
 

6.9             Choice of Law.   The validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms, and the determination of the rights and duties of the parties hereto 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Louisiana applicable to contracts made to be performed wholly within such state.  
 

6.10             Notices.   All notices and other communications under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when (a) 
delivered by hand, (b) sent by telecopier to a telecopier number given below, provided that a copy is sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt 
requested), or (c) when received by the addressee, if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested), in each case as follows:  
 

If to Executive:                      Last address on file with the Company  
 

If to the Company:               Cleco Corporation  
2030 Donahue Ferry Road  
Pineville, LA 71360  
Telecopier: 318- 484-7777  
Attention: Chief Executive Officer  

 
or to such other addresses as a party may designate by notice to the other party.  
 

6.11             Assignment.   This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company, its Affiliates, and their successors and assigns, 
including, without limitation, any person, partnership, company, corporation or other entity that may acquire substantially all of the Company’s assets or business or 
with or into which the Company may be liquidated, consolidated, merged or otherwise combined, and will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Executive, his or 
her heirs, estate, legatees and legal representatives.  If payments become payable to Executive’s surviving spouse or other assigns and such person thereafter dies, such 
payment will revert to Executive’s estate.  
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6.12             Severability.   Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable.  In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this 

Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this 
Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision was not contained herein.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
however, no provision shall be severed if it is clearly apparent under the circumstances that the parties would not have entered into this Agreement without such 
provision.  
 

6.13             Withholding.   As a condition of the receipt of any payment or benefit hereunder, the Company or an Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold any 
federal, state or local taxes required by law to be withheld.  
 

6.14             Survival.   Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent applicable, the rights and obligations of the Company under Sections 3, 
4, and 6 hereof and the rights and obligations of Executive under Sections 5 and 6, shall remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  
 

6.15             Waiver.   The failure of either party to insist in any one or more instances upon performance of any terms or conditions of this Agreement will not 
be construed as a waiver of future performance of any such term, covenant, or condition and the obligations of either party with respect to such term, covenant or 
condition will continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16             Arbitration.   Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by binding arbitration 
administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Employment Arbitration Rules, and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered 
in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  Both the Company and Executive hereby consent to this binding arbitration provision.  
 

The existence of any claim or cause of action by Executive, whether predicated on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the 
enforcement by the Company or any of its Affiliates of any provision hereof.  The Company’s remedies for breach of this Agreement shall be cumulative and the pursuit 
of one remedy shall not be deemed to exclude any other remedies.  
 

This Executive Employment Agreement is executed in multiple counterparts as of the dates set forth below, each of which shall be deemed an original, to be 
effective as of the Effective Date designated above.  
 
Cleco Corporation:                                                                             Executive:  
 
By:    /s/ George W. Bausewine                                                             /s/ Dilek Samil    
 
Its: Senior Vice President – Corporate Services                              Date:   January 2, 2009    
 
Date:    January 5, 2009                                                                   
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CLECO CORPORATION  
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

EXHIBIT A  
 

This Exhibit A is intended to form a part of that certain Executive Employment Agreement by and between Cleco Corporation and Dilek Samil effective as of 
January 1, 2009.   The parties agree that the proscriptions set forth in Section 5.3 thereof shall apply in the State of Louisiana, Parishes of:  
 

Acadia  
Allen  
Avoyelles  
Beauregard  
Calcasieu  
Catahoula  
DeSoto  
Evangeline  
Grant  
Iberia  
Jefferson Davis  
Lafayette  
Natchitoches  
Rapides  
Red River  
Sabine  
St. Landry  
St. Martin  
St. Mary  
St. Tammany  
Vernon  
Washington  

 
 
Executive and the Company agree that the Company shall amend this Exhibit A, from time to time, to eliminate Parishes in which the Company is no longer doing 
business and to add Parishes in which the Company is currently doing business.  
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EXHIBIT 10(e)(7) 
   
 

CLECO CORPORATION  
EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  

(Level Two)  
 

This Executive Employment Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between William G. Fontenot (“Executive”), and Cleco 
Corporation, a Louisiana corporation, and each other affiliate of Cleco Corporation for which Executive may perform services from time to time (collectively, the 
"Company") , and is intended to amend, restate, and replace, in its entirety, that certain Executive Employment Agreement (Level 2) by and between the Company and 
Executive dated July 28, 2000 (the “Prior Agreement”) .  
 
1.           Employment; Term:  
 

1.1             Position.   The Company shall employ and retain Executive as its Vice President – Regulated Generation Development or in such other capacity 
or capacities as shall be mutually agreed upon, from time to time, by Executive and the Company, and Executive agrees to be so employed, subject to the terms and 
conditions set forth herein.  Executive’s duties and responsibilities shall be those assigned to him or her hereunder, from time to time, by the Chief Executive Officer of 
the Company and shall include such duties as are the type and nature normally assigned to similar executive officers of a corporation of the size, type and stature of the 
Company.  Executive shall report to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer.  
 

1.2             Term.   Executive’s employment hereunder shall commence as of July 28, 2009 (the “Effective Date”) and shall continue for one year; provided 
that on the anniversary of the Effective Date and each succeeding anniversary thereafter, this Agreement shall be renewed for an additional one-year term unless either 
party provides written notice to the other that this Agreement shall not be further renewed, such notice to be provided not later than 30 days prior to the end of the then-
current term hereof (the period between the Effective Date and the expiration or termination of this Agreement referred to herein as the “Employment Term”).  
 

1.3             Full Time and Attention.   During the Employment Term, Executive shall devote his or her full time and attention to the business of the Company 
and will not, without the prior written consent of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, be engaged (whether or not during normal business hours) in any other 
business or professional activity, whether or not such activities are pursued for gain, profit or other pecuniary advantage.  
 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall not be prevented from (a) engaging in any civic or charitable activity for which Executive receives no 
compensation or other pecuniary advantage, (b) investing his or her personal assets in businesses which do not compete with the Company, provided that such 
investments will not require any services on the part of Executive in the operation of the affairs of the businesses and that Executive’s participation is solely that of an 
investor, or (c) purchasing securities in any corporation whose securities are regularly traded, provided that such purchases will not result in Executive owning 
beneficially at any time 5% or more of the equity securities of any corporation engaged in a business competitive with that of the Company.  
 
2.           Compensation and Benefits:  
 

2.1             Base Compensation.   The Company shall pay Executive an annual salary equal to his or her annual base salary in effect as of the Effective Date, 
such amount shall be prorated and paid in equal installments in accordance with the Company’s regular payroll practices and policies (Executive’s “Base  
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Compensation”).  Executive’s Base Compensation shall be reviewed not less often than annually and may be increased or reduced by the Board of Directors of the 
Company (the “Board”), in its sole discretion; provided, however, that Executive’s Base Compensation may not be reduced at any time unless such reduction is part of a 
reduction in pay uniformly applicable to all officers of the Company.  
 

2.2             Bonuses, Incentives and Other Benefits.   During the Employment Term, Executive shall be eligible for participation in the Company’s:  
 

 

 

 
each as may be amended, restated, supplemented or replaced, from time to time, in accordance with its terms.  
 

Executive further shall participate in such plans, policies, and programs as may be maintained, from time to time, by the Company or any affiliate thereof, at 
least 80% of the common stock or other equity interests of which is owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company (an “Affiliate”), for the benefit of senior executives or 
employees of the Company.  Such plans, policies and programs may include, without limitation, profit sharing, life insurance, and group medical and other welfare 
benefit plans.  Any payments or benefits thereunder shall be subject to and determined in accordance with the specific terms and conditions of the documents evidencing 
any such separate plans, policies, and programs.  
 

2.3             Reimbursement of Expenses.   The Company shall reimburse Executive for such reasonable and necessary expenses as are incurred in carrying out 
his or her duties hereunder, consistent with the Company’s standard policies and annual budget.  The Company’s obligation to reimburse Executive hereunder shall be 
contingent upon the presentment by Executive of an itemized accounting of such expenditures.  
 
3.           Termination:  
 

3.1             Termination Payments to Executive.   As otherwise provided in this Section 3, in the event of his or her termination of employment with the 
Company (the date of such termination referred to herein as Executive’s “Termination Date”), Executive may be paid:  
 

 

 

 

   

   a.  Annual Incentive Compensation Plan (referred to as the “ Incentive Plan” ; any bonus paid thereunder referred to as an “ Incentive Bonus”);  

   b.  2000 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”) and/or any successor plan; and  

   c.  Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (the “SERP”) or other non-qualified retirement plan, as determined by the Company’s board of directors,  

   a.  Executive’s annualized Base Compensation in effect as of his or her Termination Date.  

   b.  Executive’s Incentive Bonus for the year in which his or her Termination Date occurs,  prorated to reflect Executive’s actual period of service during 
such year.  

   c.  The Company shall, at the written request of Executive:  

   i.  Purchase of the principal residence occupied by Executive as of his or her Termination Date (Executive’s “Principal Residence”), provided 
such Principal Residence is located within 60 miles of Executive’s primary work location, for an amount equal to the greater of (x) the fair 
market value of such residence as  
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shall not be obligated hereunder, unless Executive actually relocates to a new principal residence that is 
more than 60   miles from his or her Principal Residence and Executive submits his or her written request to the Company for the purchase of such 
residence not later than 12 months after Executive’s Termination Date.  In any event, payment hereunder shall be made not later than December 31st 
of the calendar year following the year in which Executive’s Termination Date occurs.  

 

 

 
Any amount or benefit provided hereunder shall be in lieu of any severance or other cash payment available under any severance pay plan or similar 

arrangement maintained by the Company or an Affiliate.  The amount and benefits described herein shall be in addition to any amount or benefit the Company is 
required by law to provide, including, without limitation, Executive’s accrued but unpaid wages, and any amount or benefit to which Executive may be entitled as of his 
or her Termination Date under any separation benefit or retirement plan maintained by the company or its Affiliates.  
 

3.2             Waiver and Release.   Any amount payable to Executive under this Section 3, other than a payment on account of Executive’s death or Disability, 
shall be contingent upon Executive’s timely execution and delivery to the Company of a waiver and release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company.   If 
Executive fails to execute such a waiver and release at the time and in the manner requested by the Company, no payment, benefit or reimbursement shall be due 
hereunder.  
 

3.3             Death or Disability .  If Executive dies or becomes Disabled during the Employment Term, Executive’s employment hereunder shall immediately 
terminate and the Company’s obligations hereunder shall cease.  In such event, the Company shall pay to Executive (or his or her estate) an amount determined in 
accordance with Section 3.1b hereof in the form of a single-sum at the time Executive would have otherwise received such bonus notwithstanding his or her death or 
Disability.   For purposes of this Section 3.2, Executive shall be deemed “Disabled” or a “Disability” shall be deemed to occur if Executive is actually receiving benefits 
under the Company’s separate long-term disability plan.  
 

3.4             Company’s Termination for Cause.   This Agreement and Executive’s employment hereunder may be terminated by the Company on account of 
Cause.  In such event, no payments or  

   

      determined by the Company’s third party relocation service, or (y) the purchase price of such residence and the documented cost of any 
capital improvements made to the such residence made by Executive, but not more than 120% of such purchase price; and  

   ii.  Pay or reimburse Executive for the cost of relocating Executive, his or her immediate family and their household goods and other personal 
property, in accordance with the Company’s usual relocation practice, to any location in the continental United States.  

   d.  If Executive timely elects to continue coverage under the Company’s group medical plan within the meaning of Code Section 4980B(f)(2), the 
Company shall pay to the Executive an amount equal to the continuation coverage premium for the same type and level of coverage elected by 
Executive and/or his or her spouse or dependents for a period of 18 months or until the Executive secures other employment where group health 
insurance is provided, whichever period is shorter.  

   e.  Executive’s Incentive Bonus in the target amount, determined with respect to the year in which his or her Termination Date occurs.  
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benefits shall be due to Executive from the Company, except as may be required under a separate plan, policy or program evidencing a retirement or other benefit 
arrangement or as may be required by law to be provided.  
 

For purposes of this Agreement, “Cause” means that Executive has:  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
No act or failure to act on the part of Executive will be deemed “intentional” if it was due primarily to an error in judgment or negligence, but will be deemed 
“intentional” only if done or omitted to be done by Executive not in good faith and without reasonable belief that his or her action or omission was in the best interest of 
the Company or an Affiliate.  
 

3.5             Executive’s Constructive Termination.   Executive may terminate this Agreement and his or her employment on account of a Constructive 
Termination. In such event, the Company shall pay or provide to Executive:  
 

 

 
For purposes of this Agreement, “Constructive Termination” means:  
   
   

   a.  Committed an intentional act of fraud, embezzlement or theft in the course of employment or otherwise engaged in any intentional misconduct which 
is materially injurious to the financial condition or business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates;  

   b.  Committed intentional damage to the property of the Company and its Affiliates or Executive has committed intentional wrongful disclosure of 
proprietary information or Confidential Information (as defined in Section 5.2 hereof), which is materially injurious to the financial condition or 
business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates;  

   c.  Been convicted with no further possibility of appeal, or entered a guilty or nolo contendere plea, for a felony or a crime involving moral turpitude;  

   d.  Willfully and substantially refused to perform the essential duties of his or her position after written notice from the Company;  

   e.  Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of the Company’s code of conduct or equivalent code of policy that is 
applicable to Executive;  

   f.  Intentionally, recklessly or negligently violated any material provision of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or any of the rules adopted by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission implementing any such provision; or  

   g.  Failed to fully cooperate to the extent requested by the Company or an Affiliate with investigations by government or independent agencies involving 
the Company or an Affiliate.  

   a.  The amounts determined under Sections 3.1a, 3.1d and 3.1e hereof, which shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 45 days after Executive’s 
Termination Date, provided that Executive has then satisfied all applicable conditions; and  

   b.  The benefit described in Section 3.1c hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
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c.           A material breach of this Agreement by the Company.  

 
No event or condition described in this Section 3.5 shall constitute a Constructive Termination unless (a) Executive provides to the Company written notice of his or her 
objection to such event or condition not later than 60 days after Executive first learns of such event or condition, (b) such event or condition is not corrected by the 
Company promptly after receipt of such notice, but in no event more than 30 days after receipt of notice, and (c) Executive resigns his or her employment with the 
Company and all Affiliates not more than 15 days following the expiration of the 30-day period described in subparagraph (b) hereof.  
 

3.6             Termination by the Company, Without Cause.   The Company may terminate this Agreement and Executive’s employment hereunder, without 
Cause, upon 30 days prior written notice to Executive (or such shorter period as may be agreed upon by Executive and the Chief Executive Officer.  In such event, the 
Company shall pay or provide to Executive the amounts and benefits described in Section 3.5 hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 

3.7             Termination by Executive.   Executive may terminate this Agreement and his or her employment hereunder, other than on account of Constructive 
Termination, upon 30 days prior written notice to the Company or such shorter period as may be agreed upon by the Chief Executive Officer and Executive.  In such 
event, no additional payments or benefits shall be due hereunder, except as may be provided under a separate plan, policy or program evidencing a retirement or other 
benefit plan or as may be required by law to be provided.  
 

3.8             Return of Property.   Upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Executive  shall promptly return to the Company all of the property of 
the Company and its Affiliates, including, without limitation, automobiles, equipment, computers, fax machines, portable telephones, printers, software, credit cards, 
manuals, customer lists, financial data, letters, notes, notebooks, reports and copies of any of the above and any Confidential Information that is in the possession or 
under the control of Executive, regardless of the form in which it is held or maintained.  
 

3.9             Expiration of Agreement.   Upon expiration of the term of this Agreement, including any renewal thereof, the obligations of the Company 
hereunder shall cease.  Executive shall then be deemed to be an at-will employee of the Company or an Affiliate, as the case may be, subject to the rights and limitations 
attendant to such status.  He or she shall be and remain bound by the provisions of Section 5 hereof, which shall survive such expiration.  
 
4.           Change in Control:  
 

4.1             Waiver and Release.   Any amount payable to Executive under this Section 4, whether on account of Change in Control or a Business Transaction, 
shall be contingent upon Executive’s timely execution and delivery to the Company of a waiver and release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company.  If 
Executive fails to execute such a waiver and release at the time and in the manner requested by the Company, no payment, benefit or reimbursement shall be due 
hereunder.  

   
   

   a.  A material reduction (other than a reduction in pay uniformly applicable to all officers of the Company) in the amount of Executive’s Base 
Compensation;  

   b.  A material reduction in Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities from those contemplated in Section 1.1 of this Agreement; or  
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4.2             Definitions.   The terms “Change in Control” and “Business Transaction” shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Equity Incentive Plan, as 

the same may be amended from time to time.  The term “Good Reason” shall mean that in connection with a Change in Control:  
 

 

 

 

 
No event or condition described in this Section 4.2 shall constitute Good Reason unless (a) Executive gives the Company written notice of his or her objection to such 
event or condition within 60 days after Executive first learns of it, (b) such event or condition is not promptly corrected by the Company, but in no event later than 30 
days after receipt of such notice, and (c) Executive resigns his or her employment with the Company and its Affiliates not more than 60 days following the expiration of 
the 30-day period described in subparagraph (b) hereof.  
 

4.3             Termination In Connection With a Change in Control.   If Executive’s employment is involuntarily terminated by the Company, without Cause, 
and other than on account of Executive’s death or Disability or Executive terminates his or her employment hereunder for Good Reason, either occurring during the 60-
day period preceding or the 36-month period following a Change in Control, then notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary and in lieu of any 
compensation or benefits otherwise provided or payable hereunder:  
 

 

 

   

   a.  Executive’s Base Compensation in effect immediately before such Change in Control is reduced or there is a significant reduction or termination of 
Executive’s rights to any employee benefit in effect immediately prior to the change;  

   b.  Executive’s authority, duties or responsibilities are significantly reduced from those contemplated in Section 1.1 hereof or Executive has reasonably 
determined that, as a result of a change in circumstances that significantly affects his or her employment with the Company or an Affiliate, he or she is 
unable to exercise the authority, power, duties and responsibilities contemplated in such section;  

   c.  Executive is required to be away from his or her office in the course of discharging his or her duties and responsibilities under this Agreement 
significantly more than was required prior to the Change in Control; or  

   d.  Executive is required to transfer to an office or business location located more than 60 miles from the primary location to which he or she was 
assigned prior to the Change in Control.  

   a.  The Company shall pay to Executive an amount equal to three times the sum of Executive’s annualized Base Compensation and target bonus, each 
determined immediately before the consummation of the Change in Control, which amount shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 30 days after 
Executive’s Termination Date or the first business day thereafter;  

   b.  The Company shall provide to Executive the benefit described in Section 3.1c hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein;  

   c.  The Company shall pay to Executive the amount described in Section 3.1d hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein, but for a period 
of 36 months, which amount shall be payable in the form of a single-sum 30 days after Executive’s Termination Date or the first business day 
thereafter;  
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4.4             Tax Payment. If any payment to Executive pursuant to this Agreement or any other payment or benefit made for the benefit of Executive by the 

Company or an Affiliate in connection with a Change in Control is subject to the excise tax imposed under Code Section 4999 or any similar excise or penalty tax 
payable under any United States federal, state, local or other law, the Company shall pay to Executive an amount such that, after the payment by Executive of all taxes 
due on such amount, there remains a balance sufficient to pay the principal amount of such excise or penalty tax.  Executive shall promptly submit to the Company the 
amount to be paid under this Section 4.4, together with supporting documentation.  If Executive and the Company disagree as to such amount, an independent public 
accounting firm appointed by the Company shall make such determination, and such determination shall be final and binding on the parties hereto.  Any payment due 
hereunder shall be made by the Company in the form of a single-sum promptly, but in no event later than December 31st of the calendar year following the year in 
which Executive remits the amount of such excise or penalty tax to the Internal Revenue Service or other taxing authority.  
 

4.5             Business Transaction Benefit.   If Executive’s employment with the Company and its Affiliates is involuntarily terminated by the Company in 
connection with a Business Transaction, other than on account of Cause, then Executive shall receive the benefits described in Sections 4.3e and 4.3f hereof.  Further, if 
Executive is not rehired by the successor or surviving entity involved in such transaction, the Company shall pay to Executive the amount described in Section 3.6 
hereof, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein.  
 
5.           Limitations on Activities:  
 

5.1.             Consideration for Limitation on Activities.   Executive acknowledges that the execution of this Agreement and the payments described herein 
constitute consideration for the limitations on activities set forth in this Section 5, the adequacy of which is hereby acknowledged.  
 

5.2             Confidential Information.   Executive recognizes and acknowledges that during the terms of his or her employment, he or she has and will have 
access to confidential, proprietary, non-public information concerning the Company and its Affiliates, which may include, without limitation, (a) books and records 
relating to operations, finance, accounting, personnel and management, (b) price, rate and volume data, future price and rate plans, and test data, (c) information related 
to product design and development, (d) computer software, customer lists, information obtained on competitors, and sales  

   

   d.  The Company shall pay to Executive an amount equal to three times the maximum matching contribution determined under the Cleco Corporation 401
(k) Savings and Investment Plan, as the same may be amended or restated from time to time, determined as if Executive deferred thereunder the 
maximum amount permitted under Code Section 402(g); such amount shall be paid in the form of a single-sum payment 30 days after Executive’s 
Termination Date or the first business day thereafter;  

   e.  Vesting shall be accelerated, any restrictions shall lapse, and all target and opportunity performance objectives shall be deemed satisfied at the 
maximum level as to any then outstanding grant or award made under the Equity Incentive Plan and/or any successor plan; Executive shall further be 
entitled to such additional benefits or rights as may be provided in the documents evidencing such plans or the terms of any agreement evidencing 
such grant or award; and  

   f.  Executive shall be fully vested for purposes of any service or similar requirement imposed under the SERP or other non-qualified retirement plan, 
regardless of the actual number of his or her years of service.  
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tactics, and (e) various other non-public trade or business information, including business opportunities, marketing or business diversification plans, acquisitions, 
methods and processes, and financial data and the like (collectively, the “Confidential Information”).  Executive agrees that he or she will not at any time, either while 
employed by the Company or afterwards, make any independent use of, or disclose to any other person or organization (except as authorized by the Company or 
pursuant to court order) any of the Confidential Information.  
 

5.3             Non-Solicitation.   Executive agrees that during the one-year period commencing as of the date of voluntary termination by Executive as described 
in Section 3.7 hereof or the involuntary termination of Executive on account of Cause as described in Section 3.4 hereof, he or she shall not, directly or indirectly, for his 
or her own benefit or on behalf of another or to the Company’s or an Affiliate’s detriment:  
 

 

 

 
The provisions of this Section 5.3 shall apply in the locations set forth on Exhibit A hereto, as the same may be amended by the Company from time to time.  Executive 
acknowledges that the Company and its Affiliates are presently doing business in such locations and that during the Employment Term Executive will be required to 
provide services to or for the benefit of the Company or its Affiliates in such locations.  
 

5.4             Business Reputation.   Executive agrees that during the Employment Term and at all times thereafter, he or she shall refrain from performing any 
act, engaging in any conduct or course of action or making or publishing an adverse, untrue or misleading statement which has or may reasonably have the effect of 
demeaning the name or business reputation of the Company or its Affiliates or which adversely affects (or may reasonably adversely affect) the best interests, economic 
or otherwise, of the Company or an Affiliate.  
 

5.5             Restrictions Reasonable.   The parties agree that each of the restrictions set forth in this Section 5 is intended to constitute a separate 
restriction.  Accordingly, should any such prohibition be declared invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition shall be deemed severable from and shall not affect the 
remainder thereof.  The parties further agree that each of the foregoing restrictions is reasonable in both time and geographic scope.  The parties further agree that should 
a court or arbitrator determine that any restriction set forth herein is unenforceable, such court of arbitrator may reform such restriction to the extent necessary to provide 
for its enforcement under applicable law.  
 

5.6             Remedies.   In the event of a breach or threatened breach by Executive of the provisions of Sections 5.2, 5.3 or 5.4 hereof, Executive agrees that (a) 
the Company shall be entitled to a temporary restraining order or a preliminary injunction, without the necessity of posting bond in connection therewith, which may be 
obtained by means of a judicial proceeding notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6.16 hereof, and (b) any additional payments or benefits due to Executive or his or 
her spouse or dependents under Sections 3 and 4 hereof shall be canceled and forfeited, except any amount tendered to Executive as consideration for his or her waiver 
and release.  Nothing herein shall be construed as prohibiting the Company from pursuing any other remedy available to it for such breach or threatened breach, 
including the recovery of damages from Executive.  
   

   a.  Hire or offer to hire any of the Company’s or Affiliate’s officers, employees or agents;  

   b.  Persuade or attempt to persuade in any manner any officer, employee or agent of the Company or an Affiliate to discontinue any relationship with the 
Company; or  

   c.  Solicit or divert or attempt to divert any customer or supplier of the Company or an Affiliate.  
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6.           General:  
 

6.1             Specified Executive Delay.   In the event the Company determines that Executive is a “specified employee” within the meaning of Code Section 
409A as of his or her Termination Date, then, notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the Company shall postpone until the first business day 
of the seventh calendar month following Executive’s Termination Date (the “Delayed Payment Date”) any payment or benefit hereunder which is deemed on account of 
Executive’s separation from service and not otherwise permitted to be paid or furnished under Code Section 409A, including any regulation or guidance promulgated 
thereunder.  Any payment made as of Executive’s Delayed Payment Date shall include the principal amount of all payments suspended between Executive’s 
Termination Date and such date, without liability for interest or other loss of investment opportunity.  
 

6.2             Mitigation Not Required.   Except as provided in Section 3.1d hereof, as a condition of any payment hereunder, Executive shall not be required to 
mitigate the amount of such payment by seeking other employment or otherwise, nor will any profits, income, earnings or other benefits from any source whatsoever 
create any mitigation, offset, reduction or any other obligation on the part of Executive under this Agreement.  
 

6.3             Attorneys’ Fees and Costs.   In the event any dispute in connection with this Agreement arises with respect to obligations of Executive or the 
Company that were required prior to the occurrence of a Change in Control, all costs, fees and expenses, including attorney fees, of any arbitration or other legal action 
in connection with such matters in which Executive substantially prevails, shall be borne by the Company.  
 

After a Change in Control has occurred, Executive shall not be required to incur legal fees and the related expenses associated with the interpretation, 
enforcement or defense of Executive’s rights under this Agreement.  Accordingly, if, following a Change in Control, the Company fails to comply with any of its 
obligations under this Agreement or the Company or any other person takes or threatens to take any action to declare this Agreement void or unenforceable, Executive 
shall be entitled to retain counsel of Executive’s choice, at the expense of the Company, to advise and represent Executive in connection with any such interpretation, 
enforcement or defense, except as to any action brought to enforce the provisions of Section 5 hereof.  In such event, the Company shall pay and be solely financially 
responsible for any and all attorneys’ and related fees and expenses incurred by Executive in connection with any of the foregoing, without regard to whether Executive 
prevails, in whole or in part.  
 

In no event shall Executive be required to reimburse the Company for any of the costs and expenses incurred by the Company relating to arbitration, litigation 
or other legal action in connection with this Agreement.  
 

If Executive claims the reimbursement of fees, costs or expenses hereunder, Executive’s claim shall be made not later than the last day of the calendar year 
following the year in which the expense was incurred.  The Company shall pay such amount promptly, but not later than the last day of the calendar year following the 
year in which Executive claims reimbursement hereunder.  
 

6.4             No Set-Off.   There shall be no right of set-off or counterclaim in respect of any claim, debt or obligation against any payment to Executive 
provided for in this Agreement.  
 

6.5             Assistance with Litigation.   After Executive’s Termination Date and for a period of one year after the end of the last period with respect to which 
Executive will have received any compensation under this Agreement, Executive will furnish such information and proper assistance as may be  
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reasonably necessary in connection with any litigation in which the Company or an Affiliate is then or may become involved.  
 

6.6             Headings.   Section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not affect in any way the meaning or 
interpretation of this Agreement.  
 

6.7             Entire Agreement.   This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter 
hereof, and there are no other agreements, understandings, restrictions, representations or warranties among the parties other than those set forth herein.  Executive 
expressly acknowledges that this Agreement extinguishes, in their entirety, the rights and obligations of the parties under Executive’s Prior Agreement.  
 

6.8             Amendments.   This Agreement may be amended or modified at any time in any or all respects, but only by an instrument in writing executed by 
the parties hereto.  
 

6.9             Choice of Law.   The validity of this Agreement, the construction of its terms, and the determination of the rights and duties of the parties hereto 
shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Louisiana applicable to contracts made to be performed wholly within such state.  
 

6.10             Notices.   All notices and other communications under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given when (a) 
delivered by hand, (b) sent by telecopier to a telecopier number given below, provided that a copy is sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt 
requested), or (c) when received by the addressee, if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested), in each case as follows:  
 

If to Executive:                     Last address on file with the Company  
 

If to the Company:               Cleco Corporation  
2030 Donahue Ferry Road  
Pineville, LA 71360  
Telecopier: 318- 484-7777  
Attention: Chief Executive Officer  

 
or to such other addresses as a party may designate by notice to the other party.  
 

6.11             Assignment.   This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the Company, its Affiliates, and their successors and assigns, 
including, without limitation, any person, partnership, company, corporation or other entity that may acquire substantially all of the Company’s assets or business or 
with or into which the Company may be liquidated, consolidated, merged or otherwise combined, and will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon Executive, his or 
her heirs, estate, legatees and legal representatives.  If payments become payable to Executive’s surviving spouse or other assigns and such person thereafter dies, such 
payment will revert to Executive’s estate.  
 

6.12             Severability.   Each provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable.  In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the same shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of this 
Agreement, but this Agreement shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision was not contained herein.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
however, no provision shall be severed if it is clearly apparent under the circumstances that the parties would not have entered into this Agreement without such 
provision.  
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6.13             Withholding.   As a condition of the receipt of any payment or benefit hereunder, the Company or an Affiliate shall be entitled to withhold any 

federal, state or local taxes required by law to be withheld.  
 

6.14             Survival.   Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, to the extent applicable, the rights and obligations of the Company under Sections 3, 
4, and 6 hereof and the rights and obligations of Executive under Sections 5 and 6, shall remain operative and in full force and effect regardless of the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  
 

6.15             Waiver.   The failure of either party to insist in any one or more instances upon performance of any terms or conditions of this Agreement will not 
be construed as a waiver of future performance of any such term, covenant, or condition and the obligations of either party with respect to such term, covenant or 
condition will continue in full force and effect.  
 

6.16             Arbitration.   Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled by binding arbitration 
administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Employment Arbitration Rules, and judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered 
in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  Both the Company and Executive hereby consent to this binding arbitration provision.  
 

The existence of any claim or cause of action by Executive, whether predicated on this Agreement or otherwise, shall not constitute a defense to the 
enforcement by the Company or any of its Affiliates of any provision hereof.  The Company’s remedies for breach of this Agreement shall be cumulative and the pursuit 
of one remedy shall not be deemed to exclude any other remedies.  
 

This Executive Employment Agreement is executed in multiple counterparts as of the dates set forth below, each of which shall be deemed an original, to be 
effective as of the Effective Date designated above.  
 
Cleco Corporation:                                                              Executive:  
 
By:     /s/ George W. Bausewine                                            /s/ William G. Fontenot                                                         
 
Its: Senior Vice President – Corporate Services                Date:    July 21, 2009    
 
Date:    June 26, 2009                                                                   
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CLECO CORPORATION  

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT  
EXHIBIT A  

 
This Exhibit A is intended to form a part of that certain Executive Employment Agreement by and between Cleco Corporation and William G. Fontenot 

effective as of July 28, 2009.   The parties agree that the proscriptions set forth in Section 5.3 thereof shall apply in the State of Louisiana, Parishes of:  
 

Acadia  
Allen  
Avoyelles  
Beauregard  
Calcasieu  
Catahoula  
DeSoto  
Evangeline  
Grant  
Iberia  
Jefferson Davis  
Lafayette  
Natchitoches  
Rapides  
Red River  
Sabine  
St. Landry  
St. Martin  
St. Mary  
St. Tammany  
Vernon  
Washington  

 
 
Executive and the Company agree that the Company shall amend this Exhibit A, from time to time, to eliminate Parishes in which the Company is no longer doing 
business and to add Parishes in which the Company is currently doing business.  
 

12  

WPD-6 
Screening Data Part 1 of 2 
Page 2730 of 9808




